
 
 

 

 
 
 
DYDD IAU, 21 MEDI 2023 
 
 
AT: HOLL AELODAU Y PWYLLGOR CRAFFU CYMUNEDAU, 
CARTREFI AC ADFYWIO 
 
 
 
YR WYF DRWY HYN YN EICH GALW I FYNYCHU CYFARFOD O’R 
PWYLLGOR CRAFFU CYMUNEDAU, CARTREFI AC ADFYWIO A 
GYNHELIR YN SIAMBR, NEUADD Y SIR, CAERFYRDDIN SA31 1JP 
AC O BELL AM 10.00 YB  DYDD IAU, 28AIN MEDI, 2023 ER MWYN 
CYFLAWNI'R MATERION A AMLINELLIR AR YR AGENDA SYDD 
YNGHLWM 
 
 

Wendy Walters 

PRIF WEITHREDWR 
 
 
 
Swyddog Democrataidd: Kevin J Thomas 
Ffôn (llinell uniongyrchol): 01267 224027 
E-Bost: kjthomas@sirgar.gov.uk  
Cyfarfod aml-leoliad yw hwn.  Gall aelodau’r pwyllgor fynychu’n bersonol yn y 
lleoliad a nodir uchod neu o bell drwy’r ddolen Zoom a ddarperir ar wahân. 

Gellir gwylio’r cyfarfod ar wefan y cyngor drwy'r ddolen canlynol:- 
https://carmarthenshire.public-i.tv/core/portal/home 

 
Wendy Walters Prif Weithredwr, Chief Executive, 

Neuadd y Sir, Caerfyrddin. SA31 1JP 
County Hall, Carmarthen. SA31 1JP 

 
 
 

Pecyn Dogfennau

https://carmarthenshire.public-i.tv/core/portal/home


 

 
 

PWYLLGOR CRAFFU CYMUNEDAU, CARTREFI AC ADFYWIO 
 

 
 
 

GRŴP PLAID CYMRU-  7 Members 
 

1.  Cyng. Betsan Jones (Is-Gadeirydd)  
2.  Cyng.  Bryan Davies   
3.  Cyng.  Terry Davies   
4.  Cyng. Handel Davies   
5.  Cyng. Ken Howell   
6.  Cyng. Denise Owen   
7.  Cyng. Russell Sparks   

 
GRŴP LLAFUR -  4 Members 
1.  Cyng. Deryk Cundy (Cadeirydd)  
2.  Cyng. Rob Evans  
3.  Cyng. Martyn Palfreman  
4.  Cyng. Michael Thomas  

 
GRŴP ANNIBYNNOL -  2 Members 
1.  Cyng. Anthony Davies   
2.  Cyng. Hugh Shepardson   

 
HEB GYSYLLTIAD  2 Members 

 
 
 
 



 

 
 

A G E N D A   
  

1. YMDDIHEURIADAU AM ABSENOLDEB.   
 
2. DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANNAU PERSONOL GAN GYNNWYS 

UNRHYW CHWIPIAU PLEIDIAU A RODDIR MEWN YMATEB I 
UNRHYW EITEM AR YR AGENDA  

 

 
3. CWESTIYNAU GAN Y CYHOEDD (NID OEDD DIM WEDI DOD I 

LAW)  
 

 
4. ADOLYGIAD O'R POLISI YNGHYLCH TALIADAU AM 

WASANAETHAU TAI  
5 - 22 

 
5. CYMHWYSO BWRIADOLDEB I ANGEN BLAENORIAETHOL 

(GORCHYMYN DIGARTREFEDD)  
23 - 38 

 
6. ADRODDIAD DIWEDDARU - DYRANNU TAI CYMDEITHASOL 

BRYS YNGHYLCH RHOI'R POLISI DYRANNU NEWYDD AR 
WAITH (MONITRO)  

39 - 52 

 
7. STRATEGAETH HAMDDEN, DIWYLLIANT, A HAMDDEN AWYR 

AGORED  
53 - 78 

 
8. ADRODDIAD MONITRO CYLLIDEB CYFALAF A REFENIW 

2023/24  
79 - 106 

 
9. ADRODDIAD ALLDRO CYLLIDEB REFENIW 2022/23  107 - 126 
 
10. PEIDIO Â CHYFLWYNO ADRODDIAD CRAFFU  127 - 132 
 
11. EITEMAU AR GYFER Y DYFODOL  133 - 156 
 
12. LLOFNODI YN GOFNOD CYWIR GOFNODION Y PWYLLGOR A 

GYNHALIWYD AR 29 MEHEFIN 2023  
157 - 160 

 



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



 

CYMUNEDAU, CARTREFI AC ADFYWIO  
PWYLLGOR CRAFFU 

28 MEDI 2023 

 

 

ADOLYGIAD O'R POLISI YNGHYLCH TALIADAU AM 
WASANAETHAU TAI 

 

Pwrpas yr adroddiad yw amlinellu'r opsiynau sydd ar gael ar gyfer Polisi ynghylch Taliadau am 
Wasanaethau ar gyfer Tenantiaid y Cyngor yn y dyfodol a cheisio barn gychwynnol aelodau'r 
Pwyllgor Craffu fel rhan o'r adolygiad. 

 

GOFYNNIR I'R PWYLLGOR CRAFFU: 
 

• Rhoi barn ar y Polisi ynghylch Taliadau am Wasanaethau yn y dyfodol fel rhan o'r broses 
cyn penderfynu ar gyfer datblygu polisi, cyn ei gyflwyno i'r Cabinet. 
 

Y Rhesymau:  
 

• Mae'r Polisi presennol ynghylch Taliadau am Wasanaethau wedi bod ar waith ers peth 
amser ac mae angen ei adolygu; 

 
• Mae costau rheoli cyffredinol, atgyweirio a rhentu wedi cynyddu ac mae'n bwysig bod y 

Polisi ynghylch Taliadau am Wasanaethau yn gyson â Chynllun Busnes y Cyfrif Refeniw 
Tai wrth gynnal incwm; ac 
 

• Mae'r bwlch rhwng yr hyn rydym yn ei wario bob blwyddyn ar daliadau gwasanaeth a'r hyn 
a gawn trwy incwm (yn enwedig yn ystod y blynyddoedd diwethaf gyda chyfraddau 
chwyddiant uchel e.e. ym mis Medi 2022 byddai'r CPI wedi bod yn 11%) yn cynyddu. 

 
 

YR AELOD CABINET SY'N GYFRIFOL AM Y PORTFFOLIO:-    
        
Y Cynghorydd Linda Evans (Dirprwy Arweinydd a Deiliad y Portffolio Tai) 
Y Cynghorydd Alun Lenny (Deiliad y Portffolio Adnoddau) 
 

Y Gyfarwyddiaeth 
Cymunedau 

Enw Pennaeth y 
Gwasanaeth: 
Jonathan Morgan 

Awdur yr Adroddiad: 
Gareth Williams 

Amy Jones 

Swydd: 
 
Pennaeth Tai a Diogelu'r 
Cyhoedd 

 
Rheolwr y Gwasanaethau Tai 

Arweinydd Rheoli Tai (Incwm) 

Cyfeiriadau E-bost a Rhifau Ffôn: 
 
JMorgan@sirgar.gov.uk 
01267 228960 

GaJWilliams@sirgar.gov.uk  
07393762642 

AmyCJones@sirgar.gov.uk 
 

 

Tudalen 5

Eitem Rhif  4

mailto:JMorgan@carmarthenshire.gov.uk
mailto:GaJWilliams@carmarthenshire.gov.uk
mailto:AmyCJones@carmarthenshire.gov.uk


 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

 
HOUSING SERVICE CHARGE POLICY REVIEW 

 
 
 

 
 

1. Purpose 
 

1.1. The purpose of the report is to outline the options available for a future Service 
Charge Policy for Council Tenants and to seek Scrutiny members initial views as 
part of the review. 

 
2. Context 

 
2.1. Service charges are payments made by Contract Holders (tenants or leaseholders) 

that share communal areas or facilities within our blocks of flats, sheltered schemes 
or supported housing projects. It is where we provide additional services that are 
over and above the general rent. Service charges pay for things like: 

• cleaning, lighting and maintenance of shared areas like stairwells and 
hallways; 

• looking after gardens in shared areas; 

• hot water and heating if there is a communal system; 

• entry systems, lifts and rubbish chutes in a block of flats; 

• caretakers, wardens and emergency alarm systems; 

• buildings insurance and management fees; and 

• Anything else that contract holders decide as a new/ additional service 

2.2. The current Service Charge Policy has been in being for some time and requires 
review; 

 
 

2.3. General management, repairs and rent costs have all increased and it is important 
that the Service Charge Policy is consistent with the HRA Business Plan in 
maintaining income;  

 
2.4. General costs including management, repairs and rents have all increased through 

general inflation, but the gap between what we spend on service charges and what 
we recover in income is widening due to the current £3 cap that has been imposed 
under the current policy. 

 
 
 

Tudalen 6



 

 
2.5. Service Charges are calculated on previous years expenditure distributed across the 

number of units of accommodation within a sheltered scheme, block of flats or 
supported housing project.  

 
2.6. The cap was originally put in place to protect Contract Holders (tenants) from inflating 

costs. Contract Holders are consulted on and can request additional services, but if 
there is a limit on how much the service charge can increase by, there is little control 
on what we spend and what we recover.   

 
2.7. Within the report we have defined what a Service Charge is so that Members and 

Contract Holders understand what we charge for and how we currently recover it. 
Service Charges can vary from year to year. 

 
2.8. We have researched what other Social Landlords do and none of them impose a Cap 

as part of their Service Charge model at the current time.  
 

2.9. One of the main reasons for charging for additional services is to ensure that there is 
re-investment in our sheltered schemes, blocks of flats and supported housing 
projects. 

 
2.10. The review and the Policy will affect 1244 Contract Holders 

 
2.11. Based on 2021/22 actual expenditure we spent approximately £900k on additional 

services in the various schemes and recovered 85% of the costs. However, with a 
significant increase in utility costs during 2022/23, next years, actual expenditure 
(2024/25) could be significantly higher and the gap greater. 

 
3. Approach 

 
3.1. The report outlines potential options available to consider before developing the 

Policy.  
 

3.2. The options being to consider are: 
 

3.2.1. Option 1: Do Nothing - Keep the existing Service Charge Policy in place with 
a cap of any possible annual increase in its overall rental charge (including 
Service Charges) to a maximum rise of £3 per week.  
 

3.2.2. Option 2: Gradual incremental removal of the Cap - Review and amend the 
existing policy with a view to introducing incremental increases over a 3-year 
period to bring all service charges in line with full cost recovery. The cap will 
only come into effect where charges exceed the agreed weekly cap. 

 
3.2.3. Option 3: Remove the Cap - Remove the cap completely from the existing 

policy with contract holders meeting the full cost of usage from 2024/25.  
 

 

Tudalen 7



 

3.3. Within the body of the report, we have considered the benefits and disadvantages to all 
stakeholders, the impact that this will have in terms of affordability and balancing with 
investment as well as the financial risk to the Council. 

 
 

4. Recommendations 
 

• To confirm Scrutiny members views on the future Service Charge Policy as part of 
the pre-decision process for policy development, prior to submission to Cabinet 

 
DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? YES – Options Paper.V3_150923 

 
 

IMPLICATIONS 
 

 
I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors / 
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this 
report: 
 
Signed:   Jonathan Morgan Head of Housing & Public Protection 
 

 
Policy, Crime 
& Disorder 
and 
Equalities 
 

Legal  Finance  ICT  Risk 
Management 
Issues  

Staffing 
Implications 

Physical 
Assets   

YES  YES  
 

YES NONE  
 

NONE 
 

NONE 
 

NONE 

 
1. Policy, Crime and Disorder & Equalities 

 
We will undertake an equality impact assessment to ensure that the policy is fair and transparent 
to all contract holders and stake holders. As part of developing the Policy, and taking into 
consideration Scrutiny Members recommendations, we will consult with all contract holders 
affected by the policy decision.  
 
 

Tudalen 8



 

2. Legal 
The Policy decision will be in line with the HRA Guidance Manual on what we can charge for, 
what we can’t and how that is accounted for. There are clear guidelines within the HRA 
Guidance Manual set out by CIPFA how we should manage revenues and additional charges.  

The Policy will also need to be in line with the requirement of the Renting Homes (Wales) Act 
which has placed certain obligations on social landlords when varying contract, amending rents 
and including additional charges.  

 
 
3. Finance   
 
Based on 2021/22 actual expenditure we spend £903k on additional services. With the £3 cap we 
recovered £762k- this leaves a shortfall of 141k but this will widen if the cap is maintained for the 
coming years. This will then have an impact on revenue to support the HRA Business Plan. Every 
100k additional income could support an additional £1m capital spend. 
 

 
CABINET MEMBER  PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER(S) AWARE/CONSULTED  
 

Yes 

 

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information 
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report: 
 
THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW      
 
Title of Document 
 

File Ref No. Locations that the papers are available for public inspection  

Existing Service Charge 
Policy  

Housing 
General 
Files 

Council website- Democratic Services 

 
 
 

Tudalen 9



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Polisi Tâl Gwasanaeth - 
Papur Opsiynau/ 

Service Charge Policy- 
Options Paper
 
Gwasanaethau Tai/Housing Services Division 
Medi/September 2023 V3

Tudalen 11



 

2 
 

T 
Table of Contents 
 

1. Purpose ...........................................................................................................................3 
2. What is a Service Charge? .............................................................................................3 
3. Why Review the Service Charge Policy ..........................................................................4 
4. Current Profile of Service Charges .................................................................................4 
5. Considering the future options ........................................................................................5 
6. Scrutiny Committee Recommendations ..........................................................................7 
Appendix 1 -  Repairs and Maintenance Service Charges ....................................................8 
Appendix 2 - Examples of other Local Authority RSL’s & Private Sector Rent & Service   
Charges for Comparison .......................................................................................................9 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 12

https://carmarthenshire-my.sharepoint.com/personal/amycjones_carmarthenshire_gov_uk/Documents/Documents/Rent%20Accountancy%20Team/Option_Paper_ServiceCharge_V.4_150923.docx#_Toc145930873
https://carmarthenshire-my.sharepoint.com/personal/amycjones_carmarthenshire_gov_uk/Documents/Documents/Rent%20Accountancy%20Team/Option_Paper_ServiceCharge_V.4_150923.docx#_Toc145930881
https://carmarthenshire-my.sharepoint.com/personal/amycjones_carmarthenshire_gov_uk/Documents/Documents/Rent%20Accountancy%20Team/Option_Paper_ServiceCharge_V.4_150923.docx#_Toc145930881


 

3 
 

 
 
 
 

1. Purpose  
 

1.1. The purpose of the report is to outline the options available for a future Service Charge 
Policy for Council Tenants and to seek Scrutiny members initial views as part of the 
review. 
 

2. What is a Service Charge? 
 

2.1. Service charges are payments made by contract holders (tenants or leaseholders) that 
share communal areas or facilities within our blocks of flats, sheltered schemes or 
supported housing projects. It is where we as the landlord provide additional services 
that are over and above the general rent. Service charges pay for things like: 
 

• cleaning, lighting and maintenance of shared areas like stairwells and hallways; 
• looking after gardens in shared areas; 
• hot water and heating if there is a communal system; 
• entry systems, lifts and rubbish chutes in a block of flats; 
• caretakers, wardens and emergency alarm systems; 
• buildings insurance and management fees; and 
• Anything else that contract holders decide as a new/ additional service. 
 

2.2. Contract holders will only pay for the communal services that they receive. This Policy 
is for general use, and it is understood that not all Service Charges apply to individual 
contract holders. For example, if a contract holder lives in a block of flats that is not 
cleaned by the Council, they will not be charged for cleaning. 
 

2.3. For those tenants that Service charges apply these are generally included in the rent 
known as ‘Inclusive Rent’. 

 
2.4. The way that we determine Service Charges for the forthcoming year is to calculate this 

on the actual expenditure in the previous year. Therefore, no assumptions are made and 
again the contract holders only pay for what they have received. We don’t anticipate 
changing this part of the process as it is seen to be the most effective and accurate way 
of calculating what the contract holder owes.  

 
2.5. Through consultation with the contract holders we can offer extra or remove services, 

based on choice.  

Service Charge Policy

Tudalen 13



 

4 
 

3. Why Review the Service Charge Policy 
 

3.1. There are several reasons why we need to review the Service Charge Policy. The 
service charge policy was introduced in 2010 and has not been reviewed for some 
considerable time. 

 
3.2. General management costs, income and rents have all increased during this time. 

 
3.3. One of the key elements within the current policy is the inclusion of a ‘cap’ on the 

maximum amount the service charge can be increased by year on year. This is currently 
set at a maximum of £3 per week above the previous years charges and was originally 
put in place to protect Contract Holders. The gap between what we spend each year on 
additional or communal services within our schemes/ blocks of flats is far greater than 
what we receive in income, particularly in recent years with extremely high inflation rates 
e.g. in September 2022 the CPI would have been 11%.  
 

3.4.  For 2022/23 the gap was 141k between what the expenditure was in 2021/22 on these 
additional services. This will increase for 2023/24 if we maintain the current position. 
 

3.5. It should be noted that a contract-holder in a general needs’ bungalow/house/flat is 
feeling the impact of the cost-of-living crisis with the rise in utility bills etc. which they are 
responsible for paying themselves  
 

4. Current Profile of Service Charges 
4.1. The current profile for those affected (1244 Contract Holders) by service charges and 

costs involved are highlighted below. The calculation of the service charge for 2023/2024 
financial year based on data and figures for Service charge actual data for 2021/2022. 

 
Sheltered Schemes 

 
517 properties 
are Sheltered 
Accommodation 

 

 21 Sheltered Complexes 
 £27.46 weekly average service charges for Sheltered Accommodation 
 £43.79 highest weekly charge 
 £15.00 lowest weekly charge 

2023/2024 annual service charges invoiced and charged to contract-holders 

£681,398.88 total annual cost of service charges (with cap in place) 

£816,572.64 total annual cost of service charges (without cap in place).  

The HRA is subsidising £135,173.76. 

 
 
 
 

Tudalen 14



 

5 
 

General needs properties (blocks with communal areas for service charges) 
 

727 are 
general needs 
properties 

 
 £2.34 weekly average service charges for general needs properties 
 £11.81 highest weekly charge 
 £0.25 lowest weekly charge 

2023/2024 annual service charges invoiced and charged to contract-holders 

£81.598.56 total annual cost of service charges (with cap in place) 

£87,132.48 total annual cost of service charges (without cap in place).  

The HRA is subsidising £5,533.92. 

 

5. Considering the future options 
 

5.1. Below is a table outlining four different options when considering the new Policy.  
 

Option 1: Do nothing 
Summary 

 

Keep the existing Service Charge Policy in place and make no changes with a cap 
of any possible annual increase in its overall Rental Charge (including Service 
Charges) to a maximum rise of £3 per week.  

Benefits 

The contract-holder benefits with this protective cap of a maximum rise of £3 per 
week. This means contract holders are not exposed or impacted significantly by 
inflationary rises and general service costs. The only benefit to the Council would 
be that the limited impact to contract holders would mean they are unlikely to 
contest annual service charge increases. 

Disadvantages 

By placing a cap on the charges, the rest of our tenants gain no benefit from these 
services and the HRA is subsidising these charges. By keeping the cap in place, 
we are not charging for what the tenant’s actual usage of these services are. The 
Sheltered Complex tenant’s usage and understanding of these charges isn’t 
encouraged to change based on these challenges due to the cap negating the full 
financial impact.  

Risks 
There will be a significant variance in the HRA business plan financial modelling 
meaning a reduction in revenue and capital investment/ spending. 

Timeline Review the Policy in two years 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 15



 

6 
 

 

Option 2: Gradual incremental removal of the cap 

Summary 
 

Review and amend the existing policy with a view to introducing incremental 
increases to bring us up to full cost recovery and to ensure we are recovering all 
eligible service charges. 
The option could propose an increase of the cap over a 3-year period.  
 

 Raise the cap yearly over 3 years by a third = £1 per year 
 Remove the cap completely in the fourth year 

 
Rent & service charges financial years 
 

 2025/2026 = maximum increase of £4.40 per week (£4 +40p admin fee of 
10% (amended policy) 

 2026/2027 = maximum increase of £5.50 per week (£5 +50p admin fee of 
10% (amended policy) 

 2027/2028 = maximum increase of £6.60 per week (£6 +60p admin fee of 
10% (amended policy) 

 2028/2027 = Remove cap (amended policy) 
 
The cap will only come into effect where charges exceed the agreed weekly cap 
amount. 

Benefits 

The contract-holders will remain protected with an incremental increase in the cap 
gradually increasing by a third over 3 years.  
 
Inflation has hit almost every sector, and with overheads and supply costs 
increasing, everyone can expect last year’s charges to be higher this time around, 
however with the cap remaining in place for 3 years this will soften the impact. 
 
The benefit to the wider tenants is that charges are applied equally across the board 
based on usage. 
 
Further education of Contract holders to understand usage and billing through our 
Tenancy Support and Pre-Accommodation Teams. 

Disadvantages 

Some contract holders may see increased charges over and above the current £3 
per week cap 

Tudalen 16



 

7 
 

Risks 

All increases must be “reasonable”. Price rises linked to inflation may be considered 
fair, as the costs of delivering these services have gone up.  
 
The average UK service charge is £1,500 a year according to the Home Owners 
Alliance. Inflation has hit almost every sector, and with overheads and supply costs 
increasing, everyone can expect last year’s charges to be higher this time around. 
 
Having an incremental arrangement will reduce the gap gradually and help maintain 
the HRA Business Plan income and expenditure. This is similar to how we close the 
gap for tenancies that are below target rent and up to a £2 progression can be 
applied. 

Timeline Review the Policy in 4 Years (full removal of the cap by 25/26) 

 
Option 3: Remove Cap 

Summary 
 

Remove the cap completely from the existing policy with contract holders meeting 
full cost of usage from 2024/25 

Benefits 

Contract holders are unlikely to benefit from this having had years of protection by 
the cap and the difference between actual costs and recoverable costs being 
considerably different. The advantage for the Council is full cost recovery to 
reinvest in service, Capital and Revenue and that other general needs contract 
holder i.e. all other tenants and subsidising charges and the impact on 
affordability/ cost of living is shared or equalled. 

Disadvantages 
With this removal complete without any cushion to soften the impact, this will have 
a big effect on our contract-holders, potentially moving them into arrear and the 
policy changes are likely to have resistance. 

Risks 
Full cost recovery will present little risk to the HRA business plan financial 
modelling however increased tenant arrears and actual collection rates will impact 
annual income and bad debt provisions.  

Timeline Review the Policy in 3 Years 

 
5.2. The removal of the Service Charge completely for those contract holders affected by 

the Policy and who receive additional service has been considered when putting these 
options forward. This could be included as a fourth Option.  
 

5.3. The removal of the charge however has very little equity for stakeholders. The cost and 
the risk to the Council is considerable as well as all other contract holders being burdened 
with subsidising the whole cost. Contract Holders for who the Policy would apply would 
be better off financially, though with the limited income, it is unlikely that schemes, flats 
and supported projects will have significant investment, making the offer less desirable, 
more vacancies and greater void loss. 
 

5.4. Adopting this Option would pose significant financial risk to the HRA, costs being 
absorbed through general revenue/ rents and is likely to be unsustainable and 
unequitable. Based on previous years actual spend this could mean a shortfall of £900k 
a year and over the 30-year HRA business plan model this will increase further with 
inflationary rises. 

Tudalen 17



 

8 
 

 
5.5. We may want to consider applying any of these options/ changes to new contract 

holders only or by age group. However, this would be extremely difficult to calculate and 
monitor which may cause inconsistencies and confusion.  
 

6. Scrutiny Committee Recommendations 
 

6.1. To confirm Scrutiny members views on the future Service Charge Policy as part 
of the pre-decision process for policy development, prior to submission to Cabinet 

 

 
 
 
 
For Tenants, Service charges will be raised against the cost of 
 
Servicing communal utilities- including 
 

• Heating and lighting systems (60% of overall cost will be met by council,40% by 
residents) 

• Fire protection and safety equipment,  
• Door entry systems  
• CCTV 
• Communal TV aerial 
• Cleansing Water systems 
• Lifts 
• Adjustments of timer devices  

 
Repairs to (and replacement of) communally situated  
 

• Radiators, valves and pipe-work 
• Sanitary-ware 
• Electrical Fittings 
• Lighting 
• Doors 
• Door entry systems  
• CCTV 
• Communal TV aerial 
• Lifts 
• Fire Protection Equipment 
• Electrical appliances including laundry equipment 
• Rotary/Washing Lines 
• Security Lights 
• Personal Fire protection equipment e.g. fire blankets 

 
 
 

  Appendix 1 Repairs and Maintenance Service Charges

Appendix 1 Repairs and Maintenance Service Charges

Appendix 1 Repairs and Maintenance Service Charges

Appendix 1 Repairs and Maintenance Service Charges

Appendix 1 Repairs and Maintenance Service Charges

Appendix 1 Repairs and Maintenance Service Charges

Appendix 1 Repairs and Maintenance Service Charges

Appendix 1 Repairs and Maintenance Service Charges

Tudalen 18



 

9 
 

Service Charges will not apply to: 
 
Repairs to (and replacement of) communally situated: 
 

• Central heating systems e.g. boilers 
• Electrical systems including wiring 
• Water, sewerage and drainage systems 
• Sheltered Scheme Officer Accommodation 
• Sheltered Scheme Offices or Store Rooms 
• Structural repairs 
• External repairs e.g. roofs, rainwater goods, chimneys, brickwork 
• External maintenance e.g. gulley or guttering clearance 
• Planned Maintenance or Major Work schemes e.g. Carmarthenshire Homes Standard  
•  
• or the Environmental works Project 
• Full remodelling or replacement of lifts. 

 
 
 

 

 
Carmarthenshire Local Authority 

Property Type 
 

Category Net rent per week Average 
Service 

Charges per 
week 

1 bed flat Sheltered £87.47 £27.46 
2 bed flat Sheltered £97.23 £27.46 
1 bed flat General needs £87.47 £2.34 

1 bed bungalow General needs £96.71  
 

Caerphilly Local Authority 
Property Type 

 
Category Net rent per week Service 

Charges p/w 
1 bed flat under one 

roof 
Sheltered £90.64 £42.11 

2 bed flat under one 
roof 

Sheltered £98.56 £42.11 

1 bed bungalow with 
separate communal 

block 

 £99.81 £30.76 

2 bed bungalows with 
separate communal 

block 

 £108.98 £30.76 

1 bed flat with separate 
communal block 

 £90.64 £33.06 

2 bed flat with separate 
communal block 

 £98.56 £33.06 

 Appendix 2 - Examples of other Local Authority, RSL’s and Private 
                        Sector rent and service charges for comparison

 Appendix 2 -Examples of other Local Authority, RSL’s and Private 
Sector rent and service charges for comparison

 Appendix 2 -Examples of other Local Authority, RSL’s and Private 
Sector rent and service charges for comparison

 Appendix 2 -Examples of other Local Authority, RSL’s and Private 
Sector rent and service charges for comparison

 Appendix 2 -Examples of other Local Authority, RSL’s and Private 
Sector rent and service charges for comparison

 Appendix 2 -Examples of other Local Authority, RSL’s and Private 
Sector rent and service charges for comparison

 Appendix 2 -Examples of other Local Authority, RSL’s and Private 
Sector rent and service charges for comparison

 Appendix 2 -Examples of other Local Authority, RSL’s and Private 
Sector rent and service charges for comparison

Tudalen 19



 

10 
 

 

 

 

 

Bro Myrddin Housing Association 
Property Type 

 
Category Net rent per week Service 

Charges p/w 
1 bed flat (Carmarthen 

area) 
Sheltered extra care 24/7 

on site warden 
£146 £130 

1 bed flat (Carmarthen 
area) 

Sheltered over 55’s part 
time warden independent 

living 

£97.77 £26.25 

Cartref Cynnes / Ty Dyffryn Extra Care Units 
Property Type 

 
Category Net rent per week Service 

Charges p/w 
1 bed flat Extra care Cartref Cynnes £148.17 £115.20 
2 bed flat Extra care Cartref Cynnes £163.43 £115.20 
1 bed flat Extra care Ty Dyffryn £150.80 £104.28 
2 bed flat Extra care Ty Dyffryn £166.34 £104.28 

Llysnewydd (Llanelli) Private Sector flats 
Property Type 

 
Category Net rent per week Service 

Charges p/w 
1 bed flat Private sector flat (former 

residential home) 
£100 £28.85 

Cardiff Local Authority 
Property Type 

 
Category Net rent per week Service 

Charges p/w 
1 bed flat Sheltered £90.86 £48.68 
2 bed flat Sheltered £104.37 £58.20 
1 bed flat General needs £94.61 £10.85 
2 bed flat General needs £109.52 £9.21 

1 Bed Bungalow General needs £106.90 £3.72 
2 bed Bungalow/house General needs £121.94 £4.65 

Swansea Local Authority 
Property Type 

 
Category Net rent per week Service 

Charges p/w 
1 bed flat Independent living £99.56 £24.25 
2 bed flat Independent living £104.82 £26.64 

Flintshire Local Authority 
Property Type 

 
Category Net rent per week Service 

Charges p/w 
1 bed flat General £90.41 £9.69 
2 bed flat General £100.45 £9.69 

Tudalen 20



 

11 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Vale of Glamorgan Local Authority 
Property Type 

 
Category Net rent per week Service 

Charges p/w 
1 bed flat Sheltered £104.29 Av £24.70 Av – 

no repairs 
2 bed flat Sheltered £112.11 Av £24.70 Av -no 

repairs 
1/2bed flat General £99.04 Av  

1/2 bed bungalow General £115.08 Av  

Wrexham Local Authority 
Property Type 

 
Category Net rent per week Service 

Charges p/w 
1 bed flat Sheltered £93.19 £20.-30 Av 
2 bed flat Sheltered £103.53 £20-30 Av 

1 bed bungalow General £102.99  
2 bed bungalow General £114.43  

Tudalen 21



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



 

Oct 2022 

 
 
 

PWNC: 
CYMHWYSO BWRIADOLDEB I ANGEN BLAENORIAETHOL 

(GORCHYMYN DIGARTREFEDD) 
 
Y Pwrpas:  

• Darparu'r cefndir pam rydym yn cynnwys pobl sy'n fwriadol ddigartref yn y 10 categori 
presennol o Angen Blaenoriaethol, a pham dylem gymhwyso bwriadoldeb i'r 11eg 
categori a ychwanegwyd. 

  
GOFYNNIR I'R PWYLLGOR CRAFFU:- 

•  Adolygu ac asesu’r wybodaeth a gynhwysir yn yr adroddiad atodedig; ac  
• Ar ôl ystyriaeth, argymell bod y Cabinet yn cymeradwyo cadw bwriadoldeb ar gyfer pob 

un o'r 10 categori angen blaenoriaethol a restrir o dan Ddeddf Tai (Cymru) 2014 ac yn 
cymhwyso bwriadoldeb i'r 11eg categori a ychwanegwyd, sef Digartrefedd Stryd.  

 

Y rhesymau:  
 

Darparu'r cefndir pam rydym yn cynnwys pobl sy'n fwriadol ddigartref yn y 10 categori 
presennol o Angen Blaenoriaethol, a pham dylem gymhwyso bwriadoldeb i'r 11eg categori a 
ychwanegwyd. 
 

YR AELOD CABINET SY'N GYFRIFOL AM Y PORTFFOLIO:-   
Y Cynghorydd Linda Evans, Dirprwy Arweinydd a Deiliad y Portffolio Tai           

Y Gyfarwyddiaeth: Cymunedau 

Enw Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth: 
Jonathan Morgan  
 
Awdur yr Adroddiad: 
Rachael Parkinson 

Swyddi: 

Pennaeth Tai a Diogelu'r 
Cyhoedd 

Arweinydd Adolygu a 
Monitro Annibynnol 

Cyfeiriadau e-bost: 
 
JMorgan@sirgar.gov.uk 
 
 
RParkinson@sirgar.gov.uk 

 
  

PWYLLGOR CRAFFU CYMUNEDAU, CARTREFI AC ADFYWIO  

28 MEDI 2023

Tudalen 23

Eitem Rhif  5

mailto:JMorgan@carmarthenshire.gov.uk
mailto:RParkinson@carmarthenshire.gov.uk


 

Oct 2022 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

APPLYING INTENTIONALITY TO PRIORITY NEED 
(HOMELESSNESS ORDER) 

 
1. Introduction 

 
The Housing (Wales) Act 2014 came into force on 27th April 2015.  In July 2015 the Authority 
approved a report to enable intentionality to be applied across the original 10 categories of 
Priority Need. 
 
Local Authorities apply the intentionality test to consider whether a person presenting as 
homeless has done, or failed to do something which could be considered to have caused the 
loss of their settled accommodation and could therefore be deemed to have caused their 
homelessness ‘intentionally’.  Where a person has become homeless intentionally, the 
Authority does not have a statutory duty to secure permanent accommodation for that person. 
 
In October 2022 the Homelessness (Priority Need and Intentionality) (Wales) Regulation 
2022 came into force.  This added a new category of Priority need known as Street 
Homelessness. 
 
Since this introduction, the Authority has been unable to apply the intentionality test to any 
household that presents as Street Homeless thus allowing them to be owed the full housing 
duties under the legislation. 
 
2. Main Body of the report  
 
The attached report highlights the changes within the Act regarding intentionally homeless 
decisions. 
 
The Housing (Wales) Act 2014 states; 
 
“A person is intentionally homeless if …. the person deliberately does or fails to do anything in 
consequence of which the person ceases to occupy accommodation which is available for the 

person’s occupation and which it would have been reasonable for the person to continue to 
occupy”. 

 
If an intentional homeless decision is taken the Council’s housing duties to that household are 
significantly reduced. 
 
In order to allow Councils to make the decision on whether to apply intentionality, the Welsh 
Government has split households into the priority need groups. 
 
These groups are where the household; 
 

Tudalen 24



 

Oct 2022 

• includes dependent children or a pregnant woman 
• is vulnerable due to old age 
• is vulnerable to physical disabilities or mental illness / learning disability 
• is vulnerable due to being a care leaver / or a young person at particular risk of sexual or 

financial exploitation (18-20 year olds) 
• is vulnerable due to being a 16 or 17 year old 
• is vulnerable due to fleeing domestic violence / abuse or threatened violence 
• is vulnerable due to leaving the armed forces 
• is vulnerable due to other reasons, this may include ex-offenders vulnerable because of 

the length of a custodial sentence 
 
In October 2022 Welsh Government has added an additional category of Street Homeless. 
 
The Authority needs to decide based on the information included within the main report if they 
wish to continue with applying the intentionally homeless test across the current categories and 
the additional category of Street Homeless. 
 
3. Scrutiny Committee are asked to: 
 

• To review and assess the information contained in the attached report; and  
• Following consideration, recommend to Cabinet that it approves the retention of 

intentionality for all 10 priority need categories listed under the Housing (Wales) Act 2014 
and applies intentionality to the additional 11th category of Street Homeless. 

 

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? YES  

 
 

  

Tudalen 25



 

Oct 2022 

IMPLICATIONS 

 
2.Legal 
The decision and subsequent publication of the decision will meet the requirement of the 
Housing (Wales) Act 2014 and enable the Council to continue make intentionally homeless 
decisions across the 11 priority need categories. 
 
3.Finance 
Failure to apply the intentionality test will require the Authority to continue owing a duty to 
accommodate all households, with current pressures in particular the shortage of 
affordable single person accommodation this may take time.  It will also mean the 
Authority’s costs for temporary accommodation will continue to increase. 
 

5.Risk Management Issues 
Failure to implement the Intentionality test will mean: 
 

• The Authority will continue to have a duty to accommodate those who have carried out 
deliberate acts which have led to their homelessness.   

 
• Increased use of temporary, and more expensive accommodation, to meet housing 

need; and 
 

• Perception that unacceptable behaviour is accepted and that individuals can still access 
accommodation regardless of their behaviour. 

 
7.Physical Assets   
Council housing will be used as solutions for temporary as well as permanent solutions. 

 
 
 
 

 

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors / 
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with 
this report: 
Signed:             Jonathan Morgan                                            Head of Housing and Public Protection                           

 
Policy, Crime & 
Disorder and 
Equalities 

Legal 
 

Finance 
 

ICT 
 

Risk 
Management 
Issues 

Staffing 
Implications 

 

Physical 
Assets  

 
NONE YES YES NONE YES  NONE  YES  

Tudalen 26



 

Oct 2022 

  
CABINET MEMBER  PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER(S) AWARE/CONSULTED  

YES 
 

Include any observations here 

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information 
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report: 
 
THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW  
 
Title of Document 
 

File Ref No. Locations that the papers are available for public inspection  

Housing (Wales) Act 
2014 

 Housing (Wales) Act 2014 (legislation.gov.uk) 
 

Code of Guidance for 
Local Authorities on 
the Allocation of 
Accommodation & 
Homelessness 

 allocation-of-accommodation-and-homelessness- 
guidance-for-local-authorities.pdf (gov.wales) 

 

Code of Guidance - 
Addendum 

 code-of-guidance-addendum.pdf (gov.wales) 
 
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019- 
12/additional-guidance.pdf 

 

Tudalen 27

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/anaw/2014/7/contents/enacted
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-03/allocation-of-accommodation-and-homelessness-guidance-for-local-authorities.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-03/allocation-of-accommodation-and-homelessness-guidance-for-local-authorities.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2022-10/code-of-guidance-addendum.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-12/additional-guidance.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-12/additional-guidance.pdf


Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



 
 

Applying Intentionality to Priority Need 
(Homelessness Order)

June 2023

carmarthenshire.gov.uk

Tudalen 29



 

 
Contents 
 
Summary………….………………………………………………... 1 
 
Recommendation ……………….………………………………... 1 
 
Introduction and Background ………………………………........ 2 
 
Intentionality Meaning and Purpose ..…………………………... 3 
 
Reasons for Keeping Intentionality…………………………….... 6 
 
Financial Implications …………….….…………………………... 7 
 
 
 

Tudalen 30



 1 

 
 
 
1.0 Under the Housing (Wales) Act 2014 (The Act), certain categories of people should be 

accepted as being in ‘priority need’ for homelessness assistance. Since the implementation 
of the Act there have been 10 such categories, with a new 11th category being added with 
effect from 24th October 2022 under the definition of  ‘street homeless’(listed within 4.1 of 
this report). 

 

1.1 Under ‘The Act’ individuals that meet the priority need test are also subject to an 
‘Intentionality test’ to determine whether the authority also has a duty to continue to 
provide temporary accommodation after 56 days, until such time that a suitable offer of 
permanent accommodation is made. 

 

1.2 Since March 2015, Authorities in Wales have had the option of deciding whether it 
disregards the intentionality test for any of the defined priority need categories. In March 
2015, Carmarthenshire County Council (CCC) decided to apply the intentionality test to the 
original 10 categories. 

 

1.3 This report sets out the background information and seeks Cabinet approval to also apply the 
intentionality test to the 11th priority need category - ‘street homeless’. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
2.0 Recommend approving the retention of intentionality for all 10 priority need categories 

listed under the Housing (Wales) Act 2014 and apply intentionality to the additional 11th 
category of Street Homeless. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Summary

Recommendation 

Tudalen 31



 2 

 
 
 
 
3.0 The Housing (Wales) Act 2014 came into force on 27th April 2015, replacing the Housing Act 

1996. 
 
3.1 Authorities apply the legislation (intentionality test) to consider whether a person 

presenting as homeless has done, or failed to do, something which could be considered to 
have caused the loss of their last settled accommodation and could therefore be deemed 
to have caused their homelessness ‘intentionally’. Where a person has become homeless 
intentionally, the Authority does not have a statutory duty to secure permanent 
accommodation for that person. 

 
3.2 From 1stJuly 2015, Councils in Wales have a choice and can decide which 

categories of Priority Need they will apply this definition to. 
 
3.3 Carmarthenshire’s Executive Board Member approved retaining intentionality in March 

2015 for the original 10 priority need categories (as set out in Housing Wales Act 2014). 
 
3.4 The Homelessness (Priority Need and Intentionality) (Wales) Regulations 2022 (“the 2022 

Regulations”) came into force on 24th October 2022. They have the effect of adding an 11th 

category which describes a person who has a priority need for accommodation to the pre-
existing ten categories identified within section 70 of the Housing (Wales) Act 2014 (“2014 
Act”) and is to be used when determining whether a duty is owed under section 68 and 75 
duties. 

 
3.5 The 2022 Regulations also specify an 11th category - Street Homeless, which is added to the 

specified categories listed in the Homelessness (Intentionality) (Specified Categories) 
(Wales) Regulations 2015. 

 
3.6 Regulations 2 and 3 of the 2022 Regulations state: 
 

Addition of further description of person having a priority need for 
accommodation under Part 2 of the Housing (Wales) Act 2014 

 
In section 70(1) of the Housing (Wales) Act 2014, after paragraph (j) insert - “(k) a person - 
(i) who is street homeless (within the meaning of section 71(2)), or 
(ii) with whom a person who falls within sub-paragraph (i) might reasonably be expected 

to reside.” 
 

Amendment of the Homelessness (Intentionality) (Specified Categories) (Wales) 
Regulations 2015 

 
In regulation 2 of the Homelessness (Intentionality) (Specified Categories) (Wales) 
Regulations 2015(1), after paragraph (j) insert - 

Introduction and Background

Tudalen 32



 3 

“(k) a person - 
(i) who is street homeless (within the meaning of section 71(2)), or 
(ii) with whom a person who falls within sub-paragraph (i) might reasonably be expected 

to reside.” 
 
3.7 The 2022 Regulations have the effect of adding a new description of a person who has a 

priority need i.e., a person who is ‘street homeless’ as defined by section 71(2) of the 2014 
Act. That definition defines ‘street homeless’ as follows: 

 
“in relation to a person, means that the person has no accommodation available for the 
person’s occupation in the United Kingdom or elsewhere, which the person - 
a) is entitled to occupy by virtue of an interest in it or by virtue of an order of a court, 
b) has an express or implied licence to occupy, or 
c) occupies as a residence by virtue of an enactment or rule of law giving the person the 

right to remain in occupation or restricting the right of another person to recover 
possession.” 

 
3.8 The 2022 Regulations also state that a person who might reasonably be expected to reside 

with a person who is street homeless (as defined by section 71(2) of the Housing (Wales) 
Act 2014) has a priority need. 

 
3.9 An applicant will not be ‘street homeless’ just because their living conditions are not 

satisfactory, for example, they are currently residing in accommodation which is unsuitable 
e.g. sofa surfing, or short-term accommodation which necessitates frequent moves 
between family and friends. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
4.0 The following are the prescribed categories of applicants that the Local Authority will 

have regard to when considering intentionality: 
 
The following persons have a priority need for accommodation: 
 
1. A pregnant woman or a person with whom she resides or might reasonably be 

expected to reside. 
 
2. A person with whom a dependent child resides or might reasonably be 

expected to reside. 
 

3. A person - 
(i) Who is vulnerable as a result of some special reason (for example: old age, 

physical or mental illness or physical or mental disability), or 
(ii) With whom a person who falls within sub-paragraph (i) resides or might 

reasonably be expected to reside 

Intentionality – Meaning and Purpose

Tudalen 33



 4 

 
4. A person - 
(i) Who is homeless or threatened with homelessness as a result of an emergency such 

as flood, fire, or other disaster, or 
(ii) With whom a person who falls within sub-paragraph (i) resides or might 

reasonably be expected to reside 
 

5. A person - 
(i) Who is homeless as a result of being subject to domestic abuse, or 
(ii) With whom a person who falls within sub-paragraph (i) resides (other than the 

abuser) or might reasonably be expected to reside 
 

6. A person - 
(i) Who is aged 16 or 17 when the person applies to a local housing authority for 

accommodation or help in obtaining or retaining accommodation, or 
(ii) With whom a person who falls within sub-paragraph (i) resides or might 

reasonably be expected to reside 
 

7. A person - 
(i) Who has attained the age of 18, when the person applies to a local housing authority for 

accommodation or help in obtaining or retaining accommodation, but not the age of 21, 
who is at particular risk of sexual or financial exploitation, or 

(ii) With whom a person who falls within sub-paragraph (i) resides (other than an 
exploiter or potential exploiter) or might reasonably be expected to reside 

 
8. A person – 
(i) Who has attained the age of 18, when the person applies to a local housing authority for 

accommodation or help in obtaining or retaining accommodation, but not the age of 21, 
who was looked after, accommodated or fostered at any time while under the age of 18, 
or 

(ii)    With whom a person who falls within sub-paragraph (i) resides or might 
reasonably be expected to reside 

 
9. A person - 
(i) Who has served in the regular armed forces of the Crown who has been 

homeless since leaving those forces, or 
(ii) With whom a person who falls within sub-paragraph (i) resides or might 

reasonably be expected to reside 
 

10. A person who has a local connection with the area of the local housing authority and 
who is vulnerable as a result of one of the following reasons:- 

(i)    Having served a custodial sentence within the meaning of section 76 of the 
Powers of Criminal Courts (Sentencing) Act 2000, 

(ii)   Having been remanded in or committed to custody by an order of a court, or 
(iii)  Having been remanded to youth detention accommodation under section 91(4) of the 

Legal Aid, Sentencing and Punishment of Offenders Act 2012, or a person with whom 
such a person resides or might reasonably be expected to reside. 

Tudalen 34



 5 

 
11. A person - 
(i) who is street homeless (within the meaning of section 71(2)), or 
(ii) with whom a person who falls within sub-paragraph (i) might reasonably be 

expected to reside.” 
 
 
4.1 Intentionality is a key measure used by the Housing Hwb Team to determine a homeless 

application and assists in ensuring that those applicants who have not caused their own 
homelessness, receive the service that they are entitled to. The new legislation however 
provides for authorities to have discretion as to which categories of Priority Need the 
test of intentionality may or may not be applied. 

 
4.2 The Housing (Wales) Act 2014 came into force on 27th April 2015, replacing the Housing 

Act 1996. The Welsh Government introduced the new Act and its provisions to ensure 
that people have access to a decent affordable home and that those who are at risk of 
becoming homeless receive appropriate help, with an emphasis on the prevention of 
homelessness. 

 
4.3 Authorities apply the legislation to consider whether or not a person presenting as 

homeless has done, or failed to do, something which could be considered to have caused 
the loss of their last settled accommodation and could, therefore, be deemed to have 
caused their homelessness ‘intentionally’. Where a person has become homeless 
intentionally, the Council does not have a statutory duty to secure permanent 
accommodation for that person. 

 
4.4 The Housing (Wales) Act 2014 states: 
 

“A person is intentionally homeless…. If the person deliberately does or fails to do 
anything in consequence of which the person ceases to occupy accommodation which is 
available for the person’s occupation and which it would have been reasonable for the 
person to continue to occupy”. 

 
Under sections 191(1) and 196(1) of the 1996 Housing Act, a person becomes homeless 
intentionally, if: 
 
i) The person deliberately does or fails to do anything in consequence of which the 

person ceases to occupy accommodation (or the likely result of which is that the 
person will be forced to leave accommodation). 

 
ii) The accommodation is available for the person’s occupation; and it would have 

been reasonable for the person to continue to occupy the accommodation. 
However, an act or omission made in good faith by someone who was unaware 
of any relevant fact must not be treated as deliberate. In addition, the new 
legislation makes specific provision for consideration to be given to whether a 
property is affordable to continue to occupy. 

 

Tudalen 35



 6 

4.5 Under Section 78 of the Housing Act (Wales) 2014, the Local Authority must consider the 
priority categories outlined in Section 70 of the Act (see 3.1). Authorities may decide 
whether to apply the test of intentionality and determine whether it wishes to apply the 
test of intentionality to all, some or none of these categories. Where it wishes to 
continue to apply the test of intentionality to all or some of these categories of person, it 
must give written notice of its decision to have regard to intentionality to the Welsh 
Ministers at least 14 days before it takes effect (Regulation 3). This Notice must also 
contain reasons for deciding to have regard to the category or categories specified. It 
must also, under Regulations 4 & 5, make provision to publicise a notice to this effect on 
the Council’s website and by posting a notice at the offices where applicants for help with 
homelessness are received. Further Regulation 6 provides that the decision may not be 
revised more than twice a year. 

 
4.6 There are some exceptions to the intentionality test. Section 75(3) ensures that the 

following categories of applicants will continue to be eligible for the section 75 duty even 
where a local authority is satisfied that they have been found intentionally homeless: 

 
• A pregnant woman; 
• A person with whom a dependent child resides; 
• A person who had not attained the age of 21 when the application for help was 

made; 
• A person who had attained the age of 21, but not the age of 25, when the 

application for help was made and who was looked after, accommodated or 
fostered at any time while under the age of 18 

 
However, section 75(3)(f)(i) limits this provision so that where someone has been found 
intentionally homeless twice in a five-year period, they would not be subject to the section 75 
duty. 

 
 
 
 
 
5.0 The use of intentionality is intended to discourage households from giving up 

accommodation which is suitable for their needs and available to them. It recognises the 
expectation that, where possible, people ought to take responsibility for their actions and 
ensures they do not behave in a way which could cause them to lose accommodation. 

 
5.1 Where an intentional homeless decision is made the Local Authority’s housing duties to 

that household are significantly reduced. In Carmarthenshire in 2019-20, 3% of 
homelessness decisions made, concluded that the applicant was intentionally homeless. 
Stats from 2020-22 would not provide an accurate reflection of this test, due to 
exceptions that were introduced in response to the Covid 19 pandemic. 

 
5.2 Intentionality remains a key issue in deciding whether or not an applicant is entitled to 

receive a service and potentially being accommodated in permanent or temporary 
accommodation, which has a significant resource implication. 

Reasons for Keeping Intentionality

Tudalen 36



 7 

5.3 By not retaining the test of intentionality, the Local Authority would have a duty to 
accommodate those who have carried out deliberate acts, the consequence of which has 
resulted in the loss of their home. This will have a significant resource implication for the 
local authority. Not retaining the test may also actually promote behaviour which leads 
to homelessness as shortcut for citizens to access alternative housing. 

 
5.4 If intentionality were not to be considered by the authority for the 11th priority need 

category, this may also encourage people to sleep rough for the occasional night (as there 
is no time limit within the definition of street homeless) in order to be able to access 
temporary accommodation more easily and be owed a full homelessness duty under 
section 75 of the HWA where the authority must secure permanent accommodation. 
This could result in unintended consequences for the authority, in light of the 
unprecedented demand for social housing. 

 
5.5 Whilst WG continue to support an “all in” approach and offer guidance to authorities to 

disregard the intentionality test, this has not been defined under legislation. By 
disregarding the intentionality test, the same homeless duty would apply to all homeless 
cases and no additional priority would be awarded to those who are assessed as being 
unintentionally homeless. This would create a level of unfairness. 

 
5.6 Where individuals are in priority need, but found to be intentionally homeless, the 

authority still has a duty to provide temporary accommodation for up to 56 days during 
which time there is a statutory duty to continue to provide help and assistance to secure 
permanent accommodation.  Unfortunately, due to the behaviour of some applicants we 
are unable to fulfil this duty as there is no suitable accommodation for them to be placed 
into.  This may impact the number of judicial reviews being made by third parties which 
would be at a significant cost to the local authority. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
6.0 If the intentionality rule is not applied to all categories of priority need, the Local 

Authority will have a duty to a higher proportion of applicants. 
 
6.1 If the intentionality rule is not applied to all categories of priority need, a statutory duty 

to provide temporary accommodation will apply beyond 56 days, until such time that 
suitable, permanent accommodation is secured. Given the current pressures on the 
sector, particularly in regard to the shortage of affordable single person accommodation, 
this may be a considerable time. 

 
6.2 This will mean that the authority’s costs for temporary accommodation will continue to 

increase. 
 
6.3 Increase in legal fees where we receive judicial review challenges when we are unable 

to meet our statutory obligations. 

Financial Implications

Tudalen 37



 8 

 
 

BACKGROUND 
PAPERS 

Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 
 
Housing (Wales) Act 
2014 

 
Code of Guidance for 
Local Authorities on the 
Allocation of 
Accommodation & 
Homelessness 

 
Code of Guidance - 
addendum 

 
Various 

implementation dates 
 

March 2016 
 
 
 
 

October 2022 

 
Housing (Wales) Act 2014 (legislation.gov.uk) 

 
 
allocation-of-accommodation-and-
homelessness- guidance-for-local-
authorities.pdf (gov.wales) 

 
 
 

code-of-guidance-addendum.pdf (gov.wales) 
 
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/201
9- 12/additional-guidance.pdf 

 

Tudalen 38

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/anaw/2014/7/contents/enacted
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-03/allocation-of-accommodation-and-homelessness-guidance-for-local-authorities.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-03/allocation-of-accommodation-and-homelessness-guidance-for-local-authorities.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-03/allocation-of-accommodation-and-homelessness-guidance-for-local-authorities.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-03/allocation-of-accommodation-and-homelessness-guidance-for-local-authorities.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2022-10/code-of-guidance-addendum.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-12/additional-guidance.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-12/additional-guidance.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-12/additional-guidance.pdf


October 2022   

PWYLLGOR CRAFFU CYMUNEDAU, CARTREFI AC ADFYWIO 
  

 28 MEDI 2023 
 

PWNC: 
ADRODDIAD DIWEDDARU - DYRANNU TAI CYMDEITHASOL 
BRYS YNGHYLCH RHOI'R POLISI DYRANNU NEWYDD AR 

WAITH (MONITRO) 
 

Y PWRPAS:   
Darparu i'r Pwyllgor Craffu yr adroddiad monitro ynghylch effaith rhoi'r Polisi Dyrannu Tai 
Cymdeithasol Brys ar waith a chymeradwyo’r amserlen i ddechrau ar y gwaith o ffurfioli’r 
Polisi a bwrw ymlaen ag ymgynghoriad ffurfiol.  
 

 
GOFYNNIR I'R PWYLLGOR CRAFFU:- 
 

1. Ystyried y data a ddarperir yn yr adroddiad monitro o ran adroddiad diweddaru 
Dyrannu Tai Cymdeithasol Brys ynghylch rhoi'r polisi dyrannu newydd ar waith; 

  
2. Rhoi adborth ar unrhyw wybodaeth ychwanegol neu fanwl sydd ei hangen ar gyfer yr 

adroddiad monitro chwarterol nesaf gan gofio rheolau'r Rheoliad Cyffredinol ar 
Ddiogelu Data; a 
 

3. Cymeradwyo’r amserlen i ddechrau ar y gwaith o ffurfioli’r Polisi a bwrw ymlaen ag 
ymgynghoriad ffurfiol.   
 
 

Y Rheswm/Y Rhesymau 
 
Yn ei gyfarfod a gynhaliwyd ar 26 Ionawr, 2023 gofynnodd y Pwyllgor Craffu am gael y 
wybodaeth ddiweddaraf ym mhob cyfarfod ynghylch effeithiolrwydd y newid. 
 
YR AELOD CABINET SY'N GYFRIFOL AM Y PORTFFOLIO:-  
Y Cynghorydd Linda Evans, Dirprwy Arweinydd a Deiliad y Portffolio Tai 
Y Gyfarwyddiaeth 
Cymunedau 
Enw Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth: 
Jonathan Morgan 
Awdur yr Adroddiad: 
Rachael Parkinson 
 

 
Swydd: 
 
Pennaeth Tai a Diogelu’r 
Cyhoedd 
 
Rheolwr Hwb Tai Dros Dro 

 
 
 
JMorgan@sirgar.gov.uk 
 
 
RParkinson@sirgar.gov.uk 
 

 

Tudalen 39

Eitem Rhif  6

mailto:JMorgan@carmarthenshire.gov.uk
mailto:RParkinson@sirgar.gov.uk


October 2022   

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
 

EMERGENCY SOCIAL HOUSING ALLOCATION UPDATE REPORT 
ON THE OPERATION OF THE NEW ALLOCATION POLICY 

(MONITORING) 
 

 
 
 
At its meeting held on the 20th February 2023 Cabinet considered the findings of the 
Communities, Homes, and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee Task & Finish Group to develop 
an Emergency Social Housing Allocations Policy for Carmarthenshire to address the 
unprecedented situation where the Council, as with all Welsh Local Authorities and 
Registered Social Landlords, was facing increased demand for social housing that was 
exceeding the level of supply.   
 
The Emergency Allocations Policy was approved by Cabinet at this meeting, together with the 
following recommendation: 
 
That the Scrutiny Committee receive updates at every meeting from officers on the 
effectiveness of the change; that the content of the update reports (attached) include data for 
the previous period referring to: 
 

o Proportion of properties directly matched and those advertised 
o Banding of Clients directly matched 
o Number of properties directly matched and advertised by each community connection 

area, type of property and landlord 
o Proportion of direct matches that were successful 
o Number of direct matches where the client requests a review of the allocation, and the 

outcome of those reviews 
o Number of direct matches where the client refuses the allocation but doesn’t request a 

review 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED ? YES  
 

 
 

Tudalen 40



October 2022   

 
IMPLICATIONS  

 

 
I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors / 
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this 
report : 
 
Signed:        Jonathan Morgan                     Head of Housing & Public Protection 
 

 
Policy, Crime 
& Disorder 
and 
Equalities 
 

Legal  Finance  ICT  Risk 
Management 
Issues  

Staffing 
Implications 

Physical 
Assets   

YES NONE  
 

YES  NONE  
 

YES  NONE YES 

 
1. Policy, Crime & Disorder and Equalities 

A thorough Equality Impact Assessment has been carried out.  

 
3.Finance   
Failure to respond to the current situation could result in significant financial pressures around 
the use of temporary accommodation and the inability to move households on to more 
permanent accommodation. 

 
 
5. Risk Management Issues 
Failure to implement the Policy may result in: 
 

• The overall housing system in the County “silting up” with little move-on opportunities to 
permanent accommodation; 

• Increased use of temporary, and more expensive accommodation, to meet housing need; 
and 

• Perception that we are not looking at more sustainable plans for the general homeless 
population in the County. 

 
6. Physical Assets   
Council housing will be used as solutions for temporary as well as permanent solutions. 
 

 
 

Tudalen 41



October 2022   

 
CABINET MEMBER  PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER(S) AWARE/CONSULTED  
 
YES 
 

Include any observations here 
 
 
The Emergency Policy better supports residents and 
improves the process for those in greatest housing 
need.  This monitoring report demonstrates the 
effectiveness of the way social housing is allocated in 
Carmarthenshire. 
 

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information 
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report: 
 
THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW      
 
Title of Document 
 

File Ref 
No. 

Locations that the papers are available for public inspection  

Report to Cabinet on 20th 
February, 2023 – 
Emergency Social 
Housing Allocations 
Policy 
 

 Emergency Allocation Policy - Final Draft - 26 01 23.pdf 
(gov.wales) 
 

Communities, Homes & 
Regeneration Scrutiny 
Task & Finish Report 

 Task and Finish report - Final.pdf (gov.wales) 
 

 
 

 

Tudalen 42

https://democracy.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/documents/s69827/Emergency%20Allocation%20Policy%20-%20Final%20Draft%20-%2026%2001%2023.pdf
https://democracy.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/documents/s69827/Emergency%20Allocation%20Policy%20-%20Final%20Draft%20-%2026%2001%2023.pdf
https://democracy.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/documents/s69826/Task%20and%20Finish%20report%20-%20Final.pdf


 

The Emergency Allocations 
Policy - Impact of Direct 
Matching

Outcomes July – August 2023

 
Housing Services Division 
September 2023

Tudalen 43



 

 

 
Contents 
 
Context and Recommendations ………………………………... 1 
 
Number of Properties Matched …………………………………. 2 
 
Matches by Band ……………………………………………….... 3 
 
Matches by Community Connection Ward, Property Type and 
Landlord ................................................................................... 3 
 
Definitions ………………….…………………………………….... 4 
 
Unsuitable Matches and Reviews ….…………………………... 6 
 
Housing Register Data ..…………………………………………. 7 
 
Policy Timeline ………....…………………………………………. 8 
 
  

Tudalen 44



 

 

 
 
 
At its meeting held on the 20th February 2023 Cabinet considered the findings of the 
Communities, Homes, and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee Task & Finish Group to 
develop an Emergency Social Housing Allocations Policy for Carmarthenshire to 
address the unprecedented situation where the Council, as with all Welsh Local 
Authorities and Registered Social Landlords, was facing increased demand for social 
housing that was exceeding the level of supply.   
 
The Emergency Allocations Policy was approved by Cabinet at this meeting, together 
with the following recommendation: 
 
That the Scrutiny Committee receive updates at every meeting from officers on the 
effectiveness of the change; that the content of the update reports (attached) include 
data for the previous period referring to: 
 

o Proportion of properties directly matched and those advertised 
o Banding of Clients directly matched 
o Number of properties directly matched and advertised by each community 

connection area, type of property and landlord 
o Proportion of direct matches that were successful 
o Number of direct matches where the client requests a review of the allocation, 

and the outcome of those reviews 
o Number of direct matches where the client refuses the allocation but doesn’t 

request a review 
 
This is the third report of data available for direct matching which covers from July 
2023 to August 2023.   
 
The data in this report highlights how this has impacted on the number of properties 
available to bid on for the wider housing register. 
 
 
 
 
 
Communities, Homes, And Regeneration Scrutiny Committee are asked to: 
 

1. Consider the data provided in the monitoring report of the Emergency Social 
Housing Allocation update report on the operation of the new allocation policy; 

  
2. Provide feedback on any additional or detailed information required for the 

next quarterly monitoring report being mindful of GDPR rules; and 
 

3. Approve the timeline to commence work formalising the Policy and proceed 
with formal consultation.   

 
  

Context

Recommendations

Tudalen 45



 

 

 
 
 
 
Graph 1. Properties Matched July 2023 – August 2023 
 

 
 
Properties Gone to Advert 39 
Properties Matched  121 

 
Graph 2. Properties directly matched v’s properties advertised. 
 

 
  

24%

76%

Properties Gone to Advert Properties Matched 

Direct Matching v's Properties Advertised

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

Oct 22 - Dec 22 Jan 23 - Mar 23 Apr 23 - Jun 23 July 23 - Aug 23 

Properties Matched Properties Advertised

Number of properties matched

Tudalen 46



 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Table 1. Matches By Community Connection Area 
 

Community Connection Area 
No of 

Matches 
Amman Valley 6 
Ammanford 8 
Carmarthen 25 
Gwendraeth 18 
Llandovery/Llandeilo 9 
Llanelli East 11 
Llanelli North/Rural 6 
Llanelli Town 18 
Llanelli West 10 
Rural Central 2 
Rural North 5 
Rural West 3 

 
  

Exceptional 
Circumstan

ces 

Band A 
Section 75 

Band A 
Section 75 

TA Move On

Other Band 
A

Band A - 
Section 73

Band A - 
Section 66

Other Band 
B

July 23 - Aug 23 2 39 12 10 16 7 35

Exceptional Circumstances 

Band A Section 75 

Band A Section 75 TA Move On

Other Band A

Band A - Section 73

Band A - Section 66

Other Band B

0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35 40 45

Graph 3. Matches by Banding

Matches by Band

Matches by Community Connection Ward, Property Type and 
Landlord

Tudalen 47



 

 

Table 2. Matches By Property Type 
 

Property Type 
No of 

Matches 
1 Bedroom Bungalow 3 
1 Bedroom Flat 23 
1 Bedroom Flat >55's 6 
1 Bedroom House 2 
1 bedroom Flat Extra Care 2 
Bedsit 0 
Shared Housing 0 
2 Bedroom Bungalow 19 
2 Bedroom Flat 10 
2 Bedroom Flat > 55 0 
2 Bedroom Maisonette 0 
2 Bedroom House 18 
3 Bedroom House 38 
4 Bedroom House 0 

 
Table 3. Matches By Landlord 
 

Landlord Stock No of 
Matches 

Bro Myrddin 986 9 
Caredig 600 7 
Carmarthenshire Council 9324 93 
Pobl 1425 8 
Wales and West 152 2 
Western Valleys - 1 
Simple Lettings 134 1 

 
 
 
 
Homeless Duties within the Homeless (Wales) Act 2014 
 
Sec 66 – Prevention 
 
Once the household has been assessed and found to be at threat of homelessness, 
a duty to assist that household to try and prevent homelessness by taking all 
‘reasonable steps’.  Some solutions such as mediation, support with debt 
advice/mortgage/rent arrears, security measures put in place, advocacy, private 
rented accommodation, social housing, prevention fund. 
 
 
 

Definitions for the purpose of the report

Tudalen 48



 

 

Sec 73 – Relief 
 
Once the household has been assessed and found to be homeless, a duty to assist 
the household in resolving their homelessness.   
 
Sec 75 – Final duty 
 
Once the duty under Section 73 has ended, if the household is homeless, has a local 
connection and fits into a priority need group the authority has a duty to house.  This 
accommodation must be for a minimum of 6 months. 
 
Temporary Accommodation 
 
If a household is homeless or at risk of becoming homeless, they apply to the council 
for help. We may provide temporary accommodation; this can sometimes be referred 
to as ‘emergency’ accommodation or ‘interim’ accommodation’.   
 
We provide different kinds of temporary accommodation. Some of which is provided 
by the Council, private landlords and commissioned rooms in Hotels and Bed and 
Breakfast that we have the responsibility for arranging and allocating. 
 
At the time of writing this report (11 09 23) there are no households with children in 
Bed and Breakfast or Hotels.  For families these are used in emergency situations 
only until such time as we can arrange more suitable temporary accommodation. 
 
The impact of the direct matching has enabled us to reduce the time that households 
spend in temporary accommodation by 19 days for single people and 16 days for 
families.  Although this demonstrates an improvement there are still substantial 
challenges ahead in reducing the use and length of stay in temporary 
accommodation. 
 
No Preference Group 
 
Applicants are placed in a Band depending on their housing need identified through 
the housing assessment.  Applicants will fall under the ‘No preference group’ if they:  

• Have the financial resources available to meet their housing costs. 
• Have been guilty, or a member of their household has been guilty, of 

unacceptable behaviour serious enough to make them unsuitable to be a 
tenant of the Council.  

• Do not have a local connection to Carmarthenshire, as defined at section 81 
of the Housing (Wales) Act 2014.  A person has a local connection with the 
area because: 

o the person is, or in the past was, normally resident there, and the 
residence is or was of the person’s own choice. 

o the person is employed there.  
o of family associations. 
o unless they are exempt because of special circumstances (i.e., fleeing 

domestic abuse or violence, moving to receive or provide care to 
someone who has a local connection) 

Tudalen 49



 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Reasons for unsuitable matches: 
 

• Change of Circumstances i.e., no longer needed accommodation, other 
needs we were unaware of. 

• Property not suitable to meet their needs – medical conditions, family make 
up. 

• Property topography unsuitable. 
• Refusing properties after initial verbal offer – after viewing not happy with 

property offered i.e. don’t like property or area, no off street parking 
• Band B refusals – applicants can have 2 reasonable offers 

 
  

Oct 22 - Dec 22 Jan 23 - Mar 23 Apr 23 - Jun 23 July 23 - Aug 23
Unsuitable Matches 62 52 63 33
Reviews 5 3 4 0

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

Graph 4. Unsuitable Matches and Reviews

Unsuitable matches and reviews

Tudalen 50



 

 

 
 
 
Table 4. Number of Households on the Housing Register 
 

Band 
Applications 

09/10/22 
Applications 

12/04/23 
Applications 

13/06/23 
Applications 

28/08/23 

Band A 607 830 831 581 
Band B 1197 926 887 1077 

Band C 
(Registered Only) 

2610 2463 2488 2708 

No Preference 
Group - 332 322 374 

Total 4414 4551 4528 4740 
 
  

Housing Register Data

Tudalen 51



 

 

 
 
The Emergency Allocations Policy has been operational since April 2023.  There has 
been regular monitoring of the impact of the Policy with a view of using the data and 
feedback to commence work in formalising the wider Allocations Policy. 
 
Below outlines a proposed timeline of the work that will be undertaken to formally 
review the impact of the Emergency Policy, gather feedback and suggestions for 
improvement and carry out formal consultation in line with the guidance outlined in 
the Code of Guidance for Local Authorities on the Allocation of Accommodation and 
Homelessness 2016. 
 
November 2023  • Commence Work to Review Data and Feedback 

from Emergency Allocations Policy 
• Prepare detailed plan 

December 2023 Review and Finalise: 
• Accessible Housing Register Policy 
• Extra Care Policy 

January 2024 • Prepare draft Allocations Policy for Consultation 
• Prepare Awareness Material 
• Pre-Consultation Meeting with Scrutiny 

February 2024 – 
April 2024 

12 Week Consultation Period to include: 
• Local Members 
• Wider Public Consultation 
• Stakeholders 

May 2024 • Analyse feedback and Prepare Final Policy 
• Legal – Barrister Checks 
• Final Version for Political Process 

 
June 2024 • DMT – 11th June 2024 

• CMT – 20th June 2024 
 

July 2024 • Communities, Homes & Regen Scrutiny – 8th July 
2024 

 
September 2024 • Pre-Cabinet – 2nd September 2024 

• Cabinet – 16th September 2024 
 

October 2024 • Council – 9th October 2024 
 

November 2024 • Members Session  
• Staff Training  

December 2024 • Policy Live 
 
 
 

Policy Timeline

Tudalen 52



 

Y PWYLLGOR CRAFFU  
CYMUNEDAU, CARTREFI AC ADFYWIO 

28 MEDI 2023  
    

Y Pwnc: 
 STRATEGAETH HAMDDEN, DIWYLLIANT, A HAMDDEN AWYR AGORED  

 
Y Pwrpas:  
Cyflwyno Strategaeth 10 mlynedd newydd ar gyfer Hamdden, Diwylliant, a 
Hamdden Awyr Agored ar gyfer y Sir. 
 

GOFYNNIR I’R PWYLLGOR CRAFFU:- 
 

• Adolygu ac asesu’r wybodaeth yn yr Adroddiad sy’n darparu’r cyfeiriad 
strategol ar gyfer y gwasanaeth wrth symud ymlaen, gan nodi: 

 
- Yr ymgynghoriad a gynhaliwyd hyd yma gan aelodau, rhanddeiliaid a’r 

cyhoedd 
- bod y ddogfen derfynol yn cyd-fynd â pholisïau strategol cenedlaethol 

a chorfforaethol 
 

Y Rhesymau:  
 

• Llunio barn am faterion sydd i'w cyflwyno gerbron y Cabinet 
 

YR AELOD O'R CABINET  SY'N GYFRIFOL AM Y PORTFFOLIO: 
 
Cynghorydd Hazel Evans: Adfywio, Hamdden, Diwylliant a Thwristiaeth 
 
Y Gyfarwyddiaeth: Adran 
Gymunedol 
Enw Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth: 
 
Awdur yr Adroddiad: Ian Jones 
 

 
Swyddi: Pennaeth Hamdden 
 

 
Rhifau ffôn: 01267 228309 
 
Cyfeiriadau E-bost: 
IJones@sirgar.gov.uk 
 

 

Tudalen 53

Eitem Rhif  7



 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
 

LEISURE, CULTURE, AND OUTDOOR RECREATION STRATEGY 

 
PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
The strategy document has been developed building on insights and consultation with 
members, key stakeholders, and the public through an online consultation exercise. This 
document provides a framework for the service to deliver the strategically aligned Leisure, 
Culture, and Outdoor Recreation Strategy for the next 10 years.  
 
The strategy answers three basic questions: 
 

- Where has the service come from? 
- Where is it now? 
- Where is it going? 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
Purpose of service: Leisure, Culture and Outdoor Recreational services help create places 
where people want to live, work and visit. They play a vital part in public health and well-being 
whilst developing cultural identity and community cohesion.  
 
The service Strategy aims to: 

• Ensure we become a more integrated and integral service, fundamental to delivering on 
corporate and national outcomes; 

• Ensure everybody has access to Leisure, Cultural and Outdoor Recreation services; 
• Ensure every child is on a path to an active, healthy, engaged life; 
• Get more people engaged in thriving, caring, active communities; 
• Develop a stronger Carmarthenshire Cultural identity; 
• Create a healthier Carmarthenshire; 
• Make Carmarthenshire a better place to live, work and visit; 
• Ensure people look after and make better use of our outdoor environment; 
• Make the service more efficient and cost effective, allowing for pro-active re-investment 

in people’s health and well-being; 
• Support a stronger, more prosperous, self-sustaining economy. 

 
DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? YES (Presentation slides) 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 54



 

IMPLICATIONS 

 
1.Policy, Crime and Disorder   
  
The purpose of this document is to align with national, corporate, and key stakeholder 
objectives to deliver an integrated Leisure, Culture, and Outdoor Recreation Strategy for 
Carmarthenshire for the next 10 years. 
 
Integrated impact assessments form part of this work, including those focussed on changes 
to specific service direction for the final strategy.  

 
3.Finance 
 
The strategy outlines a vision, an ambition, and an intent for the service, recognising that 
no additional resource above existing revenue and capital budgets are committed. The 
reference to future investment would be subject to separate funding bids, and / or may be 
delivered via external resources, or possibly using invest to save principles.   
 
7.Physical Assets 
 
The strategy recognises the importance of developing a service asset management plan 
aligned with the corporate asset management plan for the authority.  
 

 
  

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors / 
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with 
this report: 
 

Signed:    Ian Jones                                                               Head of Leisure                            

 
Policy, Crime & 
Disorder and 
Equalities 

Legal 
 

Finance 
 

ICT 
 

Risk 
Management 
Issues 
 

 

Staffing 
Implications 

 

Physical 
Assets  

 

YES NONE 
 

YES  NONE 
 

NONE 
 

NONE 
 

YES 
 

Tudalen 55



 

CABINET MEMBER  PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER(S) AWARE/CONSULTED  

YES 

Cllr Hazel Evans  

 
Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information 
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report: 
 
THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW      
 
Title of Document 
 

File Ref No. Locations that the papers are available for public inspection  

Leisure Strategy 2008-
13 

 Leisure Service online files 

 
 

Tudalen 56



Y Strategaeth Hamdden, Diwylliant a Hamdden Awyr Agored 

2023 - 2033

T
udalen 57



• Gwasanaeth mwy integredig ac annatod, sy'n sylfaenol i gyflawni canlyniadau 
corfforaethol a chenedlaethol

• Pawb yn cael mynediad i'n gwasanaethau Hamdden, Diwylliannol ac Awyr 
Agored

• Pob plentyn ar y llwybr i fywyd egnïol, iach, cysylltiedig 
• Mwy o bobl yn rhan o gymunedau ffyniannus, gofalgar, egnïol
• Hunaniaeth Ddiwylliannol gryfach Sir Gaerfyrddin
• Sir Gaerfyrddin iachach 
• Lle gwell i fyw, gweithio ac ymweld ag ef
• Pobl yn gofalu am ein hamgylchedd awyr agored a gwneud gwell defnydd 

ohono
• Gwasanaeth mwy effeithlon, cost effeithiol, sy'n ein galluogi ni i ail-

fuddsoddi'n weithredol yn iechyd a llesiant pobl
• Economi gryfach, fwy llewyrchus, hunangynhaliol

SUT OLWG ALLAI FOD ARNI YN 2033?

T
udalen 58



Penderfyniad i 
Ddatblygu 

Strategaeth 

•Hydref 2021                  - Penderfyniad i ddatblygu Strategaeth newydd

Datblygu 
Fframwaith 

Strategol

•Chwefror - Mai 2022     -  Ymgynghoriad Mewnol Cychwynnol: Pwyllgor Craffu Hamdden, Tîm yr Uwch-arweinwyr, timau Rheoli Hamdden
•Mehefin                          -  Cyflwyno Fframwaith Strategol Drafft i Dîm Rheoli'r Adran
•Medi – Tachwedd          -  Cyflwyno'r Fframwaith Strategol Drafft i'r Tîm Rheoli Corfforaethol, Rhag-Gyfarfod Y Cabinet a Pwyllgor Craffu

Ymgynghori â 
Phartneriaid 

Allanol

• Ionawr – Ebrill 2023        -  Ymgynghoriad allanol ynghylch y Fframwaith Strategol Drafft i Randdeiliaid a Phartneriaid
•Gwanwyn/Haf         -  Ymgynghoriad Allanol gyda'r Cyhoedd, Defnyddwyr Gwasanaeth a chlybiau / grwpiau lleol             

Ymgynghori â'r 
Aelodau

•Medi                        -  Cyflwyno’r draft terfynol i’r Aelod Cabinet
•Medi/Hydref                    -  Cyflwyniad i Rhag-Gyfarfod y Cabinet 

Penderfyniad y 
Cyngor

•Hydref                              -   Cymeradwyaeth y Cabinet  
•Tachwedd 2023              -   Gweithredu’r Strategaeth 

AMSERLEN A PHROSES AR GYFER DATBLYGU'R STRATEGAETH NEWYDD 

T
udalen 59



STRWYTHUR A CHYNNWYS Y CYFLWYNIAD

• Ein Taith 2007 - 2022 

• Y Gwasanaeth Hamdden heddiw
• Map Rhanddeiliaid
• Aliniad Strategol y Gwasanaeth
• Data gwybodaeth / tueddiadau sy'n dylanwadu ar y Strategaeth
• Ymgynghoriad Rhanddeiliaid Mewnol – adborth hyd yma

Lle fuon ni?

• Themâu sy'n dod i'r amlwg yn sgil yr Ymgynghoriad Mewnol 
• Fframwaith Strategol
• Blaenoriaethau'r Gwasanaeth Hamdden
• Gweledigaeth ar gyfer 2033 - Sut olwg sydd ar lwyddiant?

Ble rydym ni 
nawr?

I ble rydyn ni'n 
mynd? T

udalen 60



Cyhoeddwyd 
y 

Strategaeth 
Hamdden 

gyntaf 
(2007) 

Llywodraeth 
Leol yn 
dechrau 
cyfnod o 
lymder 

(2009/10+)

Buddsoddiad 
cyfalaf 

strategol 
mewn 

cyfleusterau
(2017-22)

Trosglwyddo 
Llyfrgelloedd

, 
Amgueddfey

dd ac 
Archifau i'r 

Gwasanaeth
au Hamdden 

(2012) 

Ailstrwythuro
'r gweithlu i 

gefnogi 
darpariaeth a 
pherfformiad 

mwy 
strategol

(2017-19)

Adolygu 
opsiynau 
darparu 

gwasanaethau
:

model 
darparu 

mewnol wedi'i 
gymeradwyo

(2016)

Boddhad 
cwsmeriaid a 
lefelau incwm 
yn cynyddu'n 
gyson hyd at 
y pandemig
(2017-20)

Trosglwyddo 
Asedau 
(2017)

Ffocws a 
buddsoddiad 
i yrru incwm 

a sicrhau 
effeithlonrw

ydd
(2017) 

Gwasanaeth yn 
adfer o'r 

pandemig, gan 
gyflymu 

trawsnewid 
digidol arloesol 

a 
gwasanaethau 

ar-lein 
(2020-22)

Angen 
strategaeth 
Hamdden 
newydd
(2022+)

O BLE Y DAETHON NI? 2007 - 2022

T
udalen 61



Pwrpas y gwasanaeth: Mae gwasanaethau hamdden, diwylliant a hamdden awyr agored yn helpu i greu lleoedd lle mae 
pobl eisiau byw, gweithio ac ymweld â nhw. Maent yn chwarae rhan hanfodol ym maes iechyd cyhoeddus a llesiant wrth 
ddatblygu hunaniaeth ddiwylliannol a chydlyniant cymunedol. 

• Chwaraeon a Hamdden Actif    -      Cyfleusterau Dan Do / Awyr Agored, Tîm Datblygu Chwaraeon Cymunedol Actif, Tîm Iechyd a 
Ffitrwydd

• Gwasanaethau Diwylliannol           -      Theatrau, Archifau, Orielau, Llyfrgelloedd, Amgueddfeydd, a'r Celfyddydau
• Hamdden Awyr Agored     -      Parciau Gwledig, Safleoedd Arfordirol Strategol, Gwarchodfeydd Natur Lleol, ac Addysg Awyr Agored

Sefyllfa 'cyflwr sefydlog'
o Gwariant: Mae CSC yn gwario tua £18.01m ar Hamdden, Hamdden Awyr Agored a Diwylliant bob blwyddyn (ffigurau gwirioneddol 21/22)
o Incwm: tua £10.33m y flwyddyn ar draws y gwasanaeth
o Costau net: £7.68m y flwyddyn 
o Cyfradd Adennill Weithredol: 57.36% (Incwm/Gwariant)
o Cost y pen o'r boblogaeth: £40.40 (poblogaeth 190,073)
o Gweithlu: Mae'r gwasanaeth yn cyflogi 162 o staff llawn amser, 138 o staff rhan-amser a 146 o staff achlysurol. 
o Costau ynni: tua £859k y flwyddyn (dŵr, trydan / nwy ac ati)
o Ymweliadau defnyddwyr: Cyn covid roedd y gwasanaeth yn cynnal dros 3 miliwn o ymweliadau defnyddwyr y flwyddyn. 
o Gwerth Gymdeithasol: Mae Gwasanaethau Chwaraeon a Hamdden Actif yn cynhyrchu gwerth cymdeithasol o dros £5m y flwyddyn ar gyfer 

y £2m (net) a fuddsoddir. Mae hyn yn cynnwys: dros £4m o fudd i lesiant cyffredinol; ac £800k o fuddion iechyd uniongyrchol yn gysylltiedig 
â lleihau'r risg o strociau, canser, diabetes, iselder ac ymweliadau cyffredinol â meddygon teulu

BLE'R YDYM NI NAWR? Y Gwasanaeth Hamdden heddiw 

T
udalen 62



Gwasanaeth Hamdden – sefyllfa 'fyw'

• Rhagolygon ariannol: rhagwelir setliadau anodd dros y blynyddoedd nesaf. Bydd angen i'r holl wasanaethau yn unigol, ac ar y cyd, roi 
tystiolaeth o well gwerth cymdeithasol ac ariannol parhaus. Gwerthoedd cyfredol isod, gyda ffigurau gwerth cymdeithasol sylfaenol i'w pennu 
ar gyfer gwasanaethau Hamdden Diwylliannol ac Awyr Agored. 

• Chwaraeon a Hamdden Actif    - Cost y pen £ 11.10;    Cyfradd Adennill Weithredol 71.66%;     Gwerth Cymdeithasol £5m
• Gwasanaethau Diwylliannol           - Cost y pen £ 25.88;    Cyfradd Adennill Weithredol 20.18%;     Gwerth Cymdeithasol £i'w gadarnhau
• Hamdden Awyr Agored     - Cost y pen £   1.18;    Cyfradd Adennill Weithredol 93.83%;     Gwerth Cymdeithasol £i'w gadarnhau

o Darpariaeth yn y dyfodol: Nid dewis o un gwasanaeth o flaen y llall - mae pob un o'r gwasanaethau hyn yn dod â gwerth cymdeithasol i Sir 
Gaerfyrddin, ond maent yn wahanol o ran eu gallu i weithredu'n 'fasnachol' - traws-gymorthdaliadau yn egwyddor allweddol

o Heriau gwariant: Mae gennym lawer o asedau adeiledig ar draws y portffolio, ac mae'r rhain yn costio. Mae costau ynni yn effeithio'n 
aruthrol ar ein hadeiladau mawr, ac mae’r costau wedi cynyddu 150-185% dros y blynyddoedd diwethaf a’r rhai arfaethedig. Mae defnyddio 
llai o ynni a gwneud y defnydd gorau o (unrhyw) asedau presennol yn allweddol er mwyn wynebu'r heriau hyn. Dewisiadau amgen symudol / 
ar-lein / wedi'u ffrydio i'w hystyried 

o Gweithlu: heriau recriwtio a chadw, yn enwedig mewn rolau blaen tŷ arbenigol mewn safleoedd gwledig e.e. hyfforddwyr nofio / 
atgyfeiriadau ymarfer corff.  Heriau tymhorol hefyd.

o Heriau incwm: Mae £4.5m o'r incwm cyffredinol o £10.3m ar gyfer y gwasanaeth yn dod o Iechyd a Ffitrwydd, a Gweithgareddau Dŵr. Roedd 
yr incwm presennol ar 90-100% o'r cyfnod cyn covid (ac yn cynyddu). Mae gweithgareddau newydd yn dod ar-lein e.e. Caban ym 
Mhentywyn.

o Datblygu cynaliadwy: Mae dull adolygu a gwella parhaus yn allweddol i fodelu darparu gwasanaethau cynaliadwy yn y dyfodol – sicrhau 
canlyniadau gwell gyda llai o adnoddau.  

BLE'R YDYM NI NAWR? Grym y farchnad 

T
udalen 63



Hamdden, 
Diwylliant a 
Hamdden 

Awyr 
Agored

Gwasanaetha
u'r Cyngor 

e.e. Addysg, 
Adfywio, 

Twristiaeth, 
TG ac ati

Y Sector 
Masnachol

Bwrdd 
Iechyd 

Hywel Dda

Iechyd 
Cyhoeddus 

Cymru

Partneriaet
hau a 

Fforymau 
Rhanbartho

l

Chwaraeon 
Cymru a 
Chyrff 

Llywodraethu 
CenedlaetholAelodau

Y Sector 
Gwirfoddol

Cyngor 
Celfyddyda

u Cymru

Defnyddwy
r terfynol / 
y cyhoedd

Cyfoeth 
Naturiol 
Cymru 

Llywodraeth 
Cymru

RHANDDEILIAID ALLWEDDOL

T
udalen 64



Aliniad Strategol y Gwasanaeth

Hamdden, Diwylliant a Hamdden Awyr Agored

Gwella ein Hiechyd a'n Llesiant..… Gwella ein Diwylliant a'n Hunaniaeth

Yr Adran Gymunedol

Helpu Cymunedau i Ffynnu... Galluogi Bywydau Iachach 

Cyngor Sir Caerfyrddin

Mae'n rhaid byw bywyd, gadewch i ni ddechrau'n dda, a heneiddio'n dda, mewn amgylchedd 
iach, diogel a llewyrchus 

Deddf Llesiant Cenedlaethau’r Dyfodol 2015

T
udalen 65



DATA A THUEDDIADAU CORFFORAETHOL PRESENNOL SY'N DYLANWADU AR Y STRATEGAETH

Gordewdra yn ystod 
Plentyndod

• Mae amcanestyniadau yn awgrymu y bydd cynnydd o ran tueddiadau gordewdra yn ystod plentyndod, gyda'r ffigurau'n dangos mai bechgyn 
rhwng 2 a 15 oed sy'n wynebu'r risg fwyaf.

• Sir Gaerfyrddin sydd â'r  lefelau uchaf o blant dros bwysau neu’n ordew yng Nghymru gyda 31.4%  o blant 4-5 oed dros bwysau neu'n ordew,   
(Cyf: Rhaglen Mesur Plant Cymru 2021/22, Iechyd Cyhoeddus Cymru).

Profiad Niweidiol yn ystod 
Plentyndod

• Mae gan Brofiadau Niweidiol yn ystod Plentyndod effaith niweidiol ar iechyd a llesiant gydol oes. 
• Mae plant sy'n byw ar aelwydydd heb waith yn fwy tebygol o gael Profiadau Niweidiol yn ystod Plentyndod. Mae 8.7% o blant yn Sir Gaerfyrddin 

yn byw mewn aelwydydd heb waith
        (Cyf: Cynllun Sir Gaerfyrddin 21/22)

Trechu Tlodi • Yn ôl y diffiniad, gellir dweud bod 33.8% (27,691) o aelwydydd Sir Gaerfyrddin yn byw mewn tlodi, y 13eg uchaf yng Nghymru (Cyfartaledd Cymru 
yw 32.9%).

• Mae'n bosibl bod Pandemig COVID-19 wedi effeithio'n fwy sylweddol ar y cymunedau mwyaf difreintiedig. (Cyf: Cynllun Sir Gaerfyrddin 21/22)

Creu Mwy o Swyddi a 
Thwf

• Mae darparu swyddi diogel gyda chyflog da i bobl leol yn ganolog i bopeth yr ydym yn ceisio'i gyflawni. Mae cynyddu cyflogadwyedd yn hanfodol i 
drechu tlodi a lleihau anghyfartaledd ac yn cael effaith sylweddol ar ein hiechyd a'n gallu i fyw mewn cymdeithas.  (Cyf: Cynllun Sir Gaerfyrddin 
21/22)

Helpu Pobl i Fyw Bywydau 
Iach 

• Mae bwlch sylweddol rhwng disgwyliad oes a disgwyliad oes iach. Yn Sir Gaerfyrddin, mae'r disgwyliad oes iach i ddynion a menywod yn is na 
chyfartaledd Cymru sef 65.3 a 66.7 o flynyddoedd. (Cyf: Cynllun Sir Gaerfyrddin 21/22)

Cydlyniant Cymunedol • Dim ond hanner (51.5%) trigolion Sir Gaerfyrddin sy'n teimlo eu bod yn byw mewn cymunedau cydlynus, lle mae pobl yn trin ei gilydd gyda 
pharch ac ystyriaeth, lle mae pobl o wahanol gefndiroedd yn cyd-dynnu'n dda, a lle mae pobl yn teimlo eu bod yn perthyn i'w hardal leol.  (Cyf: 
Cynllun Sir Gaerfyrddin 21/22)

Cefnogi Pobl Hŷn i 
heneiddio yn dda a chadw 
urddas

• Mae rhagamcaniadau cyfredol yn awgrymu bod poblogaeth pobl dros 65 sy'n byw yn Sir Gaerfyrddin yn tyfu ac erbyn 2030 bydd yn cynyddu 60%.
• Mae'n hanfodol inni osod seiliau cadarn i ddiogelu at y dyfodol argaeledd  gwasanaethau sy'n hybu ac yn cefnogi llesiant parhaus ac annibyniaeth 
ein poblogaeth hŷn sy'n fregus. (Cyf: Cynllun Sir Gaerfyrddin 21/22) 

Gofalu am yr Amgylchedd 
Heddiw – Ar Gyfer Yfory

• Mae'r Amgylchedd Naturiol yn elfen greiddiol o ddatblygu cynaliadwy. Mae Deddf Amgylchedd (Cymru) 2016 yn ymestyn y ddyletswydd sydd ar 
gyrff cyhoeddus i gynnal gwella bioamrywiaeth chynyddu cryfder ecosystemau (Cyf: Cynllun Sir Gaerfyrddin 21/22

T
udalen 66



Canfyddiad y Gwasanaeth Hamdden, Diwylliant a Hamdden Awyr Agored (LCOR)

• Mae'r gwasanaeth yn cael ei werthfawrogi, mae pobl yn ymddiried ynddo a'i barchu 

• Mae'n cystadlu'n dda fel gwasanaeth anstatudol

• Mae hyder yn y rheolwyr 

• Mae Safleoedd Mawr (gan gynnwys Pentre Awel pan fydd yn weithredol) wedi eu dosbarthu'n dda ledled y Sir   

• Mae gwasanaethau wedi goroesi llymder a'r pandemig

• Mae incwm (cyn Covid) yn codi – gostyngiad mewn cymorthdaliadau cyhoeddus / dangos gwytnwch ariannol

• Dim awydd i gael darpariaeth allanol e.e. Ymddiriedolaeth neu Weithredwr Trydydd Parti

• Cyfraniad hanfodol at adferiad economaidd (ar ôl Covid), (parhad) adfywio a ffyniant yn y dyfodol

• Iechyd a Llesiant dinasyddion o bwysigrwydd uchel

• Mae buddsoddiad cyfalaf wedi'i gynllunio'n dda (yn strategol), yn cael ei reoli'n dda ac mae'n cael effaith gadarnhaol ar 
ddefnyddwyr a thwf

• Teimlad cyffredinol o falchder a brwdfrydedd i wneud gwahaniaeth i fywydau pobl

• Ail-strwythuro'r gweithlu wedi gwella'r ddarpariaeth a pherfformiad

• Gweithio’n dda gyda gwasanaethau llesiant corfforaethol

• Gwasanaeth wedi perfformio yn ystod y pandemig ac mae'n gwella'n dda

• Gwersi wedi'u o'r pandemig – cyflymu dulliau arloesol ac agweddau ar ddigidoleiddio

YMGYNGHORIAD - YR ARGRAFF O'R GWASANAETH

T
udalen 67



• Canolbwyntio ar werthoedd cymdeithasol a phoblogaeth – gwella iechyd meddwl a llesiant corfforol sy'n arwain at iechyd gydol oes (gwell), gan gael 
effaith gadarnhaol ar iechyd ac adfywio economaidd (ac adferiad ôl-Covid)

• Parhau i gyfrannu at gyfeiriad corfforaethol ac ychwanegu gwerth at amcanion corfforaethol CSC – Athroniaeth Un Tîm

• Helpu i leihau lefelau gordewdra yn ystod plentyndod

• Cyfrannu at fynd i'r afael â thlodi - rhaid sicrhau bod gan bobl mewn tlodi fynediad at wasanaethau

• Risgiau sy'n gysylltiedig â chostau ynni cynyddol ar gyfer cyfleusterau a'r gwasanaeth yn gyffredinol / ymwybyddiaeth o'r agenda werdd a thargedau 

• Costau byw yn cynyddu i ddefnyddwyr gwasanaeth presennol ac yn y dyfodol – polisïau codi tâl a phrisio cymdeithasol yn allweddol, nodwyd 
materion yn dilyn ymgynghori cyhoeddus

• Sut i ymgysylltu â phoblogaeth sy'n heneiddio a'i chefnogi

• Datblygu dulliau o gysylltu â chymunedau gwledig a'u cefnogi

• Helpu i gefnogi cymunedau i fod yn fwy cydlynus ac i ffynnu 

• Mae angen tystiolaeth bod talwyr treth yn gwerthfawrogi'r gwasanaeth ac mae'n bodloni eu hanghenion a'u disgwyliadau

• Parhau i 'fuddsoddi i arbed' a datblygu'r cynnig

• Gwelliant parhaus ar ffocws cwsmeriaid, darparu gwasanaethau a chysondeb safonau ar draws y gwasanaeth 

• Heriau gydag ystwythder y gweithlu presennol / recriwtio ôl-Covid - sut olwg sydd ar weithlu'r dyfodol?

• Sicrhau bod y gwasanaeth yn parhau i arloesi e.e. darparu rhaglenni, technoleg a digidoli, gwella cyfleusterau ac 'agenda gwyrdd', cydbwyso:- 
Masnachadwyedd/Effeithlonrwydd yn erbyn Cymdeithasol/Cydraddoldeb/Amrywiaeth/Cynhwysiant

• Heriau gweithio mewn rhai adeiladau rhestredig, rhai sy'n dirywio, neu stoc sy'n heneiddio, ac mae ymgynghori cyhoeddus yn amlygu’r dyhead am 
gyfleusterau gwell

• Cydnabod systemau archebu gwahanol, systemau casglu data a chofnodi ar draws y gwasanaeth

YMGYNGHORIAD - HERIAU I'R GWASANAETH

T
udalen 68



• Tîm Sir Gaerfyrddin – cefnogi / cryfhau / ychwanegu gwerth at y strategaeth gorfforaethol a'r brand, ychwanegu gwerth a'i wreiddio mewn 
gwasanaethau statudol craidd e.e. addysg, gwasanaethau cymdeithasol, twristiaeth, economi, amgylchedd ac ati.

• Dod yn eiriolwyr pwerus dros y gwasanaeth a dathlu cyflawniadau pobl a'r Cyngor (adrodd stori)

• Potensial ar gyfer buddsoddiad cyfalaf i'r gwasanaeth yn y dyfodol, o dan arweiniad anghenion preswylwyr Sir Gaerfyrddin, ac effeithio ar 
gyfeiriad corfforaethol ac uchelgais CSC

• Potensial ar gyfer cydweithio pellach, rhannu prosiectau / gwasanaethau a deallusrwydd rhwng adrannau CSC

• Adrannau hamdden sy'n gweithio'n agosach gyda'i gilydd e.e. theatrau awyr agored, amser stori weithredol mewn llyfrgelloedd, diwylliant 
chwaraeon ac arddangosfeydd treftadaeth a ddangosir mewn canolfannau hamdden, gweithgarwch llesiant corfforol a gyflwynir mewn 
mannau diwylliant e.e. ioga/dawns/symudiad

• Manteisio i'r eithaf ar dreftadaeth, diwylliant a hunaniaeth gref ac unigryw Sir Gaerfyrddin, gan ei galluogi i ffynnu, a helpu i adrodd straeon 
cadarnhaol am y Sir

• Manteisio i'r eithaf ar y cyfle i breswylwyr werthfawrogi a defnyddio'r awyr agored – cyfleoedd ffurfiol ac anffurfiol (yn rhad ac am ddim)

• Cysylltu â strategaethau rhanddeiliaid i fanteisio i'r eithaf ar fuddsoddiad i'r gwasanaeth yn y dyfodol – Chwaraeon Cymru, Cyngor Celfyddydau 
Cymru, CNC/Sefydliad Cadwraeth, Fforymau Rhanbarthol, Byrddau Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus

• Gwneud y mwyaf o ffynonellau ychwanegol o fuddsoddiad gan gynnwys buddsoddiad masnachol a nawdd

• Parhau i flaengynllunio a sganio'r gorwel

• Dysgu gwersi Covid – gwasanaethau addasadwy / hyblyg

• Mae buddsoddiad strategol yn parhau lle mae'n cael yr effaith fwyaf ar iechyd a llesiant pobl e.e. Pentre Awel, Llanelli 

• Defnyddio a datblygu technoleg ac arloesi ymhellach, e.e. roedd yn well gan 73% o’r cyhoedd gael mynediad i’r gwasanaethau Archifau ar-lein

• Mae gwell taith a phrofiad i gwsmeriaid, ac chyfathrebu clir gyda dinasyddion yn allweddol

YMGYNGHORIAD - CYFLEOEDD AR GYFER Y GWASANAETH

T
udalen 69



 
                                                      

I BLE YDYN NI'N MYND? THEMÂU STRATEGOL DATBLYGOL  

Manteision 
Iechyd a 
Llesiant

Ffyniant
 

Economaidd

Cydlyniant
 

Cymunedol

Diwylliant 
Cymru a’r 
Gymraeg

Gweithlu’r

 Dyfodol

Technoleg 
ac 

Arloesedd

Ymgysylltu 
â’r 

Cyhoedd

Cydraddol-
deb a 

Chynhwys-
iant

Eiriolaeth a

Hyrwyddo

Cydweithio 
a 

Phartneri-
aeth

Cynaliad-
wyedd 

Ariannol

Defnydd 
o’r 

Amgylch-
edd 

NaturiolT
udalen 70



Ein 
Hymddygiada
u (wedi’u 
halinio â 

Gwerthoedd 
Corfforaethol)

Yn falch o 
fod yn Un 
Tîm

Arwain ag

 Urddas

Rhoi ein 
Cwsmeriaid 
yn Gyntaf

Ymdrechu

 i Ragori

Cymryd 
Cyfrifoldeb 

dros ein 
Gweithre-

doedd

Gwrando ar 
anghenion 
preswylwyr 

ac 
ymwelwyr

EIN GWELEDIGAETH
 (yr hyn yr ydym eisiau 

ei gyflawni)

EIN RÔL YW... 
(Cenhedaeth – yr hyn yr 
ydym eisiau ei wneud)

Ein Themâu 
Strategol

Byddwn yn cyflawni 
hyn drwy 

(galluogwyr)

Bydd ein dull yn 
canolbwyntio ar...

Ein Partneriaid

Ein Heffaith 
(Mesurau 

Llwyddiant)

Strategaeth Hamdden, Diwylliant a Hamdden Awyr Agored Sir Gaerfyrddin

Rhaid byw bywyd, gadewch i ni ddechrau’n dda, heneiddio’n dda mewn amgylchedd iach, diogel a ffyniannus 

Gwella Iechyd a Llesiant Sir Gaerfyrddin

Cyflawni iechyd 
a llesiant egnïol 

i bawb, gydol 
oes

Helpu i dyfu ffyniant 
economaidd, gan 

wneud Sir 
Gaerfyrddin yn lle 

gwych i fyw a 
gweithio ynddo

Cefnogi ein 
cymunedau i 

fod yn gydlynus 
ac yn wydn

Gofalu am ein 
hamgylchedd 
ym mhopeth a 

wnawn

Hyrwyddo 
ein 

treftadaeth, 
ein diwylliant 
a’r Gymraeg

Rhoi 
cydraddoldeb, 
amrywiaeth a 
chynhwysiant 

wrth wraidd ein 
gwaith

Gweithio a 
datblygu POBL 

wych sy’n 
rhannu ein 

huchelgais a’n 
gwerthoedd

Cynhyrchu 
ADNODDAU i 

fuddsoddi yn ein 
cyfleusterau, ein 

rhaglenni a’n pobl

Bod yn gymdeithasol 
gyfrifol ac yn 

GYNHWYSOL, yn ein 
hymagwedd a thrwy 

beidio â gadael neb ar 
ôl

Canolbwyntio ar y 
cwsmer a thrwy 

ddefnyddio TYSTIOLAETH 
A MEWNWELEDIAD er 

mwyn llywio ein 
gwasanaethau a gwella’n 

barhaus

ADRODD 
STRAEON 

am fuddion 
ffordd o fyw 

egnïol

Bod yn 
ARLOESOL er 

mwyn 
gwella 

gwasan-
aethau

DECHRAU’N DDA BYW’N DDA HENEIDDIO’N DDA DYFODOL IACH, 
DIOGEL, FFYNIANNUS 

Cyngor Sir Caerfyrddin – Addysg, 
Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol, 

Twristiaeth, Amgylchedd, Priffyrdd

Actif Sir Gâr – Chwaraeon Cymru, 
Partneriaeth Chwaraeon Gorllewin 

Cymru, Cyrff Llywodraethu Chwaraeon, 
Cymdeithasau Rhanbarthol, Clybiau

Diwylliant – Cyngor 
Celfyddydau, Grwpiau Theatr a 

Gweithgareddau Lleol

Hamdden Awyr Agored – 
Cyfoeth Naturiol Cymru, 

Grwpiau Cadwraeth a Rheoli Tir

• Dyblu nifer y defnyddwyr erbyn 
2032

• Gwella Iechyd a Llesiant ein 
preswylwyr 

• Cynyddu boddhad gwasanaeth a 
rhaglenni LCOR i ‘8’ drwy arolwg 
sgôr Net Promoter

• Cyflawni sefyllfa carbon 
niwtral erbyn 2030

• Lleihau cost Gwasanaeth 
LCOR i bobl sy’n byw yn Sir 
Gaerfyrddin

Llywodraethu Cadarn ac Ymagwedd Gyfrifol Gymdeithasol tuag at ein Hamgylchedd

Datblygu 
PARTNERIAETHAU 

cadarn a 
chydweithio â’r 

rheiny sy’n gallu ein 
helpu i gyflawni ein 

cenhadaeth

T
udalen 71



Llesiant i Bawb Helpu i Dyfu Ffyniant 
Economaidd

Cefnogi ein Cymunedau i 
Ffynnu 

Gofalu am Ein 
Hamgylchedd

Hyrwyddo ein 
Treftadaeth, ein 

Diwylliant a'n Hiaith

Rhoi Cydraddoldeb a 
Chynhwysiant wrth 

wraidd popeth a wnawn

Byddwn yn:-
• Darparu gwasanaeth sy'n 

gwrando ac yn ymateb i 
anghenion ein preswylwyr (ac 
ymwelwyr â'n sir)

• Gosod targedau 10 mlynedd 
uchelgeisiol i ddyblu lefelau 
presennol o weithgarwch a 
chyfranogiad gan ein preswylwyr 
gan arwain at wella iechyd a 
llesiant

• Lleihau lefelau gordewdra, yn 
enwedig ymhlith plant rhwng 2 a 
15 oed.

• Cydweithio â phartneriaid i 
gyfrannu at y gostyngiad mewn 
tlodi, unigrwydd ac iechyd 
meddwl gwael ymhlith ein 
preswylwyr  

• Monitro lefelau boddhad 
cwsmeriaid yn flynyddol, gydag 
uchelgais i wella gwasanaethau'n 
barhaus

• Defnyddio dull sy'n canolbwyntio 
ar yr unigolyn i ddarparu ein 
gwasanaeth, lle bo modd, gan 
ddarparu rhaglenni yn seiliedig ar 
alw.

• Defnyddio'r ddau gyfleuster 
adeiledig a'r amgylchedd naturiol 
er mwyn manteisio i'r eithaf ar 
ein cynnig

• Cynnig amrywiaeth o raglenni 
sy'n galluogi ein preswylwyr i 
'ddechrau yn dda', 'byw yn dda' a 
'heneiddio'n dda’

• Defnyddio technoleg i wella 
darpariaeth gwasanaethau a 
hygyrchedd

• Defnyddio mewnwelediad a 
thystiolaeth i helpu i lunio ein 
gwasanaeth

Byddwn yn:-
• Cefnogi adfywio economaidd 

ac adfer ar ôl Covid o fewn y 
sir trwy ddarparu:-

Ø gweithgareddau a 
digwyddiadau diwylliannol

Ø digwyddiadau chwaraeon o 
arwyddocâd rhanbarthol, 
cenedlaethol a rhyngwladol

Ø Digwyddiadau awyr agored 
sy'n denu ymwelwyr i'n 
parciau a'n mannau agored   

Ø Parhau i leihau lefelau 
cymorthdaliadau cyhoeddus 
i'n gwasanaeth  

Ø Denu refeniw ychwanegol ac 
adnoddau allanol i gefnogi 
darpariaeth gwasanaethau

Ø Cefnogi mentrau twristiaeth 
sy'n ychwanegu gwerth i'r 
economi leol ac argraff y 
cyhoedd o Sir Gaerfyrddin

• Cyflawni strategaeth gweithlu 
i sicrhau bod y gwasanaeth yn 
ystwyth, yn addas i'r dyfodol, 
yn gyrru gwelliant gwasanaeth 
ac yn bodloni disgwyliadau ein 
cwsmeriaid drwy:- 

Ø cynllunio'r gweithlu a 
recriwtio

Ø rhaglenni hyfforddi staff
Ø strategaethau cadw staff
Ø adeiladu dull 'Tîm Sir 

Gaerfyrddin'
Ø archwilio sut y gall y gweithlu 

fod yn fwy cyfnewidiadwy ar 
draws y gwasanaeth 

Ø Darparu gwasanaeth cyson o 
safon uchel i gwsmeriaid 

Byddwn yn:-
• Datblygu amrywiaeth o 

wasanaethau a rhaglenni y gellir 
eu cyrchu o bob rhan o'r Sir 
drwy wneud y canlynol:

Ø Bod yn arloesol gyda'n defnydd 
o dechnoleg a gwasanaethau 
digidol i alluogi pobl ymhellach i 
gysylltu ac ymgysylltu 

Ø Cydweithio â phartneriaid 
cymunedol traddodiadol a'r rhai 
nad ydynt yn draddodiadol, a 
gwasanaethau rheng flaen a all 
ein helpu i ddarparu iechyd a 
llesiant

• Deall anghenion ein cymunedau 
gwledig, gan fynd i'r afael yn 
benodol â materion sy'n atal 
neu'n rhwystro cyfranogiad yn 
ein gwasanaethau

• Ychwanegu gwerth i raglen 
'canolfannau cymunedol' y 
Cyngor

• Datblygu strategaeth 
gyfathrebu sy'n wynebu tuag 
allan i sicrhau bod ein 
cymunedau'n teimlo eu bod yn 
cael eu gwerthfawrogi a'u bod 
yn gysylltiedig â'n 
gwasanaethau

• Parhau i ddarparu cyfleoedd 
addysg a hyfforddiant sy'n 
hyrwyddo ac yn galluogi 
arweinwyr ifanc y dyfodol

• Datblygu rhwydweithiau 
gwirfoddolwyr cymunedol 
cadarn i wneud y gorau o 
gyfleoedd ffurfiol ac anffurfiol i 
wella iechyd a llesiant 

Byddwn yn:-
• Datblygu cynllun gweithredu 

'gwyrdd' ar gyfer hamdden
• Ymrwymo i gefnogi’r gwaith o 

weithredu’n llwyddiannus 
gynllun gweithredu Carbon Sero 
Net y Cyngor ar draws ein 
gwasanaethau

• Cyflawni sefyllfa Carbon Sero 
Net ar gyfer ein cyfleusterau 
erbyn 2030 

• Cymhwyso egwyddorion 
economi gylchol i bopeth a 
wnawn. 

• Gweithio tuag at gynhyrchu dim 
gwastraff o gwbl ar draws ein 
gwasanaethau

• Gweithio gyda phobl ac addysgu 
pobl a'n partneriaid i'w helpu i 
ddeall a chefnogi'r gwaith o 
weithredu' ein cynllun 
gweithredu 'gwyrdd' 

• Cydymdeimlo ag anghenion yr 
amgylchedd wrth ddatblygu 
cyfleusterau, rhaglenni a 
gweithgareddau'r dyfodol

• Cefnogi cynlluniau teithio llesol 
a llwybrau cerdded diogel i'n 
cyfleusterau a gweithgareddau 
cymunedol  

Byddwn yn:-
• Mynd ati i hyrwyddo 

treftadaeth a diwylliant unigryw 
a balch Sir Gaerfyrddin

• Defnyddio dull 'adrodd stori' i 
hyrwyddo pwysigrwydd 
diwylliant, 
chwaraeon/gweithgarwch 
corfforol a gwych yr awyr 
agored i wella iechyd a llesiant

• Dathlu llwyddiant ein 
preswylwyr sy'n cyflawni ar 
lwyfan lleol, cenedlaethol a'r 
rhyngwladol, gan ysbrydoli ein 
preswylwyr i fod yn fwy egnïol a

      chymryd rhan yn ein rhaglenni  
• Darparu gwasanaeth dwyieithog 

i'n cwsmeriaid, gan gefnogi a 
galluogi'r iaith Gymraeg i ffynnu 

Byddwn yn:-
• Datblygu cynllun gweithredu 

Cydraddoldeb, Amrywiaeth a 
Chynhwysiant i gefnogi a gwella 
ein gwasanaethau 

• Parhau i ddarparu hyfforddiant 
Cydraddoldeb, Amrywiaeth a 
Chynhwysiant i'n staff a'n 
rhwydwaith gyflenwi

• Adolygu a gwella'n barhaus sut y 
caiff ein gwasanaeth ei 
ddarparu i sicrhau ei fod ar gael 
ac yn hygyrch i bawb

• Cydbwyso'r angen am 
fasnachadwyedd  gyda'r 
uchelgais o fod yn gyfrifol yn 
gymdeithasol ym mhopeth a 
wnawn

• Datblygu rhwydwaith cymorth 
Cydraddoldeb, Amrywiaeth a 
Chynhwysiant i gynghori ar 
faterion cydraddoldeb a 
chynhwysiant e.e., Celfyddydau 
Anabledd/Chwaraeon Cymru, 
Rhwydwaith LGBTQ+, 
Rhwydwaith Cydraddoldeb Hiliol

                                                                                           BLAENORIAETHAU STRATEGOL

T
udalen 72



Rheoli'n Dda
DYNOL
• Alinio â’r strategaeth gweithlu gorfforaethol – ffocws ar recriwtio, hyfforddiant a chadw
• Cynigion a gwasanaethau wedi'u personoli / person-ganolog
• Cydraddoldeb, Amrywiaeth a Chynhwysiant: dull rhagweithredol o wneud gwasanaethau yn hygyrch / 

fforddiadwy i bawb, gan ganolbwyntio ar raglenni, gweithgareddau, taliadau a phrisiau cymdeithasol 
• Mae boddhad defnyddwyr ac adborth yn allweddol
• Sicrhau bod pobl yn fwy egnïol, yn gysylltiedig ac yn iachach
• Cydweithio a chyd-fynd â gwasanaethau: e.e. Addysg; Iechyd; Adfywio; Marchnata a'r Cyfryngau
AMGYLCHEDDOL
- Tuag at darged carbon sero net corfforaethol erbyn 2030 – Hyrwyddwyr gwyrdd ar draws y 

gwasanaeth 
- Cymhwyso egwyddorion economi gylchol i bopeth a wnawn 
- Egwyddorion diwastraff
TECHNOLEGOL
- Gwasanaethau digidol i gefnogi a chanmol ymgysylltu corfforol 
- Gwasanaethau cysylltiedig
ARIANNOL
- Mesurau rheoli perfformiad ar gyfer incwm, costau a rhifau defnyddwyr; 
- Gwasanaethau masnachol effeithlon a chymdeithasol werthfawr (mae'r ddau yn cyd-fodoli)
ATAL 
- Gweithio'n rhagweithiol gyda phartneriaid i gynnal a gwella iechyd y boblogaeth, gyda phwyslais cryf 

ar ddatblygu gwasanaethau ataliol i fodloni gofynion poblogaeth sy'n heneiddio, ac i fynd i'r afael â'n 
heriau anghydraddoldeb o ran iechyd acíwt. Mae atal yn well na gorfod datrys

ASEDAU
- Fframwaith clir o reoli cyfleusterau. Galluogi - Cyflawni.
- Mae cynllunio rheoli asedau yn allweddol

THEMÂU CYFFREDINOL AR DRAWS Y GWASANAETH
Mesurau Allweddol
- Canlyniadau Pobl
- Mesurau recriwtio / cadw staff
- Bodlonrwydd cwsmeriaid: Sgoriau NPS dros 8 
- Gwerthoedd Cymdeithasol a gynhyrchir ar gyfer 

pob maes gwasanaeth 
- Mesurau Iechyd Poblogaeth (yn ôl oedran / 

rhywedd / ardal): 
- Gweithgaredd corfforol;
- Iechyd Meddwl;
- Ymgysylltu â'r gymuned;
- Lefelau gordewdra (canolbwynt ar blant)

- Canlyniadau Lleoedd
- Fframweithiau rheoli cyfleusterau ar waith
- Safleoedd wedi'u cynnal a'u cadw'n dda, sy'n 

achrededig ac yn effeithlon

- Canlyniadau Amgylcheddol
- Gwella mesurau defnydd ynni/Carbon Sero Net

- Canlyniadau Economaidd
- Llunio cynllun cyfleoedd masnachol
- Adennill costau o hyd at 10%: Gwariant / Incwm

T
udalen 73



MEYSYDD FFOCWS 
• Gweithio gyda’r adran Addysg i weithredu argymhellion y gwaith gan y grwpiau Gorchwyl a 

Gorffen i helpu lleihau lefelau gordewdra plant ac i osod arferiod iach am oes:
• - Datblygu model cyflenwi Cynllunio, Paratoi ac Asesu cynaliadwy ar gyfer ysgolion gan 

gynnwys mynediad i blatfform ar-lein Ysgolion Actif Unrhyw Le;
• - Gwella safonau llythrennedd corfforol fel y sylfaen ar gyfer gweithgarwch a llesiant gydol 

oes
• - Datblygu cynllun gweithgareddau dŵr ysgolion a chymunedol newydd ar gyfer y Sir 
• - Datblygu strategaeth caeau chwaraeon ar gyfer y Sir gyda'r nod o gael cae pob tywydd ym 

mhob ysgol uwchradd
• Cwblhau ac agor Canolfan Hamdden Newydd Pentre Awel 
• Cynnig iechyd a llesiant cyffredinol 24/7 – fel yr ydych chi ei eisiau, pan fyddwch chi ei eisiau, 

ble bynnag yr ydych chi ei eisiau 
• • Datblygu dull chwaraeon i bawb gynorthwyo ystod eang o bobl i gymryd rhan mewn 

chwaraeon, o ddechreuwyr i'r elît, gan weithio i gefnogi pob Clwb Chwaraeon Cymunedol i 
ddod yn hunangynhaliol gyda chymorth datblygu, gan gyd-fynd â'r canlynol: 

   - Cynlluniau Chwaraeon y Sir 
- Achrediad Clybiau

• Ehangu'r cwmpas Atgyfeiriadau Ymarfer Corff a chynlluniau rhagnodi cymdeithasol fel dull 
cydnabyddedig, effeithlon, a rhagweithiol o gefnogi a lleihau pwysau gofal sylfaenol.

• Datblygu llwyfan Actif Unrhyw Le ddwyieithog ar-lein ar gyfer: Ysgolion, canolfannau 
cymunedol, lleoliadau iechyd, ac awdurdodau lleol eraill

• Adfywio trefi a chymunedau:
- Pwll Nofio newydd a chynnig Iechyd a Ffitrwydd i Rydaman 
- Cynnig iechyd a ffitrwydd hygyrch 24/7, a chynnig hamdden fasnachol

         yng nghanol dref Caerfyrddin.

CHWARAEON A HAMDDEN ACTIF

Mesurau Allweddol

Canlyniadau Pobl 
Dyblu nifer defnyddwyr gwasanaeth erbyn 2032
Gordewdra Plant wedi gostwng 50%
Pob plentyn yn gallu nofio 25m erbyn 11 oed
Sgoriau Net Promoter o ran boddhad 
cwsmeriaid dros '8’ 

Canlyniad Lleoedd
Cyflawni'r holl gynlluniau cyfleusterau

Canlyniad Amgylcheddol
Cyfrannu at darged carbon sero net 
corfforaethol ar gyfer 2030
Gweithredu strategaeth rheoli gwastraff 

Allbwn Economaidd
Buddsoddiad ychwanegol o £5m i'r gwasanaeth
Lleihau Cost y Gwasanaeth i drethdalwyr

T
udalen 74



MEYSYDD FFOCWS 
• Llyfrgelloedd ac Archifau:
- Datblygu strategaeth Llyfrgelloedd newydd yn unol â Safonau Llyfrgell Gyhoeddus 

Genedlaethol sy'n esblygu, gan ganolbwyntio ar adolygu gwasanaethau allgymorth
- Model darparu hybrid ar gyfer gwasanaethau ar-lein a gwasanaethau wyneb yn wyneb
- Datblygu'r themâu canlynol: Cysylltu; Ymgysylltu; Esblygu; Gweithio fel Partneriaid; ac Angori 

(adfywio trefi / lleoliadau gwledig)
- Archif newydd y sir yn ganolbwynt ar gyfer hanes a chasgliadau Sir Gaerfyrddin, wedi'i 

chydnabod fel lle ar gyfer dysgu, creadigrwydd a darganfod.

• Amgueddfeydd, Orielau a Chelfyddydau
- Strategaeth Amgueddfeydd Newydd
- Cynnig annibynnol newydd wedi'i ymestyn i Oriel Myrddin 
- Amgueddfa Cyflymder Tir Newydd ym Mhentywyn
- Cynllun tymor hir y cytunwyd arno ar gyfer Amgueddfa Ddiwydiannol Cydweli
- Datblygu partneriaethau ymhellach ag Ymddiriedolaethau, grwpiau defnyddwyr a'r 3ydd sector
- Cynllun datblygu'r Celfyddydau newydd
- Parhau â buddsoddiad i safleoedd Amgueddfa Caerfyrddin a Pharc Howard

• Theatrau
- Hybiau creadigol a chymdeithasol ffyniannus, chwarae rhan weithredol o ran cynnal a chefnogi 

cymunedau ffyniannus, creadigol
- Datblygu hunaniaeth a diwylliant dwyieithog unigryw Sir Gaerfyrddin, gan gael effaith ar 

gynulleidfaoedd a'u hysbrydoli, yn ein lleoliadau corfforol a thu hwnt drwy ein rhaglenni 
allgymorth a digidol. 

GWASANAETHAU DIWYLLIANNOL

Mesurau Allweddol

- Deilliannau Pobl 
- Dyblu nifer defnyddwyr gwasanaeth erbyn 2032
- Sgoriau Net Promoter o ran boddhad 

cwsmeriaid dros '8’ 
- Ymgysylltu ffurfiol a phartneriaethau ag addysg / 

ysgolion i fanteisio ar adnoddau dysgu a'u 
defnyddio o'n gwasanaethau Diwylliannol

- Deilliant Lleoedd
- Cyflawni'r holl gynlluniau gwella cyfleusterau

- Deilliant Amgylcheddol
- Cyfrannu at darged carbon sero net 

corfforaethol ar gyfer 2030
- Gweithredu strategaeth rheoli gwastraff

- Allbwn Economaidd
- Buddsoddiad ychwanegol o £5m i'r gwasanaeth
- Cost fesul defnyddiwr wedi gostwng 10%

T
udalen 75



MEYSYDD FFOCWS 
• Addysg Awyr Agored: Gwasanaeth Addysg Awyr Agored newydd wedi'i hail-bwrpasu ar draws y Sir, gyda 

phwyslais arbennig ar amrywiaeth o gyfleoedd dysgu preswyl i blant a phobl ifanc.

• Uwchgynlluniau Safleoedd 10 mlynedd:
- Parc Gwledig Pen-bre

a. Uwchraddio seilwaith: Trydan; dŵr; gwastraff; band eang; depo, trac BMX
b.       Cynnig llety amrywiol: Cabanau pren/podiau
c. Cyfleuster chwarae a gweithgareddau dan do
d. Cyfleuster newydd ar gyfer chwaraeon traeth / caffi / treftadaeth

- Parc Arfordirol y Mileniwm
a.    Cyfleusterau Faniau Gwersylla newydd a chyfleusterau arfordirol wedi'u cysylltu ar hyd ein harfordir
b. Cynnig chwaraeon dŵr gwell yn Noc y Gogledd
c. Datblygu cynnig pysgota
d. Ailddatblygu Porth Tywyn 

- Parc Gwledig Llyn Llech Owain a Parc Coetir y Mynydd Mawr

• Prosiect Denu Pentywyn ar waith
- Cynnig llety newydd 44 ystafell wely 'Y Caban'
- Datblygu chwaraeon / gweithgareddau traeth sy'n cynhyrchu incwm
- Safle faniau gwersylla newydd a pharcio gwell
- Rhaglen ddigwyddiadau’n cael ei datblygu gan randdeiliaid allweddol

• Cynllun mannau gwyrdd a rheoli cadwraeth ar draws pob safle
• Strategaeth Gwastraff a Charbon Sero-net y Gwasanaeth Hamdden Awyr Agored 
• Strategaeth Digwyddiadau y Gwasanaeth Hamdden Awyr Agored, gydag 1 digwyddiad mawr y flwyddyn 

gan roi hwb i'r economi dwristiaeth
• Parc sglefyrddio newydd yn ne'r Sir

GWASANAETH HAMDDEN AWYR AGORED

Mesurau Allweddol

- Deilliannau Pobl 
- Dyblu nifer defnyddwyr gwasanaeth erbyn 

2032
- Sgoriau Net Promoter o ran boddhad 

cwsmeriaid dros '8’ 

- Deilliant Lleoedd
- Cyflawni'r holl gynlluniau gwella cyfleusterau

- Deilliant Amgylcheddol
- Cyfrannu at darged carbon sero net 

corfforaethol ar gyfer 2030
- Gweithredu strategaeth rheoli gwastraff
- Cynlluniau mannau gwyrdd a rheoli cadwraeth 

ar draws pob safle

- Deilliant Economaidd
- Buddsoddiad ychwanegol o £10m i'r 

gwasanaeth
- Mae'r gwasanaeth yn gost niwtral 

T
udalen 76



• Gwasanaeth mwy integredig ac annatod, sy'n sylfaenol i gyflawni 
deilliannau corfforaethol a chenedlaethol

• Pawb yn cael mynediad i'n gwasanaethau Hamdden, Diwylliannol ac 
Awyr Agored

• Pob plentyn ar y llwybr i fywyd egnïol, iach, cysylltiedig 
• Mwy o bobl yn rhan o gymunedau ffyniannus, gofalgar, egnïol
• Hunaniaeth Ddiwylliannol gryfach Sir Gaerfyrddin
• Sir Gaerfyrddin iachach 
• Lle gwell i fyw, gweithio ac ymweld ag ef
• Pobl yn gofalu am ein hamgylchedd awyr agored a gwneud gwell 

defnydd ohono
• Gwasanaeth mwy effeithlon, cost effeithiol, sy'n ein galluogi ni i ail-

fuddsoddi'n weithredol yn iechyd a llesiant pobl
• Economi gryfach, fwy llewyrchus, hunangynhaliol

SUT OLWG FYDD ARNI YN 2033?

T
udalen 77



Diolch / Thank you

T
udalen 78



 

 
 
 

PWYLLGOR CRAFFU  
CYMUNEDAU, CARTREFI AC ADFYWIO 

28ain MEDI 2023 
 
 

ADRODDIAD MONITRO CYLLIDEB  
CYFALAF A REFENIW 2023/24 

 
 
GOFYNNIR I’R PWYLLGOR CRAFFU: 
 
• Derbyn yr Adroddiad Monitro Cyllideb ar gyfer y Gwasanaethau Tai, Adfywio ac 

Eiddo, Lle a Chynaliadwyedd ac Hamdden a Chwaraeon, ac yn ystyried y sefyllfa 
cyllidebol. 

 
Y RHESYMAU:  
 
• I ddatgan sefyllfa bresennol y gyllideb i’r Pwyllgor ar 30ain Mehefin 2023, ynglyn â 

2023/24. 
 

 
 
AELODAU’R CABINET SY’N GYFRIFOL AM Y PORTFFOLIO:  
• Cyng. Linda Evans (Dirprwy Arweinydd ac Cartrefi)  
• Cyng. Ann Davies (Materion Gwledig a Pholisi Cynllunio)   
• Cyng. Hazel Evans (Adfywio, Hamdden, Diwylliant a Thwristiaeth) 
• Cyng. Alun Lenny (Adnoddau)  
 

 
 
Y Gyfarwyddiaeth: 
Gwasanaethau 
Corfforaethol  
 
Enw Cyfarwyddwr y 
Gwasanaeth: 
Chris Moore 
 
Awdur yr adroddiad: 
Chris Moore 
 

 
Swydd: 
 
 
 
Cyfarwyddwr y 
Gwasanaethau 
Corfforaethol 

 
Rhif Ffôn / Cyfeiriad E-
bost: 
 
 
 
01267 224120  
CMoore@sirgar.gov.uk   
 

 
  

Tudalen 79

Eitem Rhif  8

mailto:CMoore@sirgar.gov.uk


 

 
 
 
 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

COMMUNITIES, HOMES & REGENERATION 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
28th SEPTEMBER 2023 

 
Revenue & Capital Budget  
Monitoring Report 2023/24 

The Financial monitoring Report is presented as follows: 
Revenue Budgets 
Appendix A 
Summary position for Communities, Homes & Regeneration Scrutiny Committee. 
Services within the Communities, Homes & Regeneration Scrutiny remit are forecasting 
a £10k overspend. 
 
Appendix B 
Report on the main variances on agreed budgets. 
 
Appendix C 
Detail variances for information purposes only. 
 
Appendix D 
The HRA is predicting to be underspent by £94k for 2023/24. 
 
Capital Budgets 
Appendix E 
Details the main variances on capital schemes, which shows a forecasted net spend of 
£52,709k compared with a working net budget of £92,095k giving a -£39,386k variance. 
 
Appendix F 
Details all Public Housing (HRA) capital projects. 
 
Appendix G 
Details all Private Housing (General Fund) capital projects. 
 
Appendix H  
Details all Leisure capital projects. 
 
Appendix I  
Details all Regeneration capital projects. 
 
Appendix J 
Savings Monitoring Report for 2023/24.  This includes detail on the 2022/23 savings 
proposals that were undelivered as at 31st March 2023. 
 

 

Tudalen 80



 

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? 
 

YES – A list of the main variances is 
attached to this report. 

 
 
 

IMPLICATIONS 
 
I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate 
Directors / Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications 
associated with this report. 
 
Signed:    Chris Moore  

 
Director of Corporate Services 

 
Policy, 
Crime & 
Disorder 
and 
Equalities 

Legal Finance ICT Risk 
Management 
Issues 

Staffing 
Implications 

Physical 
Assets  

 
NONE 
 

 
NONE 
 

 
YES  
 

 
NONE 
 

 
NONE 
 

 
NONE 
 

 
YES 
 

 
3. Finance   
Revenue - The Regeneration & Property, Place & Sustainability, Leisure & Recreation 
and Non-HRA Housing Services show a net variance of £10k against the 2023/24 
approved budgets and the HRA Housing Service is predicting to be underspent by £94k. 
 
Capital - The capital programme shows a variance of -£39,386k against the 2023/24 
approved budget. 
 
Savings Report - The expectation is that at year end £632k of Managerial savings 
against a target of £762k are forecast to be delivered.  £20k of Policy savings against 
a target of £60k put forward for 2023/24 are forecast to be delivered. 
 
7. Physical Assets   
The expenditure on the capital programme will result in the addition of new assets or 
enhancement to existing assets on the authority’s asset register. 
 

 
 

CABINET MEMBER PORTFOLIO 
HOLDERS AWARE/CONSULTED? 
YES 
 

(Include any observations here) 

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information 
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report: 
 
THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW:  
Title of Document File Ref No. / Locations that the papers are available for public inspection 
2023/24 Budget 
 

Corporate Services Department, County Hall, Carmarthen 
 

Tudalen 81



 

2023-28 Capital 
Programme 

Online via corporate website – Minutes of County Council Meeting 
1st March 2023 

 

Tudalen 82



APPENDIX A

June 2023

Division Expenditure Income

Net non-

controllable Net Expenditure Income

Net non-

controllable Net

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Regeneration & Property 13,693 -7,748 3,683 9,627 13,172 -7,222 3,683 9,633 6

Place and Sustainability 6,563 -2,523 381 4,422 7,086 -3,079 381 4,388 -34 

Leisure & Recreation 19,781 -10,791 6,369 15,358 20,342 -11,194 6,369 15,517 158

Council Fund Housing 33,969 -33,559 521 931 35,391 -35,102 521 810 -120 

GRAND TOTAL 74,006 -54,621 10,953 30,338 75,991 -56,597 10,953 30,348 10

Communities, Homes & Regeneration Scrutiny Report 
Budget Monitoring as at 30th June 2023 - Summary

Working Budget Forecasted Forecasted 

Variance for 

Year

T
udalen 83



APPENDIX B

June 

2023

Division

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re

In
c
o

m
e

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re

In
c
o

m
e

F
o

re
c
a
s
te

d
 

V
a
ria

n
c
e
 fo

r

Y
e
a
r Notes

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Regeneration & Property

Regeneration - Core Budgets

Regeneration Management 311 0 350 0 38 Overspend due to cessation in staff time able to be recharged to grants

Property 1,016 -95 959 -25 12

Shortfall of £70k in external income offset by 3 vacant posts in early part of the year. 

Predicted to be filled from September

Commercial Properties 54 -486 133 -584 -19 Relatively high occupancy rates currently

Provision Markets 719 -584 642 -486 22

Low occupancy rates has resulted in a shortfall of £94k in anticipated income. This is 

offset by savings made in premises related costs.

Industrial Premises 613 -1,638 357 -1,449 -68 Relatively High occupancy rates currently

Livestock Markets 65 -120 25 -53 27 Shortfall in income at Newcastle Emlyn and Carmarthen Marts

Other Variances -7 

Place and Sustainability

Place & Sustainability Unit 394 -18 458 -125 -43 Underspend on supplies & services

Building Control 706 -560 684 -396 142

Shortfall in building reg fee income due to an increase in competitors and the current 

economic climate. Projection is based on actual income in the 1st quarter which may 

vary as the year progresses

Forward Planning 771 0 719 0 -52 

Underspend on salaries due to maternity & vacant post estimated to be filled from 

September

Development Management 1,870 -956 1,860 -1,032 -87 

Planning application income forecast based on actual income received in the 1st 

quarter of the year, this may vary as the year progresses

Net Zero Carbon Plan 136 0 106 0 -31 Underspend on salaries, vacant post estimated to be filled in September

SAB - Sustainable Drainage approval 

Body Unit 139 -134 138 -86 47

Anticipated income not materialised - Dependent on number of submissions and 

market buoyancy of development projects 

Other Variances -10 

Leisure & Recreation

Pendine Outdoor Education Centre 523 -375 409 -183 78 Forecast shortfall in income for Board & Accommodation to budget

Newcastle Emlyn Sports Centre 360 -187 345 -201 -30 In year vacancies £17k plus forecast to achieve income above amount budgeted

Carmarthen Leisure Centre 2,005 -1,724 1,953 -1,706 -34 Forecast underspend in utilities

Amman Valley Leisure Centre 1,187 -944 1,173 -965 -34 In year vacancies £13k plus forecast to achieve income above amount budgeted

Llandovery Swimming Pool 478 -212 490 -203 22 Forecast to overspend on Employees £15k plus not fully achieve income budgeted

Gwendraeth Sports Centre 0 0 -43 0 -43 Accrual for NNDR no longer required

Actif Communities 384 -39 355 -44 -34 In year vacancy along with reduced match funding requirement

Sport & Leisure General 854 -44 893 -44 40 Forecast to overspend on Employees 

Carmarthen Museum, Abergwili. 230 -31 196 -26 -29 In year vacancies until new Employee structure filled

Parc Howard Museum 160 -87 130 -76 -19 In year vacancies until site re-opened and new Employee structure filled

Working Budget Forecasted

Communities, Homes & Regeneration Scrutiny Report 

Budget Monitoring as at 30th June 2023 - Main Variances

T
udalen 84



APPENDIX B

June 

2023

Division

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re

In
c
o

m
e

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re

In
c
o

m
e

F
o

re
c
a
s
te

d
 

V
a
ria

n
c
e
 fo

r

Y
e
a
r Notes

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Working Budget Forecasted

Communities, Homes & Regeneration Scrutiny Report 

Budget Monitoring as at 30th June 2023 - Main Variances

Museums General 256 -1 460 0 205

Virement for cost of Service re-structure yet to be processed along with costs for 2 

displaced Employees being met by Service until either re-deployment or Redundancy 

cases signed off 

Laugharne Boathouse 158 -129 155 -102 24 Forecast to not fully achieve income budgeted

Lyric Theatre 548 -443 570 -419 46

Forecast overspend on Performance fees along with predicted shortfall in income to 

budget

Attractor - Hostel 0 0 570 -544 27

Service only recently commenced operation, current forecast therefore based on only 

3 months trading and may be subject to change 

Leisure Management 448 -4 393 -4 -55 In year vacancies

Other Variances -4 

Council Fund Housing

Independent Living and Affordable 

Homes 132 -45 137 -93 -43 Underspend on supplies & services

Home Improvement (Non HRA) 658 -284 616 -305 -63 Additional Income

Non HRA Re-Housing (Inc Chr) 185 0 150 0 -35 Underspend on Salaries

Other Variances 21

Grand Total 10

T
udalen 85



APPENDIX C

June 2023

Division

E
x

p
e

n
d

itu
re

In
c

o
m

e

N
e

t n
o

n
-

c
o

n
tro

lla
b

le

N
e

t

E
x

p
e

n
d

itu
re

In
c

o
m

e

N
e

t n
o

n
-

c
o

n
tro

lla
b

le

N
e

t

F
o

re
c

a
s

te
d

 

V
a

ria
n

c
e

 fo
r

Y
e
a
r Notes

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Regeneration

Regeneration - Core Budgets

Regeneration Management 311 0 38 349 350 0 38 388 38

Overspend due to cessation in staff time able to be 

recharged to grants

Parry Thomas Centre 43 -39 11 16 43 -39 11 16 0

Betws wind farm community fund 87 -87 1 1 87 -87 1 1 -0 

Welfare Rights & Citizen's Advice 161 0 2 162 161 0 2 162 0

Llanelli Coast Joint Venture 160 -160 5 5 122 -122 5 5 -0 

Econ Dev-Rural Carmarthen, Ammanford, 

Town Centres 392 0 5,623 6,015 392 0 5,623 6,015 -0 

Econ Dev-Llanelli, C Hands, 

Coastal,Business, Inf & Ent 375 0 89 463 375 0 89 463 -0 

Community Development and External 

Funding 576 0 89 666 576 0 89 666 0

Period Dignity Grant 0 0 0 0 178 -178 0 0 0

Wellness 275 0 19 294 275 0 19 294 -0 

Swansea Bay City Deal 0 0 24 24 0 0 24 24 0South West Wales Corporate Joint 

Committee 0 0 0 0 40 -40 0 0 0

Property 1,016 -95 -1,251 -330 959 -25 -1,251 -317 12

Shortfall of £70k in external income offset by 3 vacant posts 

in early part of the year. Predicted to be filled from 

September

Management of Markets, Employment 

Sites and Premises 216 0 0 216 216 0 0 216 0

Commercial Properties 54 -486 537 105 133 -584 537 86 -19 Relatively high occupancy rates currently

Provision Markets 719 -584 366 501 642 -486 366 523 22

Low occupancy rates has resulted in a shortfall of £94k in 

anticipated income. This is offset by savings made in 

premises related costs.

Asset Sales 21 0 0 21 6 15 0 21 0

Operational Depots 490 0 -326 165 492 0 -326 166 2

Administrative Buildings 4,647 -888 -3,386 374 4,474 -721 -3,386 368 -6 

Industrial Premises 613 -1,638 942 -82 357 -1,449 942 -150 -68 Relatively High occupancy rates currently

The Beacon 252 -151 50 151 244 -146 50 149 -3 

County Farms 83 -368 522 236 83 -368 522 236 -0 

Livestock Markets 65 -120 3 -51 25 -53 3 -25 27

Shortfall in income at Newcastle Emlyn and Carmarthen 

Marts

Externally Funded Schemes 3,136 -3,132 323 327 2,943 -2,939 323 327 -0 

Regeneration Total 13,693 -7,748 3,683 9,627 13,172 -7,222 3,683 9,633 6

Budget Monitoring as at 30th June 2023 - Detail Variances

Working Budget Forecasted

Communities, Homes & Regeneration Scrutiny Report 

T
udalen 86



APPENDIX C

June 2023

Division

E
x

p
e

n
d

itu
re

In
c

o
m

e

N
e

t n
o

n
-

c
o

n
tro

lla
b

le

N
e

t

E
x

p
e

n
d

itu
re

In
c

o
m

e

N
e

t n
o

n
-

c
o

n
tro

lla
b

le

N
e

t

F
o

re
c

a
s

te
d

 

V
a

ria
n

c
e

 fo
r

Y
e
a
r Notes

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Budget Monitoring as at 30th June 2023 - Detail Variances

Working Budget Forecasted

Communities, Homes & Regeneration Scrutiny Report 

Place and Sustainability

Place & Sustainability Unit 394 -18 -115 261 458 -125 -115 218 -43 Underspend on supplies & services

Building Control 706 -560 112 258 684 -396 112 400 142

Shortfall in building reg fee income due to an increase in 

competitors and the current economic climate. Projection is 

based on actual income in the 1st quarter which may vary as 

the year progresses

Forward Planning 771 0 62 833 719 0 62 781 -52 

Underspend on salaries due to maternity & vacant post 

estimated to be filled from September

Phosphates Management Grant 0 0 0 0 541 -541 0 0 0

Minerals 342 -213 57 187 296 -167 57 187 0

Development Management 1,870 -956 159 1,073 1,860 -1,032 159 986 -87 

Planning application income forecast based on actual income 

received in the 1st quarter of the year, this may vary as the 

year progresses

Tywi Centre 73 -69 13 17 145 -140 13 17 0

Conservation 526 -118 36 444 570 -162 36 444 0

Caeau Mynydd Mawr - Marsh Fritillary 

Project 100 -100 4 4 101 -101 4 4 0

Ash Dieback 283 0 1 285 283 0 1 285 0

Machynys S.106 Project 6 -6 0 0 6 -6 0 0 0

Cross Hands West Conservation Management 5 -5 0 0 5 -5 0 0 0

Local Places for Nature 31 -31 0 0 31 -31 0 0 0

Dafen Custody Biodiversity Suite 6 -6 0 0 6 -6 0 0 0

Renewable Energy Fund 0 -56 0 -56 0 -56 0 -56 0

Sustainable Development Unit 170 0 0 170 169 0 0 169 -1 

Net Zero Carbon Plan 136 0 0 136 106 0 0 106 -31 

Underspend on salaries, vacant post estimated to be filled in 

September

Flood Defence & Land Drainage 627 -1 50 677 618 -0 50 668 -9 

WG-Flood & Coastal Erosion Risk 

Management Revenue Grant 250 -250 0 0 225 -225 0 0 0

SAB - Sustainable Drainage approval 

Body Unit 139 -134 0 5 138 -86 0 53 47

Anticipated income not materialised - Dependent on number 

of submissions and market buoyancy of development 

projects 

Reservoirs 66 0 0 66 66 0 0 66 0

Coastal Protection 60 0 1 61 60 0 1 61 0

Place and Sustainability Total 6,563 -2,523 381 4,422 7,086 -3,079 381 4,388 -34 

Leisure & Recreation

Millenium Coastal Park 257 -94 975 1,138 264 -92 975 1,147 9

MCP - investment properties 0 -73 0 -73 0 -73 0 -73 0

Burry Port Harbour 22 -136 38 -76 23 -129 38 -67 8

Discovery Centre 5 -99 1 -93 6 -102 1 -94 -2 

Pendine Outdoor Education Centre 523 -375 111 259 409 -183 111 337 78

Forecast shortfall in income for Board & Accommodation to 

budget

T
udalen 87



APPENDIX C

June 2023

Division

E
x

p
e

n
d

itu
re

In
c

o
m

e

N
e

t n
o

n
-

c
o

n
tro

lla
b

le

N
e

t

E
x

p
e

n
d

itu
re

In
c

o
m

e

N
e

t n
o

n
-

c
o

n
tro

lla
b

le

N
e

t

F
o

re
c

a
s

te
d

 

V
a

ria
n

c
e

 fo
r

Y
e
a
r Notes

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Budget Monitoring as at 30th June 2023 - Detail Variances

Working Budget Forecasted

Communities, Homes & Regeneration Scrutiny Report 

Pembrey Beach Kiosk 0 -80 0 -80 0 -80 0 -80 -0 

Pembrey Ski Slope 530 -590 83 23 535 -600 83 18 -5 

Newcastle Emlyn Sports Centre 360 -187 19 192 345 -201 19 162 -30 

In year vacancies £17k plus forecast to achieve income 

above amount budgeted

Carmarthen Leisure Centre 2,005 -1,724 989 1,271 1,953 -1,706 989 1,236 -34 Forecast underspend in utilities

St Clears Leisure Centre 188 -69 88 206 163 -51 88 199 -7 

Bro Myrddin Indoor Bowling Club 0 0 76 76 0 0 76 76 0

Amman Valley Leisure Centre 1,187 -944 91 333 1,173 -965 91 299 -34 

In year vacancies £13k plus forecast to achieve income 

above amount budgeted

Brynamman Swimming Pool 0 0 39 39 0 0 39 39 0

Llandovery Swimming Pool 478 -212 32 298 490 -203 32 319 22

Forecast to overspend on Employees £15k plus not fully 

achieve income budgeted

Garnant Golf Course 0 0 1 1 0 0 1 1 0

Gwendraeth Sports Centre 0 0 0 0 -43 0 0 -43 -43 Accrual for NNDR no longer required

Dinefwr Bowling Centre 0 0 73 73 0 0 73 73 0

Actif Communities 384 -39 54 399 355 -44 54 365 -34 

In year vacancy along with reduced match funding 

requirement

Actif Facilities 272 0 33 305 269 -1 33 302 -3 

Actif health, fitness and dryside 246 -156 11 101 199 -103 11 108 7

Specialist populations 95 -97 2 0 95 -97 2 -0 -0 

Falls Prevention 60 -60 0 0 60 -60 0 0 0

Catering - Sport Centres 293 -277 0 16 295 -275 0 20 4

GT RDP Rural Digital Provision & Regen 0 0 0 0 10 -10 0 0 0

Pre-diabetes 0 0 0 0 65 -65 0 0 0

Active Young People 393 -399 20 14 376 -382 20 14 0

LAPA Additional Funding (E) 12 -12 1 1 125 -124 1 2 1

Sport & Leisure General 854 -44 71 880 893 -44 71 920 40 Forecast to overspend on Employees 

National Exercise Referral Scheme (E) 198 -198 13 13 198 -198 13 13 -0 

PEN RHOS 3G PITCH 11 -56 1 -44 11 -56 1 -44 -0 

St John Lloyd - 2G Pitch 25 -15 0 10 19 -15 0 4 -7 

Llanelli Leisure Centre 1,567 -1,075 659 1,151 1,605 -1,123 659 1,141 -9 

Coedcae Sports Hall 0 0 5 5 8 0 5 13 8

ESD Rev Grant - Ynys Dawela 1 0 3 4 5 0 3 8 4

Outdoor Recreation - Staffing costs 521 0 65 586 526 0 65 591 5

Pembrey Country Park 982 -1,322 125 -214 1,013 -1,350 125 -212 2

Llyn Lech Owain Country Park 113 -53 58 117 122 -61 58 119 1

Pembrey Country Park Restaurant 647 -520 8 135 643 -520 8 130 -4 

NNF - Cernydd Carmel 0 0 0 0 13 -13 0 0 0

Carmarthen Library 581 -32 143 692 576 -32 143 687 -5 

Ammanford Library 302 -15 66 353 304 -15 66 355 2

Llanelli Library 530 -32 138 636 537 -32 138 643 7

Community Libraries 275 -7 174 442 268 -7 174 435 -7 

T
udalen 88



APPENDIX C

June 2023

Division

E
x

p
e

n
d

itu
re

In
c

o
m

e

N
e

t n
o

n
-

c
o

n
tro

lla
b

le

N
e

t

E
x

p
e

n
d

itu
re

In
c

o
m

e

N
e

t n
o

n
-

c
o

n
tro

lla
b

le

N
e

t

F
o

re
c

a
s

te
d

 

V
a

ria
n

c
e

 fo
r

Y
e
a
r Notes

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Budget Monitoring as at 30th June 2023 - Detail Variances

Working Budget Forecasted

Communities, Homes & Regeneration Scrutiny Report 

Libraries General 1,288 -1 57 1,344 1,282 -1 57 1,338 -6 

Mobile Library 99 0 12 111 106 0 12 118 7

Carmarthen Museum, Abergwili. 230 -31 107 307 196 -26 107 278 -29 In year vacancies until new Employee structure filled

Kidwelly Tinplate Museum 22 0 1 23 16 0 1 17 -6 

Parc Howard Museum 160 -87 62 135 130 -76 62 117 -19 

In year vacancies until site re-opened and new Employee 

structure filled

Museum of speed, Pendine 168 -103 2 67 168 -100 2 70 3

Museums General 256 -1 35 291 460 0 35 496 205

Virement for cost of Service re-structure yet to be processed 

along with costs for 2 displaced Employees being met by 

Service until either re-deployment or Redundancy cases 

signed off 

Archives General 199 -11 80 268 199 -12 80 268 -0 

Arts General 0 0 19 19 0 0 19 19 0

St Clears Craft Centre 40 -4 55 91 35 -3 55 86 -5 

Cultural Services Management 106 0 14 120 105 0 14 119 -0 

Laugharne Boathouse 158 -129 27 57 155 -102 27 81 24 Forecast to not fully achieve income budgeted

Lyric Theatre 548 -443 123 228 570 -419 123 273 46

Forecast overspend on Performance fees along with 

predicted shortfall in income to budget

Y Ffwrnes 1,096 -515 525 1,107 935 -359 525 1,101 -6 

Ammanford Miners Theatre 81 -17 1 65 74 -18 1 57 -8 

Entertainment Centres General 639 -98 85 625 688 -139 85 634 9

Oriel Myrddin Trustee 193 -193 0 0 218 -218 0 -0 -0 

Oriel Myrddin CCC 125 0 735 859 125 0 735 859 0

Motor Sports Centre - Pembrey 0 -96 0 -96 0 -96 0 -96 0

Attractor - Hostel 0 0 167 167 570 -544 167 193 27

Service only recently commenced operation, current forecast 

therefore based on only 3 months trading and may be 

subject to change 

Attractor - Museum 0 0 0 0 -0 0 0 -0 -0 

Attractor - Externals 7 -63 0 -57 5 -63 0 -58 -2 

Beach safety 2 0 0 2 2 0 0 2 0

Leisure Management 448 -4 -7 438 393 -4 -7 383 -55 In year vacancies

Leisure & Recreation Total 19,781 -10,791 6,369 15,358 20,342 -11,194 6,369 15,517 158

T
udalen 89



APPENDIX C

June 2023

Division

E
x

p
e

n
d

itu
re

In
c

o
m

e

N
e

t n
o

n
-

c
o

n
tro

lla
b

le

N
e

t

E
x

p
e

n
d

itu
re

In
c

o
m

e

N
e

t n
o

n
-

c
o

n
tro

lla
b

le

N
e

t

F
o

re
c

a
s

te
d

 

V
a

ria
n

c
e

 fo
r

Y
e
a
r Notes

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Budget Monitoring as at 30th June 2023 - Detail Variances

Working Budget Forecasted

Communities, Homes & Regeneration Scrutiny Report 

Council Fund Housing 

Independent Living and Affordable Homes 132 -45 64 151 137 -93 64 108 -43 Underspend on supplies & services

Supporting People Providers 6,495 -6,495 0 0 6,495 -6,495 0 0 0

Rent Smart Wales Project (E) 18 -18 3 3 21 -21 3 3 0

Syrian Resettlement Scheme (E) 0 0 7 7 0 0 7 7 0

Local Housing Company 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Afghan resettlement (ARAP scheme) 0 0 0 0 10 -9 0 0 0

Ukrainian Re-settlement Scheme 0 0 0 0 610 -610 0 0 0

Infection Prevention Control 0 0 0 0 -0 0 0 -0 -0 

Home Improvement (Non HRA) 658 -284 338 713 616 -305 338 650 -63 Additional Income

Penybryn Traveller Site 189 -137 16 69 185 -127 16 74 5

Property Maintenance Operational 24,945 -25,500 0 -555 24,945 -25,500 0 -555 -0 

Landlord Incentive 14 -12 0 3 27 -9 0 18 15

Homelessness 146 -72 7 80 146 -72 7 80 -0 

Non HRA Re-Housing (Inc Chr) 185 0 53 238 150 0 53 203 -35 Underspend on Salaries

Temporary Accommodation 297 -118 19 198 1,145 -966 19 198 0

Continued pressure on service (£160k), additional grant 

funding to be utilised where possible.

Social Lettings Agency 889 -879 9 19 692 -682 9 19 -0 

Home Improvement Loan Scheme 0 0 0 0 8 -8 0 -0 -0 

Houses Into Homes WG Loan Scheme 0 0 1 1 0 0 1 1 0

Community Cohesion Fund Grant (H) 0 0 3 3 -0 0 3 3 0

Leasing Scheme Wales was PRS Leasing 

Scheme GRANT 0 0 0 0 22 -22 0 0 0

Discretionary Homeless Prevention & Strategic co-ordinator0 0 0 0 183 -183 0 -0 -0 

Council Fund Housing Total 33,969 -33,559 521 931 35,391 -35,102 521 810 -120 

TOTAL FOR COMMUNITIES, HOMES & 

REGENERATION 74,006 -54,621 10,953 30,338 75,991 -56,597 10,953 30,348 10

T
udalen 90



APPENDIX D

June 23

 V
a
ria

n
c
e
 

fo
r

Y
e
a
r Notes

£'000 £'000 £'000

Expenditure

Repairs & Maintenance

Responsive 3,053 4,728 1,675

Minor Works 3,917 2,307 -1,610 

Voids 5,779 5,605 -175 

Servicing 2,127 2,200 73

Drains & Sewers 165 116 -49 

Grounds 891 891 0

Property & Strategic Projects 1,065 1,065 -0 

Unadopted Roads 123 123 0

Supervision & Management

Employee 7,377 7,070 -307 Savings from vacant posts may be reduced dependant on pay settlement.

Premises 1,766 1,805 40 Primarily energy cost increases forecast in sheltered schemes

Transport 39 46 7

Supplies 903 1,163 260

Additional spend related to legal costs in housing management £64k,compensation costs £82k, 

fees/project costs £78k and office refurbishments £39k

Recharges -2,671 -2,671 -0 

Provision for Bad Debt 606 606 0

Capital Financing Cost 15,001 15,001 0

Central Support Charges 2,408 2,408 0

Direct Revenue Financing 10,000 10,000 0

Total Expenditure 52,549 52,462 -87 

Housing Revenue Account - Budget Monitoring as at 30th June 2023

W
o

rk
in

g
 

B
u

d
g

e
t

F
o

re
c
a
s
te

d

Budget managers are currently predicting a £86k underspend on revenue maintenance budget 

spend. However, given current inflation and the impact on construction industry capacity post-

Covid and post-Brexit including significantly increasing pay, energy, fuel, and construction 

materials costs, there will continue to be upwards pressure on contractor rates and reduced 

availability as we progress through 2023. As a result, remaining within budget may require 

delivering less with our allocated financial resources. Budget managers will continue to respond to 

these fluctuations to ensure that the overall HRA expenditure remains within budget.  Some repairs 

are significant in nature and are being assessed for potential capitalisation.

T
udalen 91



APPENDIX D

June 23

 V
a
ria

n
c
e
 

fo
r

Y
e
a
r Notes

£'000 £'000 £'000

Housing Revenue Account - Budget Monitoring as at 30th June 2023

W
o

rk
in

g
 

B
u

d
g

e
t

F
o

re
c
a
s
te

d

Income

Rents -46,247 -46,247 0

Service Charges -981 -981 0

Supporting People -70 -70 0

Interest on Cash Balances -137 -137 0

Grants -296 -296 0

Insurance -171 -170 1

Other Income -49 -58 -9 

Total Income -47,951 -47,959 -8 

Net Expenditure 4,598 4,503 -94 

HRA Reserve £'000

Balance b/f 01/04/2023 16,998

Budgeted movement in year -4,598 

Variance for the year 94

Balance c/f  31/03/2024 12,495

T
udalen 92



APPENDIX E

Working Budget

DEPARTMENT/SCHEMES

E
x

p
e

n
d

itu
re

 

£
'0

0
0

In
c

o
m

e
        

£
'0

0
0

N
e

t             

£
'0

0
0

E
x

p
e

n
d

itu
re

 

£
'0

0
0

In
c

o
m

e
        

£
'0

0
0

N
e

t             

£
'0

0
0 Comment

COMMUNITIES

 - Public Housing 39,384 -15,497 23,887 40,477 -15,497 24,980 1,093

Sewage Treatment Works Upgrading 20 0 20 20 0 20 0

Internal and External Works (Property) 13,755 0 13,755 15,087 0 15,087 1,332

Works on Decanted Properties, and purchase of furniture for sheltered 

housing. Project Working Group to identify underspends in other areas of 

the programme.

Environmental Works (Housing Services) 350 0 350 350 0 350 0

Adaptations and Equalities Works (Building Services) 2,000 0 2,000 2,000 0 2,000 0

Programme Delivery and Strategy 1,916 0 1,916 1,916 0 1,916 0

Housing Development Programme (New builds & Stock 

Increase Programme)
19,628 0 19,628 19,389 0 19,389 -239

Main Variances: £631k 5-8 Spilman St, £1,646k Demolitions at 

Brynmefys, -£1,215k delays to new builds because of ecology matters, -

£1,200k Tyisha development slip to 2024/25.

Retrofit and Decarbonisation 1,715 0 1,715 1,715 0 1,715 0

MRA and IHP Grants Income 0 -15,497 -15,497 0 -15,497 -15,497 0

 - Private Housing 3,335 -368 2,967 3,335 -368 2,967 0

Disabled Facilities Grant (DFG) 2,588 0 2,588 2,588 0 2,588 0

ENABLE - Adaptations to Support Independent Living 368 -368 0 368 -368 0 0

Empty Properties Initiatives 379 0 379 379 0 379 0

 - Leisure 4,406 -1,264 3,142 3,124 -645 2,479 -663

Leisure Centres 1,995 0 1,995 2,002 0 2,002 7 Ammanford 3G Pitch on budget, £7k costs at Carmarthen LC.

Oriel Myrddin Redevelopment 1,802 -1,000 802 700 -500 200 -602 Delays owing to Trust governance matters.

Libraries & Museums 411 -264 147 263 -145 118 -29 Two-year scheme on car parking at Abergwili Museum.

Country Parks 198 0 198 159 0 159 -39 Slippage against phase 2 of the Pump Track. 

Capital Programme 2023/24

Capital Budget Monitoring - Scrutiny Report for June 2023 - Main Variances
Forecasted V

a
ria

n
c

e
 fo

r 

Y
e

a
r £

'0
0

0

T
udalen 93



APPENDIX E

Working Budget

DEPARTMENT/SCHEMES

E
x

p
e

n
d

itu
re

 

£
'0

0
0

In
c

o
m

e
        

£
'0

0
0

N
e

t             

£
'0

0
0

E
x

p
e

n
d

itu
re

 

£
'0

0
0

In
c

o
m

e
        

£
'0

0
0

N
e

t             

£
'0

0
0 Comment

Capital Programme 2023/24

Capital Budget Monitoring - Scrutiny Report for June 2023 - Main Variances
Forecasted V

a
ria

n
c

e
 fo

r 

Y
e

a
r £

'0
0

0

REGENERATION 106,862 -44,763 62,099 58,536 -36,253 22,283 -39,816

Swansea Bay City Region Projects 72,226 -31,413 40,813 43,365 -31,413 11,952 -28,861

Llanelli Coast JV 0 0 0 1 -1 0 0

Rural Employment Spaces JV 1,000 0 1,000 0 0 0 -1,000 Slip to 2024/25 - No spend in current year planned.

Business Grants & Strategic Capital Projects 5,069 0 5,069 1,713 0 1,713 -3,356 Slip to 2024/25 - Limited applications from third parties.

Employment Sites 5,067 0 5,067 5,170 41 5,211 144 Cross Hands Phase 2 to be funded from Cross Hands JV

Town Centres 694 0 694 174 0 174 -520 Slippage on Carmarthen Old Quarter Projects. (Jackson's Lane).

Transforming Towns Strategic Projects 3,833 0 3,833 2,883 0 2,883 -950 Slip to 2024/25 - Delays with purchasing properties.

Business Support for Renewable Energy Initiatives 456 0 456 150 0 150 -306 Slip to 2024/25 - Project under review.

Ten Town Growth Plan 1,000 0 1,000 200 0 200 -800 Delays because of changes to State Aid rules.

Transforming Towns - Place Making (TTPM) 1,680 -925 755 0 0 0 -755 Slip to 2024/25 - Delays with purchasing properties.

Levelling Up Fund - Carmarthen Hwb 15,837 -12,425 3,412 4,880 -4,880 0 -3,412
Slip to 2024/25 - Delays owing to ongoing building configuration 

discussions.

TOTAL 153,987 -61,892 92,095 105,472 -52,763 52,709 -39,386

T
udalen 94



APPENDIX F

Housing H.R.A.(Public Sector)

Working Budget Forecasted

Scheme

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
 

£
'0

0
0

In
c
o

m
e
        

£
'0

0
0

N
e
t             

£
'0

0
0

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
 

£
'0

0
0

In
c
o

m
e
        

£
'0

0
0

N
e
t             

£
'0

0
0

Public Sector Housing External Funding 0 -15,497 -15,497 0 -15,497 -15,497 0

Energy Efficiency External Funding 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

External Grant Funding (SHG, ORP, etc) 0 -9,272 -9,272 0 -9,272 -9,272 0

Major Repairs Allowance - MRA - Income 0 -6,225 -6,225 0 -6,225 -6,225 0

Sewage Treatment Works Upgrading 20 0 20 20 0 20 0

Sewage Treatment Works Upgrading 20 0 20 20 0 20 0

Internal and External Works (PROPERTY) 13,755 0 13,755 15,087 0 15,087 1,332

Sheltered Housing Investment 370 0 370 796 0 796 426 Additional Costs on furniture.

Voids To Achieve The CHS (VOI) 6,000 0 6,000 6,000 0 6,000 0

Planned M&E Works (MEHC) 1,898 0 1,898 1,898 0 1,898 0

Internal Refurbishment (PKB) 350 0 350 350 0 350 0

Housing Minor Works (HMO) 900 0 900 1,805 0 1,805 905 Relates mainly to costs on Decants.

Rendering and External Works (EXP & EXI) 1,750 0 1,750 1,750 0 1,750 0

Re-Roofing - Council Dwellings 500 0 500 500 0 500 0

Risk Reduction Measures 1,987 0 1,987 1,987 0 1,987 0

Environmental Works (Housing Services) 350 0 350 350 0 350 0

Environmental Works Project (EWP) 250 0 250 250 0 250 0

Garages 100 0 100 100 0 100 0

Adaptations 2,000 0 2,000 2,000 0 2,000 0

Adaptations For The Disabled 2,000 0 2,000 2,000 0 2,000 0

Programme Delivery and Strategy 1,916 0 1,916 1,916 0 1,916 0

CHS Programme 1,500 0 1,500 1,500 0 1,500 0

Stock Condition Survey 2022-23 - County Wide 416 0 416 416 0 416 0

Housing Development Programme (New builds & 

Stock Increase Programme)

19,628 0 19,628 19,389 0 19,389 -239

Purchase of Private Dwellings for Hsg Stock 8,548 0 8,548 8,548 0 8,548 0

Empty Homes 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Strategic Regeneration Schemes 1,800 0 1,800 3,977 0 3,977 2,177 Accelerated works on development of 508 Spilman St and 

Brynmefys.

Council New Build 6,280 0 6,280 5,064 0 5,064 -1,216 Projects still being worked up.

Capital Budget Monitoring - Scrutiny Report For June 2023

V
a
ria

n
c
e

 fo
r 

Y
e
a

r £
'0

0
0

Comment

T
udalen 95



APPENDIX F

Housing H.R.A.(Public Sector)

Working Budget Forecasted

Scheme

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
 

£
'0

0
0

In
c
o

m
e
        

£
'0

0
0

N
e
t             

£
'0

0
0

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
 

£
'0

0
0

In
c
o

m
e
        

£
'0

0
0

N
e
t             

£
'0

0
0

Capital Budget Monitoring - Scrutiny Report For June 2023

V
a
ria

n
c
e

 fo
r 

Y
e
a

r £
'0

0
0

Comment

Station Road / Tyisha Masterplan 1,200 0 1,200 0 0 0 -1,200 Slip to 2024-25. New development partner being engaged 

after July 2024.

Assisted Living Schemes 1,200 0 1,200 1,200 0 1,200 0

Specialist Accommodation 200 0 200 200 0 200 0

Pentre Awel (Zone 3) 400 0 400 400 0 400 0

Retrofit and Decarbonisation 1,715 0 1,715 1,715 0 1,715 0

CX Housing Assets - Asset Management System 245 0 245 245 0 245 0

New Decarbonisation Initiatives 1,470 0 1,470 1,470 0 1,470 0

NET BUDGET 39,384 -15,497 23,887 40,477 -15,497 24,980 1,093

T
udalen 96



APPENDIX G

Housing G.F.(Private Sector)

Working Budget Forecasted

Scheme

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
 

£
'0

0
0

In
c
o

m
e
        

£
'0

0
0

N
e
t             

£
'0

0
0

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
 

£
'0

0
0

In
c
o

m
e
        

£
'0

0
0

N
e
t             

£
'0

0
0

Disabled Facility Grants 2,588 0 2,588 2,588 0 2,588 0

Disabled Facility Grants 2,588 0 2,588 2,588 0 2,588 0

DFG - Capitalised Salaries 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

ENABLE - Adaptations to Support Independent 

Living

368 -368 0 368 -368 0 0

ENABLE - Adaptations to Support Independent Living 368 -368 0 368 -368 0 0

Empty Properties Initiatives 379 0 379 379 0 379 0

Western Valleys (Landlord Scheme) 254 0 254 254 0 254 0

Valleys Task Force (Owner Occupants) 125 0 125 125 0 125 0

NET BUDGET 3,335 -368 2,967 3,335 -368 2,967 0

Capital Budget Monitoring - Scrutiny Report For June 2023

V
a
ria

n
c
e

 fo
r 

Y
e
a

r £
'0

0
0

Comment

T
udalen 97



APPENDIX H

Leisure

Working Budget Forecasted

Scheme

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
 

£
'0

0
0

In
c
o

m
e
        

£
'0

0
0

N
e
t             

£
'0

0
0

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
 

£
'0

0
0

In
c
o

m
e
        

£
'0

0
0

N
e
t             

£
'0

0
0

Leisure Centres 1,995 0 1,995 2,002 0 2,002 7

Carmarthen Leisure Centre & Track 0 0 0 7 0 7 7

Amman Valley Leisure Centre 3G Pitch 1,995 0 1,995 1,995 0 1,995 0

Arts & Culture 1,802 -1,000 802 700 -500 200 -602 Delays owing to Trust governance matters.

Oriel Myrddin Redevelopment  (765001) 1,802 -1,000 802 700 -500 200 -602

Libraries & Museums 411 -264 147 263 -145 118 -29

Parc Howard Master Plan 19 0 19 19 0 19 0

Towy Gateway - Contribution to Tywi Gateway Trust for 

Bishop's Park (Reffcus)

62 0 62 62 0 62 0

Brilliant Basics Fund 2023/24 - Carmarthenshire County 

Museum Car Parking Improvements

330 -264 66 182 -145 37 -29
Reprofile - Slip to 2024-25 - 2-year Scheme

Country Parks 198 0 198 159 0 159 -39

Pembrey Country Park - Cycling Hub 104 0 104 65 0 65 -39 Slippage against phase 2 of the Pump Track. 

Morfa Bacas (MCP) 94 0 94 94 0 94 0 Waiting for award of funding

NET BUDGET 4,406 -1,264 3,142 3,124 -645 2,479 -663

Capital Budget Monitoring - Scrutiny Report For June 2023

V
a
ria

n
c
e

 fo
r 

Y
e
a

r £
'0

0
0

Comment

T
udalen 98



APPENDIX I

Regeneration

Working Budget Forecasted

Scheme

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
 

£
'0

0
0

In
c
o

m
e
        

£
'0

0
0

N
e
t             

£
'0

0
0

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
 

£
'0

0
0

In
c
o

m
e
        

£
'0

0
0

N
e
t             

£
'0

0
0

Llanelli JV General 0 0 0 1 -1 0 0

Heol Y Bwlch (Llanelli JV) 0 0 0 1 -1 0 0

Rural Employment Spaces JV 1,000 0 1,000 0 0 0 -1,000 Slip to 2024-25 - No spend in current year planned.

Rural Employment Spaces JV - Budget 1,000 0 1,000 0 0 0 -1,000

Swansea Bay City Region Projects 72,226 -31,413 40,813 43,365 -31,413 11,952 -28,861

SB City Region - Pentre Awel - Phase 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

SB City Region - Pentre Awel - Ground Investigation 

Works
0 0 0 0 0 0 0

SB City Region - Digital Project 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

SB City Region - Yr Egin Ph2 2,000 0 2,000 2,000 0 2,000 0 Slip to 2024/25.

SB City Region - Pentre Awel. Zone 1 - Pre-Construction 

Stage
0 0 0 306 0 306 306

SB City Region - Pentre Awel. Zone 1 - Construction 

Stage
70,226 -31,413 38,813 41,059 -31,413 9,646 -29,167 Slip to 2024/25.

Business Grants & Strategic Capital Projects 5,069 0 5,069 1,713 0 1,713 -3,356

Pendine Iconic International Visitors Destination 83 0 83 103 0 103 20

Rural Enterprise Fund 1,677 0 1,677 353 0 353 -1,324 Slip to 2024/25.

Transformation Commercial Property Development Fund 2,911 0 2,911 1,000 0 1,000 -1,911 Slip to 2024/25.

Ammanford Regeneration Development Fund 168 0 168 134 0 134 -34

Llandeilo Market Hall 18 0 18 13 0 13 -5

Business Flood Relief & Infrastructure Fund 212 0 212 110 0 110 -102

Employment Sites 5,067 0 5,067 5,170 41 5,211 144

Cross Hands East Strategic Employment Site Ph1 212 0 212 212 0 212 0

Cross Hands East Plot 3 Development 4,770 0 4,770 4,788 -18 4,770 0

Cross Hands East Phase 2 85 0 85 170 59 229 144

Valleys Town Centres - Digital Infrastructure 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Town Centres 694 0 694 174 0 174 -520 Slip to 2024-25.

Carmarthen Town Regeneration - Jacksons Lane 

(81086)
114 0 114 114 0 114 0

Carmarthen Old Town Quarter Regeneration 580 0 580 60 0 60 -520 Slip to 2024-25.

Capital Budget Monitoring - Scrutiny Report For June 2023

V
a
ria

n
c
e

 fo
r 

Y
e
a

r £
'0

0
0

Comment

T
udalen 99



APPENDIX I

Regeneration

Working Budget Forecasted

Scheme

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
 

£
'0

0
0

In
c
o

m
e
        

£
'0

0
0

N
e
t             

£
'0

0
0

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
 

£
'0

0
0

In
c
o

m
e
        

£
'0

0
0

N
e
t             

£
'0

0
0

Capital Budget Monitoring - Scrutiny Report For June 2023

V
a
ria

n
c
e

 fo
r 

Y
e
a

r £
'0

0
0

Comment

Transforming Towns Strategic Projects 3,833 0 3,833 2,883 0 2,883 -950

TRI Strategic Projects - Market Street North 2,362 0 2,362 1,706 0 1,706 -656 Slip to 2024/25.

TRI Strategic Projects - Former YMCA Building, Stepney 

Street, Llanelli
1,177 0 1,177 1,177 0 1,177 0

Transforming Towns Strategic Projects 294 0 294 0 0 0 -294 Slip to 2024-25.

Business Support for Renewable Energy Initiatives 456 0 456 150 0 150 -306 Under review - slip to 2024-25.

Business Support for Renewable Energy Initiatives 456 0 456 150 0 150 -306 Under review - slip to 2024-25.

Ten Town Growth Plan 1,000 0 1,000 200 0 200 -800 Slip to 2024-25.

Ten Town Growth Plan 1,000 0 1,000 200 0 200 -800

Transforming Towns - Place Making (TTPM) 1,680 -925 755 0 0 0 -755 Slip to 2024-25.  Project delayed.

TTPM - Acquisition of 36 Stepney Street 670 -250 420 0 0 0 -420

TTPM - Acquisition of Family Value, Carmarthen 250 -175 75 0 0 0 -75

TTPM - Acquisition of Post Office, Carmarthen 400 -250 150 0 0 0 -150

TTPM - Overall Acquisitions/Works in Primary Towns 360 -250 110 0 0 0 -110

TTPM - Acquisition of 1/3Vaughan Street 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Levelling Up Carmarthen West & Pembs South 

(LUF029)
15,837 -12,425 3,412 4,880 -4,880 0 -3,412

Levelling Up Carmarthen West & Pembs South 

(LUF029): Carmarthen Hub
15,837 -12,425 3,412 4,880 -4,880 0 -3,412 Project given additional time to complete by Dept of LUF.

NET BUDGET 106,862 -44,763 62,099 58,536 -36,253 22,283 -39,816

T
udalen 100



APPENDIX J

1 Summary position as at : 30th June 2023 £170 k variance from delivery target

2023/24 2023/24 2023/24

Target Delivered Variance

£'000 £'000 £'000

Chief Executive 242 212 30

Communities 460 420 40

Place & Infrastructure 120 20 100

822 652 170

2 Analysis of delivery against target for managerial and policy decisions:

Managerial £130 k

Policy £40 k

2023/24 2023/24 2023/24 2023/24 2023/24 2023/24

Target Delivered Variance Target Delivered Variance

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Chief Executive 242 212 30 0 0 0

Communities 420 420 0 40 0 40

Place & Infrastructure 100 0 100 20 20 0

762 632 130 60 20 40

3 Appendix J (i): Savings proposals not on target

Appendix J (ii): Savings proposals on target (for information)

MANAGERIAL POLICY

2023/24  Savings Monitoring Report

Communities, Homes & Regeneration Scrutiny Committee

28th September 2023

Off delivery target

Off delivery target

2023/24 Savings monitoring

page 1 of 6

Tudalen 101



APPENDIX J (i) SAVINGS NOT ON TARGET

DEPARTMENT
2022/23 

Budget

2023/24 

Proposed

2023/24 

Delivered

2023/24 

Variance

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Managerial - Off Target

Chief Executive

Regeneration division 4,547

Regeneration is a key priority for the council. The Division provides Business, 

employability, grant funding and skills support and advice. We also deliver physical 

regeneration projects throughout the county, including the Swansea Bay City Deal 

Pentre Awel Life Science and Wellness Village planned for Delta Lakes.  The 

Regeneration Division is responsible for the management of  land assets (those within 

the economic/commercial portfolio) of the Council, taking a strategic commercial view 

to ensure the portfolio is managed to meet the Council’s economic development 

needs.  The Division is also responsible for the delivery of the Council’s Net Zero 

Carbon agenda. 

30 0 30
£30k Staffing cost savings (possibly making use of external funding in place of 

current core funding); 

Chief Executive Total 30 0 30

Place & Infrastructure

Place & Sustainability

Ecology

net 

divisional 

budget of 

£3.2M

Delivery of a range of specialist ecology and landscape advice 100 0 100

The proposal is to create two additional officers at a cost of c£50K each :An 

additional Project Ecology post and a Project Landscape officer. The two posts 

would sit within Place and Sustainability and deliver a range of specialist ecology 

advice to projects being led by the council which is routinely procured from 

external consultancy, for example to ensure compliance with protected species 

legislation and in the development of capital infrastructure to meet landscape 

 requirements. Initial scoping work undertaken with the communities and 

regeneration teams estimates that c£105k project funding is being contracted 

out to consultancy in both areas. Figures do not include procurement or 

management costs associated with the contracting process. It is expected that 

the councils spend in these areas is unlikely to diminish and will increase over 

the coming  years due to the regulatory and statutory environment.  It is 

proposed that these services are brought in house to be delivered by the 

officers, offering financial savings and adding capacity and resilience to  the 

planning teams. Further potential to develop the service as a centre of 

excellence and offer  provision to other local authorities at a cost  will be 

 explored should capacity allow.

Roles not yet recruited to, saving currently 

under review

Total Place & Sustainability division  100 0 100

Place & Infrastructure Total 100 0 100  

Policy - Off Target

Communities

Leisure

Outdoor Education 181 

Pendine Outdoors Education Centre is a large residential activity centre catering for 

school, youth and adult groups. On site activities include climbing, abseiling, high and 

low ropes courses, Archery, Zip wire, canoeing, surfing and Team building exercises. 

The accommodation caters for up to 150 people on a B&B, half or full board basis. 

Self-catering and camping facilities are also available for smaller groups.

40 0 40
The age of the infrastructure on site is of concern for the future and requires continued 

maintenance which is no longer viable. The proposal is to close Pendine education centre 

and look at providing an alterative facility within the county.

The Service is currently considering options for 

providing alternative delivery away from existing 

site in Pendine

Total Leisure 40 0 40

Communities Total 40 0 40

FACT FILE EFFICIENCY DESCRIPTION REASON FOR VARIANCE

page 2 of 6

T
udalen 102



APPENDIX J (ii) SAVINGS ON TARGET

DEPARTMENT
2022/23 

Budget

2023/24 

Proposed

2023/24 

Delivered

2023/24 

Variance

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Managerial - On Target

Chief Executive

Regeneration division 4,547

Regeneration is a key priority for the council. The Division provides Business, employability, grant funding and skills 

support and advice. We also deliver physical regeneration projects throughout the county, including the Swansea 

Bay City Deal Pentre Awel Life Science and Wellness Village planned for Delta Lakes.  The Regeneration Division is 

responsible for the management of  land assets (those within the economic/commercial portfolio) of the Council, 

taking a strategic commercial view to ensure the portfolio is managed to meet the Council’s economic development 

needs.  The Division is also responsible for the delivery of the Council’s Net Zero Carbon agenda. 

82 82 0
£10k - Econ Dev revenue budget cut - split 50/50 between Rural & Llanelli; £12k - 

Operational depots revenue budget cut; £30k - Admin building revenue budget cut; 

£30k - Property industrial premises budget cut

Regeneration division 4,547

Regeneration is a key priority for the council. The Division provides Business, employability, grant funding and skills 

support and advice. We also deliver physical regeneration projects throughout the county, including the Swansea 

Bay City Deal Pentre Awel Life Science and Wellness Village planned for Delta Lakes.  The Regeneration Division is 

responsible for the management of  land assets (those within the economic/commercial portfolio) of the Council, 

taking a strategic commercial view to ensure the portfolio is managed to meet the Council’s economic development 

needs.  The Division is also responsible for the delivery of the Council’s Net Zero Carbon agenda. 

130 130 0

Additional £60k staff saving cost. Additional £30k econ dev revenue budget 

cut – split 50/50 between Llanelli and rural. £40k through mothballing admin 

areas where vacant to reduce utility costs etc.

Chief Executive Total 212 212 0

Communities Budget

Leisure

Increased Parking income -66 Increased parking income at coastal car parks and potential development of motorhomes sites 10 10 0

Increase charges above inflation: season tickets and parking at Country 

Parks and Millennium Coastal Path and camping charges. Develop 

additional income generating activities. Enhance enforcement to minimise 

problematic parking.

Country Parks -265 

Pembrey Country Park is one of the most visited outdoor facilities in Carmarthenshire and Wales, 

regularly attracting around half a million users annually. Whilst usage numbers have fluctuated this year 

with lockdowns and restrictions, the park was busier than ever during August, highlighting the value 

people put on great and safe outdoor spaces. The park has an 8 mile beach, a 320 pitch caravan and 

camping site, 550 acres of woodlands, a 130m long dry ski slope and toboggan run in Wales, along with 

a new Crazy Golf course, 9 hole pitch and putt facility, a miniature model steam railway, a riding centre, 

and the National Closed Road Cycle circuit and pump track.

25 25 0
Improve operating efficiency of Pembrey Country Park to reduce spend on 

waste collection, internal communications, fleet running costs, staffing hours.

Leisure Centres 601 

There are 6 Leisure Centres in operated by the Council in Carmarthenshire: Llanelli, Carmarthen, 

Ammanford, Llandovery, St Clears and Newcastle Emlyn. A variety of activities take place at these 

centres such as: Swimming, Diving, Canoeing, Fitness, Cycling, Badminton, Tennis, Table Tennis, 

Squash, Hockey, Netball, Basketball, Football, Rugby, Cricket, Gymnastics, Birthday Parties, Holiday 

programmes.  There are normally over a million visits to the Leisure facilities annually  Typically our 

Leisure facilities attract over a million per annum, collecting £4m in income. 2020/21 has seen usage 

numbers and income crippled to around 25% of normal levels as the coronavirus lockdown and 

restrictions affect trading. A new Actif Anywhere online service has been launched to compliment the 

physical offer at sites during this unprecedented period.

20 20 0

Additional income across Leisure from improved offer at Aman Valley 

following refurbishment, improved offer at Llanelli 2G pitch and new and 

innovative leisure activities e.g. FAST, play and aqua activities.

Reduction in staffing levels and greater efficiencies in procurement. Improve 

staff rota management to reduce staffing, and review live streaming 

provision

Y Gat Craft Centre 72 

Arts venues include Oriel Myrddin Art Gallery in Carmarthen, Y Gât in St. Clears and the Dylan Thomas 

Boathouse, Laugharne

Y Gât (formerly known as St. Clears Craft Centre) is an arts facility that also hosts the local library and an 

in-house catering facility. The facility has an open gallery / shop area along with conference rooms 

facilities and studio spaces for local artists to hire. 

5 5 0
Asset transfer progressing with St Clears Town Council for handover 1/4/23 

and £5k reduced funding year on year.

Libraries 2,700 

Carmarthenshire libraries provide an extensive choice of books, DVDs, CDs, online services, 

newspapers and magazines. With over half a million books on offer between 3 regional, 13 branch and 

mobile libraries, the service offers invaluable support and access to Carmarthenshire residents. Public 

access computers and Wi-Fi are available at all libraries, and typically, the service issues over 600,000 

books per year.  The mobile service provides a valuable outreach services to rural parts of the County, 

linking up with various partners to deliver public information services online.

20 20 0 Increased operating efficiency approx £20k pa - reduction in staffing hours

FACT FILE EFFICIENCY DESCRIPTION

page 3 of 6

T
udalen 103



APPENDIX J (ii) SAVINGS ON TARGET

DEPARTMENT
2022/23 

Budget

2023/24 

Proposed

2023/24 

Delivered

2023/24 

Variance

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

FACT FILE EFFICIENCY DESCRIPTION

Theatres 978 

Carmarthenshire Theatres manage the Miners’ Ammanford, Lyric Carmarthen and Ffwrnes Llanelli and 

promote a broad range of bi-lingual events and productions throughout the year for all age groups and 

interests. In previous years, in excess of 100,000 paying customers and participants visited and make 

use of our facilities, however, during 2020/21 Theatres have been hit harder than most services, not 

being allowed to open at all due to Covid restrictions. Prior to this financial year, Carmarthenshire’s 

flagship theatre, The Ffwrnes, established itself as one of Wales’s leading Cultural and Entertainment 

venues. Typical annual figures pre 2020/21 would have been as follows: 266 visiting companies and 

hirers; 400 performances/events; 74,130 attendances; 33,805 participants. Whilst costs and lost income 

are reclaimed through hardship funding grants for this financial year, the service has also innovated to 

develop new online products and shows, which will hopefully grow our audience base and income in 

future years. 

10 10 0
Improve operating efficiency of Theatres to reduce spend on operational 

costs and  staffing hours.

Total Leisure 90 90 0

Homes and Safer Communities 

CF Housing 1,222 

Public Protection and CF housing services is part of Homes and Safer Communities. It  provides a range 

of services in relation to Housing, Environmental Protection, Business and Consumer Affairs, Housing 

Options and Tenancy Support and Community Engagement.

30 30 0

Gradual reduction in the use of  Bed and Breakfast as an option for 

homelessness from Sep 2023. Would need to make sure that better, more 

cost effective, alternatives were in place.

CF Housing 1,222 

Public Protection and CF housing services is part of Homes and Safer Communities. It  provides a range 

of services in relation to Housing, Environmental Protection, Business and Consumer Affairs, Housing 

Options and Tenancy Support and Community Engagement.

250 250 0
Funding some of Temporary Accommodation portfolio through alternative 

funding sources.

Realignment of posts in Consumer and Business 

Affairs
50 50 0 Realignment of posts in Consumer and Business Affairs

Total Homes and Safer Communities 330 330 0

Communities Budget Total 420 420 0

Policy - On Target

Place & Infrastructure

Place & Sustainability

Planning 

net divisional 

budget of 

£3.2M

 We are required by law to publicise all planning applications. Certain application types are advertised in 

the local newspapers depending on specific factors relating to the application's location.
20 20 0

It is proposed to stop advertising in the local newspapers and publicise 

through other methods that are currently undertaken.  This can include direct 

consultations with statutory bodies that include Local Members and Town & 

Community Council, site notices, and neighbour notifications.  A list of 

registered and determined applications are also published weekly on the 

Council's website, as well as being available to view in real-time.

Total Place & Sustainability division  20 20 0

Place & Infrastructure Total 20 20 0

page 4 of 6

T
udalen 104



APPENDIX J (iii)

1 Summary position as at : 30th June 2023 £25 k variance from delivery target

2022/23 2022/23 2022/23

Target Delivered Variance

£'000 £'000 £'000

Communities 25 0 25

25 0 25

2 Analysis of delivery against target for managerial and policy decisions:

Managerial £25 k

Policy £0 k

2022/23 2022/23 2022/23 2022/23 2022/23 2022/23

Target Delivered Variance Target Delivered Variance

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Communities 25 0 25 0 0 0

25 0 25 0 0 0

3 Appendix J (iv): Savings proposals not delivered in 2022/23

MANAGERIAL POLICY

Savings Monitoring Report - 2022/23 brought forward

Communities, Homes & Regeneration Scrutiny Committee

28th September 2023

2022/23 Savings monitoring

Off delivery target

ahead of target

page 5 of 6

Tudalen 105



APPENDIX J (iv) 2022-23 Bfwd

DEPARTMENT
2021/22 

Budget

2022/23 Not 

achieved

2022/23 

Delivered in 

2023/24

2023/24 

Variance

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Managerial - Off Target

Communities

Leisure

Franchise Lettings 0 

An indoor and outdoor high quality, year-round visitor destination that aims to 

maximise Pendine’s heritage and its natural assets to drive forward the resort’s 

future economic regeneration as a ‘day and stay’ event destination

25 0 25 Improved income streams from franchise lettings across whole service. Progress delayed due to delays in contract completion

Total Leisure 25 0 25

Communities Total 25 0 25

Policy - Off Target

NOTHING TO REPORT

FACT FILE EFFICIENCY DESCRIPTION REASON FOR VARIANCE

page 6 of 6

T
udalen 106



 

 
 
 

PWYLLGOR CRAFFU  
CYMUNEDAU, CARTREFI AC ADFYWIO 

28ain MEDI 2023 
 
 

ADRODDIAD ALLDRO CYLLIDEB  
REFENIW 2022/23 

 
 
GOFYNNIR I’R PWYLLGOR CRAFFU: 
 
• derbyn yr Adroddiad Alldro Cyllideb ar gyfer y Gwasanaethau Tai, Adfywio ac Eiddo, 

Lle a Chynaliadwyedd ac Hamdden a Chwaraeon am 2022/23. 
 
Y RHESYMAU:  
 
• I ddatgan sefyllfa diwedd blwyddyn y gyllideb i’r Pwyllgor ynglyn â 2022/23. 
 

 
 
AELODAU’R CABINET SY’N GYFRIFOL AM Y PORTFFOLIO:  
• Cyng. Linda Evans (Dirprwy Arweinydd ac Cartrefi)  
• Cyng. Ann Davies (Materion Gwledig a Pholisi Cynllunio)   
• Cyng. Hazel Evans (Adfywio, Hamdden, Diwylliant a Thwristiaeth) 
• Cyng. Alun Lenny (Adnoddau)  
 

 
 
Y Gyfarwyddiaeth: 
Gwasanaethau 
Corfforaethol  
 
Enw Cyfarwyddwr y 
Gwasanaeth: 
Chris Moore 
 
Awdur yr adroddiad: 
Chris Moore 
 

 
Swydd: 
 
 
 
Cyfarwyddwr y 
Gwasanaethau 
Corfforaethol 

 
Rhif Ffôn / Cyfeiriad E-
bost: 
 
 
 
01267 224120  
CMoore@sirgar.gov.uk   
 

 
  

Tudalen 107

Eitem Rhif  9

mailto:CMoore@sirgar.gov.uk


 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
COMMUNITIES, HOMES & REGENERATION 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
28th SEPTEMBER 2023 

 
Revenue Budget  

Outturn Report 2022/23 
 
The Financial Outturn Report is presented as follows: 
 
Revenue Budgets 
Appendix A 
Summary position for Communities, Homes & Regeneration Scrutiny Committee. 
Services within the Communities, Homes & Regeneration Scrutiny remit are reporting a 
£236k overspend. 
 
Appendix B 
Report on the main variances on agreed budgets. 
 
Appendix C 
Detail variances for information purposes only. 
 
Appendix D 
The HRA is reporting an overspend by £1,496k for 2022/23. 
 
Appendix E 
Details the Savings Monitoring position for the end of the year. 
 

 
DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? 
 

YES – A list of the main variances is 
attached to this report. 

 
 
 

Tudalen 108



 

IMPLICATIONS 
 
I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate 
Directors / Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications 
associated with this report. 
 
Signed:    Chris Moore  

 
Director of Corporate Services 

 
Policy, 
Crime & 
Disorder 
and 
Equalities 

Legal Finance ICT Risk 
Management 
Issues 

Staffing 
Implications 

Physical 
Assets  

 
NONE 
 

 
NONE 
 

 
YES  
 

 
NONE 
 

 
NONE 
 

 
NONE 
 

 
NONE 
 

 
3. Finance   
Revenue 
Overall, The Regeneration & Property, Place & Sustainability, Leisure & Recreation and 
Non-HRA Housing Services show a net variance of £236k against the 2022/23 approved 
budgets and the HRA Housing Service is showing an overspend of £1,496k. 
 
Savings Report 
At year end, £243k of Managerial savings against a target of £268k were delivered.  
There were no Policy savings put forward for 2022/23. 
 

 
 

CABINET MEMBER PORTFOLIO 
HOLDERS AWARE/CONSULTED? 
YES 
 

(Include any observations here) 

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information 
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report: 
 
THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW:  
Title of Document File Ref No. / Locations that the papers are available for public inspection 
 
2022/23 Budget 
 

 
Corporate Services Department, County Hall, Carmarthen 
 

 

Tudalen 109



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



APPENDIX A

EOY Feb 2023

Division Expenditure Income

Net non-

controllable Net Expenditure Income

Net non-

controllable Net
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Regeneration & Property 19,226 -13,496 3,211 8,941 19,380 -13,378 3,210 9,212 271 -193 

Place and Sustainability 5,670 -2,329 1,027 4,368 5,709 -2,905 1,027 3,831 -537 -455 

Leisure & Recreation 18,201 -9,870 8,674 17,004 18,241 -9,294 8,674 17,620 616 896

Council Fund Housing 9,237 -7,994 1,081 2,324 17,644 -16,514 1,081 2,211 -113 -138 

GRAND TOTAL 52,333 -33,689 13,992 32,637 60,973 -42,091 13,991 32,873 236 109

Forecasted 

Variance for 

Year

Communities, Homes & Regeneration Scrutiny Report 
Budget Monitoring - Actual 2022/23 - Summary

Working Budget Actual Actual 

Variance for 

Year

T
udalen 111



APPENDIX B

EOY Feb 2023

Division

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re

In
c
o

m
e

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re

In
c
o

m
e

A
c
tu

a
l 

V
a
ria

n
c
e
 

fo
r

Y
e
a
r Notes

F
o

re
c
a
s
te

d
 

V
a
ria

n
c
e
 

fo
r

Y
e
a
r

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Regeneration & Property

Regeneration - Core Budgets
Regeneration Management 308 0 341 0 33 Overspend due to cessation in staff time recharged to projects 33
Swansea Bay City Deal 0 0 -23 0 -23 Underspend on staff and travelling costs 0

Property 1,195 -91 1,013 -27 -119 

4 posts vacant during the year. These vacancies and an underspend on supplies and 

services are covering a shortfall on income generated from external work undertaken. -104 

Commercial Properties 48 -463 612 -628 399

£485k set aside to fund Market Street North Project, offset by additional income 

generated from high occupancy rates -86 

Provision Markets 700 -556 684 -511 28

Net shortfall in income across the portfolio due to low occupancy rates. Partially offset 

by underspends on premises and supplies and services costs. 13

Asset Sales 20 0 111 -5 86 Additional costs associated with making Kidwelly Town Hall structurally safe -0 
Operational Depots 475 0 455 0 -20 Underspend on various premises related costs -14 
Administrative Buildings 4,057 -796 4,129 -897 -28 Underspend on various premises related costs -0 
Industrial Premises 715 -1,519 798 -1,705 -102 High occupancy levels currently -78 

County Farms 147 -351 186 -328 61

Income target not met due to current economic climate as no scope to increase 

tenancy agreements at the moment (£21k). Additional property maintenance works 

undertaken £40k). 66
Livestock Markets 69 -114 29 -91 -18 One off additional income from Newcastle Emlyn Mart. -17 

Externally Funded Schemes 9,192 -9,188 8,269 -8,297 -32 

Underspend on flat rate income received from various grant projects ending in 

2022/23 -6 
Other Variances 6 0

Place and Sustainability
Place & Sustainability Unit 136 -17 203 -133 -49 Due to underspend on supplies & services -48 
Building Control 717 -509 644 -448 -12 Due to staff vacancy during the year,  now filled 0

Forward Planning 782 0 675 -1 -108 

Due to staff vacancies during the year with 1 post estimated to be filled in the new 

financial year -114 
Development Management 1,946 -948 1,805 -1,096 -289 Due to underspend on vacant posts during the year -259 

Conservation 537 -13 576 -88 -36 

Due to underspend on pay & fees budget,  includes £13k Wales Council for Voluntary 

Action additional funding -30 
Renewable Energy Fund 0 -53 0 -82 -29 Additional income received during the year 9
Other Variances -16 -12 

Leisure & Recreation
Burry Port Harbour 24 -107 35 -135 -15 Excess income achieved to budget for Parking & Catering -34 
Discovery Centre 6 -90 5 -124 -35 Excess income achieved to budget for Parking -28 
Pembrey Ski Slope 466 -475 539 -602 -54 Excess income achieved to budget -34 

Newcastle Emlyn Sports Centre 382 -192 357 -130 37

Income shortfall (Covid19 recovery) £62k offset by in year vacancies / lower use of 

casual staff £25k 24

Carmarthen Leisure Centre 1,641 -1,616 1,692 -1,413 253

Income shortfall (Covid19 recovery) £208k offset by in year vacancies / lower use of 

casual staff £46k, along with various overspends in S & S and Premises headings 245

Working Budget Actual

Communities, Homes & Regeneration Scrutiny Report 

Budget Monitoring - Actual 2022/23 - Main Variances

T
udalen 112



APPENDIX B

EOY Feb 2023

Division

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re

In
c
o

m
e

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re

In
c
o

m
e

A
c
tu

a
l 

V
a
ria

n
c
e
 

fo
r

Y
e
a
r Notes

F
o

re
c
a
s
te

d
 

V
a
ria

n
c
e
 

fo
r

Y
e
a
r

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Working Budget Actual

Communities, Homes & Regeneration Scrutiny Report 

Budget Monitoring - Actual 2022/23 - Main Variances

St Clears Leisure Centre 183 -44 175 -63 -27 S106 income not budgeted £13k along with in year vacancies -20 

Amman Valley Leisure Centre 1,035 -856 1,111 -779 153

Income shortfall (Covid19 recovery) £107k, along with Operational Consumables £61k 

and R & M £14k, offset in part with in year vacancies / lower use of casual staff £29k 134

Llandovery Swimming Pool 412 -259 440 -153 134

Income shortfall (Covid19 recovery) £106k along with overspend in Employees due to 

Pay Award not being fully funded 133
Actif Communities 326 -39 307 -59 -39 Core staff recharge to external grant -0 
Actif Facilities 250 0 262 -0 12 Small overspends in a number of S & S expenditure headings -7 
Actif health, fitness and dryside 215 -135 163 -40 43 Income shortfall (Covid19 recovery) 48

Catering - Sport Centres 324 -297 289 -226 35

Income shortfall (Covid19 recovery) £71k offset by an underspend in cost of Catering 

£33k plus numerous minor underspends 51

Sport & Leisure General 845 -46 724 -59 -134 

In year staff vacancies £44k, Premises Mtce £40k, Promotions / Marketing £37k, 

along with numerous smaller S & S underspends -62 
PEN RHOS 3G PITCH 21 -48 10 -50 -13 Numerous minor expenditure underspends -13 
St John Lloyd - 2G Pitch 63 -14 22 -11 -38 Numerous minor expenditure underspends -37 

Llanelli Leisure Centre 1,393 -1,094 1,490 -900 292

Income shortfall (Covid19 recovery) £198k, Premises Mtce £69k and Employee costs 

due to Pay Award not being fully funded £18k, along with various minor overspends in 

S & S headings 302
Outdoor Recreation - Staffing costs 438 0 255 0 -183 In year staff vacancies 97

Pembrey Country Park 905 -1,139 1,269 -1,311 191

Revenue contributions to Capital £122k Utilities £26k, cost of Agency staff to backfill 

in year vacant posts £43k 61
Pembrey Country Park Restaurant 541 -382 601 -511 -70 Over achievement of Catering income to budget -90 
Ammanford Library 309 -14 268 -10 -37 In year staff vacancies -34 

Llanelli Library 534 -30 515 -24 -13 In year staff vacancies -1 
Community Libraries 258 -7 238 -6 -19 In year staff vacancies -5 
Libraries General 1,133 -1 1,156 -7 18 Forecast overspend in Employees due to Pay Award not being fully funded 37
Carmarthen Museum, Abergwili. 228 -20 221 -46 -33 Income received in year not originally budgeted 1
Parc Howard Museum 158 -99 87 -48 -21 In year staff vacancies 8
Museums General 159 0 220 0 61 Unable to achieve vacancy factor, a legacy of undelivered PBB's and unfunded post 72

Arts General 16 0 0 0 -15 Vacant post being held pending restructure -15 
St Clears Craft Centre 123 -39 84 -19 -20 Vacant posts being held pending potential community run venture -19 
Cultural Services Management 103 0 84 0 -19 Numerous minor expenditure underspends -19 
Laugharne Boathouse 166 -117 161 -72 40 Income shortfall (Covid19 recovery) 40

Lyric Theatre 470 -315 415 -288 -27 

Income shortfall (Covid19 recovery) £28k offset by reduced cost of Performance Fees 

£38k, utilities £12k, staffing £12k plus minor S & S underspends -10 

Y Ffwrnes 930 -486 751 -374 -67 

Income shortfall (Covid19 recovery) £112k, offset by forecast underspend on Utilities 

£81k, Performance Fees £27k, Employees £31k, Contracted Services £25k  and 

numerous other minor expenditure underspends -23 
Attractor - Management 0 0 52 0 52 Project manager post not funded 51
Attractor - Hostel 0 0 166 -3 163 Expenditure relating to the set up of this new facility -4 
Attractor - Museum 0 0 32 0 32 Expenditure relating to the set up of this new facility 0

Attractor - Externals 7 -58 10 -13 48

Parking income budgeted for Attractor site not fully achievable due to delays in 

contract completion 46

T
udalen 113



APPENDIX B

EOY Feb 2023

Division

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re

In
c
o

m
e

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re

In
c
o

m
e

A
c
tu

a
l 

V
a
ria

n
c
e
 

fo
r

Y
e
a
r Notes

F
o

re
c
a
s
te

d
 

V
a
ria

n
c
e
 

fo
r

Y
e
a
r

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Working Budget Actual

Communities, Homes & Regeneration Scrutiny Report 

Budget Monitoring - Actual 2022/23 - Main Variances

Leisure Management 438 -3 358 -3 -79 

In year vacancy £44k plus underspends in Premises Mtce £28k and other minor S & S 

underspends -6 
Other Variances 11 4

Council Fund Housing
Independent Living and Affordable Homes 124 -45 88 -72 -64 Savings on supplies & services budget. -9 
Home Improvement (Non HRA) 674 -273 680 -418 -140 Over achievement of Income 0
Penybryn Traveller Site 183 -132 113 -101 -39 Underspend on Salaries -115 
Landlord Incentive 14 -11 115 -5 107 Improvements made to Social Lets properties, income to be recovered in future years -27 

Homelessness 169 -70 1,090 -952 38

Most payments relating to Homelessness prevention have been accommodated in the 

prevention grant. 0
Non HRA Re-Housing (Inc Chr) 179 0 134 0 -45 Underspend on Salaries 2

Other Variances 28 11

Grand Total 236 109

T
udalen 114



APPENDIX C

EOY Feb 2023

Division

E
x

p
e

n
d

itu
re

In
c

o
m

e

N
e

t n
o

n
-

c
o

n
tro

lla
b

l

e

N
e

t

E
x

p
e

n
d

itu
re

In
c

o
m

e

N
e

t n
o

n
-

c
o

n
tro

lla
b

l

e

N
e

t

A
c

tu
a

l 

V
a

ria
n

c
e

 

fo
r

Y
e
a
r Notes

F
o

re
c

a
s

te
d

 

V
a

ria
n

c
e

 

fo
r

Y
e
a
r

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Regeneration
Regeneration - Core Budgets

Regeneration Management 308 0 100 408 341 0 100 441 33

Overspend due to cessation in staff time recharged to 

projects 33
Parry Thomas Centre 45 -37 12 19 45 -37 12 19 -0 0
Betws wind farm community fund 87 -87 1 1 70 -70 1 1 0 0
Welfare Rights & Citizen's Advice 161 0 2 162 161 0 2 162 0 0
Llanelli Coast Joint Venture 150 -150 4 4 141 -141 4 4 -0 0
South West Wales Joint Committee 0 0 10 10 0 0 10 10 0 0
Business Grants 0 0 0 0 319 -319 0 0 0 0
Econ Dev-Rural Carmarthen, Ammanford, 

Town Centres 405 0 316 721 403 0 316 719 -2 0
Econ Dev-Llanelli, C Hands, 

Coastal,Business, Inf & Ent 470 0 160 629 470 0 160 629 0 0
Community Development and External 

Funding 545 0 153 698 552 -1 153 705 6 -3 
Food Banks 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 3 3 3
Kickstart 0 0 3 3 121 -121 3 3 0 0
Transforming Towns Business Fund 0 0 0 0 35 -35 0 0 0 0

Wellness 275 0 61 336 275 0 61 336 0 0
Swansea Bay City Deal 0 0 174 174 -23 0 173 150 -24 Underspend on staff and travelling costs 0

Property 1,195 -91 -1,068 37 1,013 -27 -1,068 -83 -119 

4 posts vacant during the year. These vacancies and an 

underspend on supplies and services are covering a shortfall 

on income generated from external work undertaken. -104 

Commercial Properties 48 -463 586 171 612 -628 586 570 399

£485k set aside to fund Market Street North Project, offset 

by additional income generated from high occupancy rates -86 

Provision Markets 700 -556 605 749 684 -511 605 777 28

Net shortfall in income across the portfolio due to low 

occupancy rates. Partially offset by underspends on 

premises and supplies and services costs. 13
Asset Transfers 0 0 0 0 12 -12 0 0 0 0

Asset Sales 20 0 0 20 111 -5 0 106 86

Additional costs associated with making Kidwelly Town Hall 

structurally safe -0 
Operational Depots 475 0 -292 183 455 0 -292 163 -20 Underspend on various premises related costs -14 
Administrative Buildings 4,057 -796 652 3,912 4,129 -897 652 3,884 -28 Underspend on various premises related costs -0 
Industrial Premises 715 -1,519 1,036 232 798 -1,705 1,036 130 -102 High occupancy levels currently -78 
The Beacon 164 -144 55 75 171 -151 55 75 -0 0

County Farms 147 -351 29 -175 186 -328 29 -114 61

Income target not met due to current economic climate as no 

scope to increase tenancy agreements at the moment 

(£21k). Additional property maintenance works undertaken 

£40k). 66
Livestock Markets 69 -114 5 -40 29 -91 5 -58 -18 One off additional income from Newcastle Emlyn Mart. -17 

Externally Funded Schemes 9,192 -9,188 607 611 8,269 -8,297 607 578 -32 

Underspend on flat rate income received from various grant 

projects ending in 2022/23 -6 
Regeneration Total 19,226 -13,496 3,211 8,941 19,380 -13,378 3,210 9,212 271 -193 

Budget Monitoring - Actual 2022/23 - Detail Variances

Working Budget Actual

Communities, Homes & Regeneration Scrutiny Report 

T
udalen 115



APPENDIX C

EOY Feb 2023

Division

E
x

p
e

n
d

itu
re

In
c

o
m

e

N
e

t n
o

n
-

c
o

n
tro

lla
b

l

e

N
e

t

E
x

p
e

n
d

itu
re

In
c

o
m

e

N
e

t n
o

n
-

c
o

n
tro

lla
b

l

e

N
e

t

A
c

tu
a

l 

V
a

ria
n

c
e

 

fo
r

Y
e
a
r Notes

F
o

re
c

a
s

te
d

 

V
a

ria
n

c
e

 

fo
r

Y
e
a
r

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Budget Monitoring - Actual 2022/23 - Detail Variances

Working Budget Actual

Communities, Homes & Regeneration Scrutiny Report 

Place and Sustainability
Place & Sustainability Unit 136 -17 -70 49 203 -133 -70 0 -49 Due to underspend on supplies & services -48 
Building Control 717 -509 225 433 644 -448 225 421 -12 Due to staff vacancy during the year,  now filled 0

Forward Planning 782 0 159 941 675 -1 159 833 -108 

Due to staff vacancies during the year with 1 post estimated 

to be filled in the new financial year -114 
Phosphates Management Grant 0 0 0 0 182 -182 0 -0 -0 0
Minerals 348 -198 117 267 319 -166 117 270 3 2
Development Management 1,946 -948 403 1,401 1,805 -1,096 403 1,112 -289 Due to underspend on vacant posts during the year -259 
Tywi Centre 71 -62 23 32 102 -92 23 33 1 2

Conservation 537 -13 118 642 576 -88 118 607 -36 

Due to underspend on pay & fees budget,  includes £13k 

Wales Council for Voluntary Action additional funding -30 
Caeau Mynydd Mawr - Marsh Fritillary 

Project 99 -96 12 15 109 -107 12 15 -0 0
Ash Dieback 282 0 11 293 281 0 11 292 -0 0
Morfa Berwick S.106 fund 0 0 0 0 2 -2 0 0 0 0
Machynys S.106 Project 6 -6 0 0 3 -3 0 0 0 0
Cross Hands West Conservation Management 4 -4 0 0 2 -2 0 0 0 0
Local Places for Nature 31 -31 0 0 68 -68 0 0 0 0
Dafen Custody Biodiversity Suite 6 -6 0 0 3 -3 0 0 0 0
Cae Pobl 0 0 0 0 2 -2 0 -0 -0 0
Renewable Energy Fund 0 -53 0 -53 0 -82 0 -82 -29 Additional income received during the year 9
Sustainable Development Unit 184 0 22 206 183 0 22 206 -0 -1 
Net Zero Carbon Plan 136 0 6 142 129 0 6 135 -7 -8 
Low Carbon Heat Development Grant 0 0 0 0 60 -60 0 0 0 0
GT Waste Planning Monitoring Report 19 -19 0 0 12 -19 0 -7 -7 -7 
GT South Wales Regional Aggregates 

Working Party 50 -50 0 0 44 -50 0 -6 -6 0
GT Carms Old Towns 204 -204 0 0 185 -185 0 -0 -0 0
GT Connecting Green Infrastructure 113 -113 1 1 117 -117 1 1 0 0
Place and Sustainability Total 5,670 -2,329 1,027 4,368 5,709 -2,905 1,027 3,831 -537 -455 

Leisure & Recreation
Millenium Coastal Park 266 -109 969 1,127 279 -112 969 1,136 9 -3 
MCP - investment properties 0 -73 0 -73 0 -73 0 -73 0 0
Burry Port Harbour 24 -107 71 -13 35 -135 71 -28 -15 Excess income achieved to budget for Parking & Catering -34 
Discovery Centre 6 -90 1 -83 5 -124 1 -118 -35 Excess income achieved to budget for Parking -28 
Pendine Outdoor Education Centre 583 -375 156 363 405 -188 156 372 9 -0 
Pembrey Beach Kiosk 0 -73 0 -72 0 -70 0 -69 3 3
Pembrey Ski Slope 466 -475 144 135 539 -602 144 81 -54 Excess income achieved to budget -34 

Newcastle Emlyn Sports Centre 382 -192 175 365 357 -130 175 402 37

Income shortfall (Covid19 recovery) £62k offset by in year 

vacancies / lower use of casual staff £25k 24

Carmarthen Leisure Centre 1,641 -1,616 1,174 1,199 1,692 -1,413 1,174 1,453 253

Income shortfall (Covid19 recovery) £208k offset by in year 

vacancies / lower use of casual staff £46k, along with various 

overspends in S & S and Premises headings 245
St Clears Leisure Centre 183 -44 103 242 175 -63 103 214 -27 s106 income not budgeted £13k along with in year vacancies -20 
Bro Myrddin Indoor Bowling Club 11 0 74 85 11 0 74 85 0 -0 

Amman Valley Leisure Centre 1,035 -856 474 653 1,111 -779 474 806 153

Income shortfall (Covid19 recovery) £107k, along with 

Operational Consumables £61k and R & M £14k, offset in 

part with in year vacancies / lower use of casual staff £29k 134

T
udalen 116



APPENDIX C

EOY Feb 2023

Division

E
x

p
e

n
d

itu
re

In
c

o
m

e

N
e

t n
o

n
-

c
o

n
tro

lla
b

l

e

N
e

t

E
x

p
e

n
d

itu
re

In
c

o
m

e

N
e

t n
o

n
-

c
o

n
tro

lla
b

l

e

N
e

t

A
c

tu
a

l 

V
a

ria
n

c
e

 

fo
r

Y
e
a
r Notes

F
o

re
c

a
s

te
d

 

V
a

ria
n

c
e

 

fo
r

Y
e
a
r

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Budget Monitoring - Actual 2022/23 - Detail Variances

Working Budget Actual

Communities, Homes & Regeneration Scrutiny Report 

Brynamman Swimming Pool 0 0 40 40 0 0 40 40 -0 -0 

Llandovery Swimming Pool 412 -259 147 300 440 -153 147 434 134

Income shortfall (Covid19 recovery) £106k along with 

overspend in Employees due to Pay Award not being fully 

funded 133
Garnant Golf Course 0 0 1 1 0 0 1 1 0 0
Gwendraeth Sports Centre 8 0 0 8 15 0 0 15 7 -37 
Dinefwr Bowling Centre 12 0 74 86 14 0 74 88 2 2
Actif Communities 326 -39 99 387 307 -59 99 347 -39 Core staff recharge to external grant -0 
Actif Facilities 250 0 78 328 262 -0 78 340 12 Small overspends in a number of S & S expenditure headings -7 
Actif health, fitness and dryside 215 -135 30 110 163 -40 30 153 43 Income shortfall (Covid19 recovery) 48
Specialist populations 90 -90 11 11 46 -44 11 13 2 1
Falls Prevention 60 -60 10 10 60 -60 10 10 -0 0

Catering - Sport Centres 324 -297 28 55 289 -226 28 91 35

Income shortfall (Covid19 recovery) £71k offset by an 

underspend in cost of Catering £33k plus numerous minor 

underspends 51
GT RDP Rural Digital Provision & Regen 21 -21 0 0 10 -10 0 0 0 -0 
Pre-diabetes 0 0 2 2 52 -52 2 2 0 -0 
Active Young People 380 -355 85 110 321 -296 85 110 -0 0
LAPA Additional Funding (E) 12 -12 21 21 178 -177 21 21 1 0

Sport & Leisure General 845 -46 147 946 724 -59 147 812 -134 

In year staff vacancies £44k, Premises Mtce £40k, 

Promotions / Marketing £37k, along with numerous smaller S 

& S underspends -62 

National Exercise Referral Scheme (E) 180 -180 45 45 160 -160 45 45 -0 0
PEN RHOS 3G PITCH 21 -48 1 -27 10 -50 1 -40 -13 Numerous minor expenditure underspends -13 
St John Lloyd - 2G Pitch 63 -14 0 49 22 -11 0 11 -38 Numerous minor expenditure underspends -37 

Llanelli Leisure Centre 1,393 -1,094 838 1,137 1,490 -900 838 1,429 292

Income shortfall (Covid19 recovery) £198k, Premises Mtce 

£69k and Employee costs due to Pay Award not being fully 

funded £18k, along with various minor overspends in S & S 

headings 302
Coedcae Sports Hall 0 0 6 6 0 0 6 7 0 0
ESD Rev Grant - Ynys Dawela 1 0 3 4 5 0 3 8 4 4
Outdoor Recreation - Staffing costs 438 0 245 683 255 0 245 501 -183 In year staff vacancies 97

Pembrey Country Park 905 -1,139 224 -9 1,269 -1,311 224 182 191

Revenue contributions to Capital £122k Utilities £26k, cost of 

Agency staff to backfill in year vacant posts £43k 61
Llyn Lech Owain Country Park 111 -48 60 122 108 -54 60 114 -9 -7 
Pembrey Country Park Restaurant 541 -382 67 226 601 -511 67 156 -70 Over achievement of Catering income to budget -90 
Woodland Parks 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 2 1
NNF - Cernydd Carmel 0 0 0 0 45 -45 0 0 -0 -0 
Lottery Heritage Fund - Mynydd Mawr 0 0 1 1 77 -77 1 1 0 0
Carmarthen Library 541 -29 212 724 529 -18 212 723 -1 9
Ammanford Library 309 -14 104 400 268 -10 104 363 -37 In year staff vacancies -34 
Llanelli Library 534 -30 -205 299 515 -24 -205 286 -13 In year staff vacancies -1 

Community Libraries 258 -7 198 450 238 -6 198 431 -19 In year staff vacancies -5 

Libraries General 1,133 -1 161 1,293 1,156 -7 161 1,311 18

Forecast overspend in Employees due to Pay Award not 

being fully funded 37
Mobile Library 135 0 22 157 129 0 22 151 -6 -3 
Carmarthen Museum, Abergwili. 228 -20 152 359 221 -46 152 326 -33 Income received in year not originally budgeted 1
Kidwelly Tinplate Museum 23 0 0 23 28 -0 0 29 5 8
Parc Howard Museum 158 -99 56 116 87 -48 56 95 -21 In year staff vacancies 8

T
udalen 117



APPENDIX C

EOY Feb 2023

Division

E
x

p
e

n
d

itu
re

In
c

o
m

e

N
e

t n
o

n
-

c
o

n
tro

lla
b

l

e

N
e

t

E
x

p
e

n
d

itu
re

In
c

o
m

e

N
e

t n
o

n
-

c
o

n
tro

lla
b

l

e

N
e

t

A
c

tu
a

l 

V
a

ria
n

c
e

 

fo
r

Y
e
a
r Notes

F
o

re
c

a
s

te
d

 

V
a

ria
n

c
e

 

fo
r

Y
e
a
r

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Budget Monitoring - Actual 2022/23 - Detail Variances

Working Budget Actual

Communities, Homes & Regeneration Scrutiny Report 

Museum of speed, Pendine 90 -27 11 74 58 0 11 69 -5 -5 

Museums General 159 0 64 223 220 0 64 284 61

Unable to achieve vacancy factor, a legacy of undelivered 

PBB's and unfunded post 72
Archives General 185 -10 1,091 1,265 185 -14 1,091 1,262 -3 3
Arts General 16 0 19 35 0 0 19 19 -15 Vacant post being held pending restructure -15 

St Clears Craft Centre 123 -39 62 147 84 -19 62 127 -20 

Vacant posts being held pending potential community run 

venture -19 

Cultural Services Management 103 0 29 132 84 0 29 113 -19 Numerous minor expenditure underspends -19 
Laugharne Boathouse 166 -117 47 96 161 -72 47 136 40 Income shortfall (Covid19 recovery) 40

Lyric Theatre 470 -315 124 279 415 -288 124 251 -27 

Income shortfall (Covid19 recovery) £28k offset by reduced 

cost of Performance Fees £38k, utilities £12k, staffing £12k 

plus minor S & S underspends -10 

Y Ffwrnes 930 -486 530 974 751 -374 530 907 -67 

Income shortfall (Covid19 recovery) £112k, offset by forecast 

underspend on Utilities £81k, Performance Fees £27k, 

Employees £31k, Contracted Services £25k  and numerous 

other minor expenditure underspends -23 
Ammanford Miners Theatre 71 -13 2 60 70 -15 2 57 -3 -5 
Entertainment Centres General 581 -63 237 756 541 -29 237 749 -7 34
Oriel Myrddin Trustee 207 -207 0 0 217 -217 0 -0 -0 0
Oriel Myrddin CCC 119 0 90 209 120 0 90 210 1 -0 
Motor Sports Centre - Pembrey 0 -96 0 -96 0 -96 0 -96 0 0
Attractor - Management 0 0 10 10 52 0 10 62 52 Project manager post not funded 51
Attractor - Hostel 0 0 1 1 166 -3 1 164 163 Expenditure relating to the set up of this new facility -4 
Attractor - Museum 0 0 0 0 32 0 0 32 32 Expenditure relating to the set up of this new facility 0

Attractor - Externals 7 -58 2 -49 10 -13 2 -1 48

Parking income budgeted for Attractor site not fully 

achievable due to delays in contract completion 46
Beach safety 2 0 0 2 1 0 0 1 -1 -1 
GT RDP Llansteffan Masterplan 11 -11 0 0 11 -11 0 0 0 0

Leisure Management 438 -3 51 486 358 -3 51 407 -79 

In year vacancy £44k plus underspends in Premises Mtce 

£28k and other minor S & S underspends -6 
Leisure & Recreation Total 18,201 -9,870 8,674 17,004 18,241 -9,294 8,674 17,620 616 896

Council Fund Housing 
Independent Living and Affordable Homes 124 -45 74 154 88 -72 74 91 -64 Savings on supplies & services budget. -30 

Supporting People Providers 6,495 -6,495 0 0 8,809 -8,815 0 -6 -6 0

Rent Smart Wales Project (E) 18 -18 6 7 20 -18 6 9 2 2

Syrian Resettlement Scheme (E) 0 0 28 28 -0 0 28 28 -0 0
Afghan resettlement (ARAP scheme) 0 0 0 0 96 -96 0 0 0 0

Ukrainian Re-settlement Scheme 0 0 63 63 2,609 -2,609 63 63 0 0

Infection Prevention Control 0 0 179 179 1,233 -1,233 179 179 -0 0

Home Improvement (Non HRA) 674 -273 467 868 680 -418 467 728 -140 Over achievement of Income -105 

Penybryn Traveller Site 183 -132 21 72 113 -101 21 33 -39 Underspend on Salaries -40 

Landlord Incentive 14 -11 0 3 115 -5 0 111 107

Improvements made to Social Lets properties, income to be 

recovered in future years 143

Homelessness 169 -70 64 163 1,090 -952 64 201 38

Most payments relating to Homelessness prevention have 

been accommodated in the prevention grant. -94 
Non HRA Re-Housing (Inc Chr) 179 0 77 256 134 0 77 212 -45 Underspend on Salaries -33 

Temporary Accommodation 534 -113 19 440 909 -493 19 434 -6 0

T
udalen 118



APPENDIX C

EOY Feb 2023

Division

E
x

p
e

n
d

itu
re

In
c

o
m

e

N
e

t n
o

n
-

c
o

n
tro

lla
b

l

e

N
e

t

E
x

p
e

n
d

itu
re

In
c

o
m

e

N
e

t n
o

n
-

c
o

n
tro

lla
b

l

e

N
e

t

A
c

tu
a

l 

V
a

ria
n

c
e

 

fo
r

Y
e
a
r Notes

F
o

re
c

a
s

te
d

 

V
a

ria
n

c
e

 

fo
r

Y
e
a
r

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Budget Monitoring - Actual 2022/23 - Detail Variances

Working Budget Actual

Communities, Homes & Regeneration Scrutiny Report 

Social Lettings Agency 847 -839 9 18 793 -760 9 42 24 17

Houses Into Homes WG Grant Scheme 0 0 0 0 -0 0 0 0 -0 0
Home Improvement Loan Scheme 0 0 0 0 14 -14 0 0 0 0
Houses Into Homes WG Loan Scheme 0 0 1 1 66 -66 1 1 0 0

Community Cohesion Fund Grant (H) 0 0 24 24 136 -139 24 21 -3 0
Homelessness Prevention Grant Programme 0 0 21 21 108 -108 21 21 0 0
YP Training Flats - WAG Innovation Grant 0 0 7 7 61 -65 7 3 -4 0
Leasing Scheme Wales was PRS Leasing Scheme GRANT0 0 11 11 63 -40 11 35 23 0
Transitional Funding WG 0 0 0 0 -3 0 0 -3 -3 0
Discretionary Homeless Prevention & 

Strategic co-ordinator 0 0 9 9 511 -511 9 9 0 0
Council Fund Housing Total 9,237 -7,994 1,081 2,324 17,644 -16,514 1,081 2,211 -113 -138 

TOTAL FOR COMMUNITIES, HOMES & 

REGENERATION 52,333 -33,689 13,992 32,637 60,973 -42,091 13,992 32,873 236 109

T
udalen 119



M
ae'r dudalen hon yn w

ag yn fw
riadol



APPENDIX D

EOY Feb 23

A
c
tu

a
l 

V
a
ria

n
c
e
 

fo
r

Y
e
a
r Notes

F
o

re
c
a
s
te

d

 V
a
ria

n
c
e

 fo
r Y

e
a
r

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Expenditure

Repairs & Maintenance

Responsive 2,551 4,297 1,746 1,388

Minor Works 3,464 2,886 -578 -1,285 

Voids 4,512 4,714 202 197

Servicing 1,934 2,052 118 102

Drains & Sewers 157 98 -59 -41 

Grounds 849 815 -33 -33 

Property & Strategic Projects 408 588 180 191

Unadopted Roads 118 118 0 0

Supervision & Management

Employee 5,770 5,695 -76 Impact of pay award compared to budgeted salary costs +£300k offset by in year vacancies -£230k. 30

Premises 1,608 2,078 470

Additional premises insurance costs £270k & increased investment in our estates environment £230k 

offset by savings in utilities £-30k. -17 
Transport 35 51 16 82

Supplies 914 1,463 549

Legal costs in housing management £110k, compensation payments £111k, projects and activities 

£156k, fees £75k & other supplies and services. 324

Recharges -703 149 852

Salaries not capitalised as programmes of work expand (corresponding reduction in DRF) plus some 

vacant posts. -281 

Provision for Bad Debt 594 335 -259 Write offs in year £184k combined with age analysis of debt reduces requirement to £335k. -495 

Capital Financing Cost 14,923 14,310 -613 

Capital HRA programme spent £26m (an underspend of £24m on the revised budget of £50m).  This, 

in conjunction with increased grant funding in 2021/22 and 2022/23 has decreased the borrowing 

requirement in year from £17.4m to approximately £6.1m.  The impact on mid-year CFR and therefore 

interest is significant, reducing capital charges by £613k.  Interest rate was 4.02% close to the 

budgeted rate of 3.99%. -746 
Central Support Charges 1,811 1,847 35 27
Direct Revenue Financing 10,000 9,218 -782 Reduction to offset additional potential capitalised salaries. 0

Total Expenditure 48,946 50,714 1,768 -557 

Housing Revenue Account - Budget Monitoring - Actual 2022/23

W
o

rk
in

g
 

B
u

d
g

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

Revenue maintenance spend is £1.6m over the budget. Current inflation and the impact on 

construction industry capacity post-Covid and post-Brexit including significantly increasing pay, 

energy, fuel, and construction materials costs, there will continue to be upwards pressure on 

contractor rates and reduced availability as we progress into 2023/24.  In January the Minor Works 

Framework Schedule of Rates was increased by 9.3% in line with CPI for the 12-month period August 

2021 to July 2022. The review of the 3-year HRA Business Plan for 2023/24 onwards has identified 

some adjustments to future budget allocations to reflect the anticipated continuing inflation impacts.  

Some repairs were significant in nature and have been assessed as capital and transferred to the 

capital programme.

T
udalen 121



APPENDIX D

EOY Feb 23

A
c
tu

a
l 

V
a
ria

n
c
e
 

fo
r

Y
e
a
r Notes

F
o

re
c
a
s
te

d

 V
a
ria

n
c
e

 fo
r Y

e
a
r

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Housing Revenue Account - Budget Monitoring - Actual 2022/23

W
o

rk
in

g
 

B
u

d
g

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

Income
Rents -43,608 -43,634 -26 Outturn close to target for rent due and voids. 33
Service Charges -849 -801 48 0

Supporting People -70 -243 -173 Additional Housing Support Grant -1 

Interest on Cash Balances -5 -353 -348 Interest rate significantly above 0.05% budgeted @ 1.83% -363 

Grants -296 -296 0 0

Insurance -221 -49 172 Claims settled in year were only £49k . 3
Other Income -496 -442 54 Reduction in court costs received 35

Total Income -45,545 -45,817 -272 -292 

Net Expenditure 3,401 4,897 1,496 -850 

HRA Reserve £'000

Balance b/f 01/04/2022 21,895

Budgeted movement in year -3,401 

Variance for the year -1,496 

Balance c/f  31/03/2023 16,998

T
udalen 122



APPENDIX E

1 Summary position as at : 31st March 2023 £25 k variance from delivery target

2022/23 2022/23 2022/23

Target Delivered Variance

£'000 £'000 £'000

Chief Executive 70 70 0

Communities 101 76 25

Place & Infrastructure 97 97 0

268 243 25

2 Analysis of delivery against target for managerial and policy decisions:

Managerial £25 k

Policy £0 k

2022/23 2022/23 2022/23 2022/23 2022/23 2022/23

Target Delivered Variance Target Delivered Variance

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Chief Executive 70 70 0 0 0 0

Communities 101 76 25 0 0 0

Place & Infrastructure 97 97 0 0 0 0

268 243 25 0 0 0

3 Appendix E (i) : Savings proposals not on target

Appendix E (ii) : Savings proposals on target (for information)

MANAGERIAL POLICY

2022/23  Savings Monitoring Report

Communities, Homes & Regeneration Scrutiny Committee

28th September 2023

2022/23 Savings monitoring

Off delivery target

ahead of target

page 1 of 3

Tudalen 123



APPENDIX E (i) - SAVINGS NOT ON TARGET

DEPARTMENT
2021/22 

Budget

2022/23 

Proposed

2022/23 

Delivered

2022/23 

Variance

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Managerial - Off Target

Communities

Leisure

Franchise Lettings 0 

An indoor and outdoor high quality, year-round visitor destination that aims to 

maximise Pendine’s heritage and its natural assets to drive forward the resort’s 

future economic regeneration as a ‘day and stay’ event destination

25 0 25 Improved income streams from franchise lettings across whole service. Progress delayed due to delays in contract completion

Total Leisure 25 0 25

Communities Total 25 0 25

Policy - Off Target

NOTHING TO REPORT

FACT FILE EFFICIENCY DESCRIPTION REASON FOR VARIANCE

page 2 of 3

T
udalen 124



APPENDIX E (ii) - SAVINGS ON TARGET

DEPARTMENT
2021/22 

Budget

2022/23 

Proposed

2022/23 

Delivered

2022/23 

Variance

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Managerial - On Target

Chief Executive

Regeneration division 3,542

Regeneration is a key priority for the council. The Division provides Business, employability, grant funding and skills support and advice. 

We also deliver physical regeneration projects throughout the county, including the Swansea Bay City Deal Pentre Awel Life Science and 

Wellness Village planned for Delta Lakes.  The Regeneration Division is responsible for the management of  land assets (those within the 

economic/commercial portfolio) of the Council, taking a strategic commercial view to ensure the portfolio is managed to meet the Council’s 

economic development needs.  The Division is also responsible for the delivery of the Council’s Net Zero Carbon agenda. 

70 70 0

£20k - Anticipated increase in Income/reduction in operating costs on Administrative estate 

through New Ways of Working.  £25k anticipated decrease in utility costs on administrative 

estate due to reduced occupancy through continued agile working.  £10k reduction in 

community grants.  £15k supplies within industrial estate budget.  

Chief Executive Total 70 70 0

Communities

Leisure 

Outdoor Education 188 

Pendine Outdoor Education Centre caters for up to 120 residential visitors at any given time, with a particular focus on 

primary school provision for Carmarthenshire schools. The experience is often the first opportunity for some young children to 

experience being away from home on a residential basis, however, the age of the infrastructure on site is of concern for the 

future. 

20 20 0
Improve operating efficiency of Outdoor Education Centres pending new strategic 

plan.

Increased Parking income 0 Increased parking income at coastal car parks and potential development of motorhomes sites 15 15 0
Increased parking income at coastal car parks and potential development of 

motorhomes sites

Country Parks -61 

Pembrey Country Park is one of the most visited outdoor facilities in Carmarthenshire and Wales, regularly attracting around 

half a million users annually. Whilst usage numbers have fluctuated this year with lockdowns and restrictions, the park was 

busier than ever during August, highlighting the value people put on great and safe outdoor spaces. The park has an 8 mile 

beach, a 320 pitch caravan and camping site, 550 acres of woodlands, a 130m long dry ski slope and toboggan run in 

Wales, along with a new Crazy Golf course, 9 hole pitch and putt facility, a miniature model steam railway, a riding centre, 

and the National Closed Road Cycle circuit and pump track.

13 13 0
Increased Pembrey Country Park / Campsite income - Invest to Save / capital for 

additional income generating activities

Libraries 2,475 

Carmarthenshire libraries provide an extensive choice of books, DVDs, CDs, online services, newspapers and magazines. 

With over half a million books on offer between 3 regional, 13 branch and mobile libraries, the service offers invaluable 

support and access to Carmarthenshire residents. Public access computers and Wi-Fi are available at all libraries, and 

typically, the service issues over 600,000 books per year.  The mobile service provides a valuable outreach services to rural 

parts of the County, linking up with various partners to deliver public information services online.

10 10 0 Increased operational efficiency

Print 16 Print savings across all Leisure Services 8 8 0 Based on 50% reduction of 2021/22 budgets

Travel 20 Print savings across all Leisure Services 10 10 0 Based on 50% reduction of 2021/22 budgets

Total Leisure 76 76 0

Communities Total 76 76 0

Place & Infrastructure

Place & Sustainability 

Development Management 758 

• The Development Management Unit manages the statutory planning application process (including pre-application and also 

discharge of conditions and variation of conditions post approval). 

• The Unit deals with between 1700 and 1900 applications on average each year (roughly 150 cases per annum per Officer). 

• The unit is also responsible for planning enforcement matters including enforcement of planning conditions and 

unauthorised development and built conservation matters, dealing with roughly 500 cases per annum.

10 10 0
Additional predicted income from new statutory pre-application service. 

Divisional review

net 

divisional 

budget of 

£3M

• Budget covers Head of Service functions along with business and administrative support to all functions within the Planning 

Division including: Development Management & Built Heritage (incl. Enforcement); Building Control, Rural Conservation, 

Waste and Minerals, Forward Planning (Development Plans) .• Functions include general research and policy work, 

publishing and printing, business planning, budget planning, orders and payments, monitoring, health and safety, IT systems 

and licenses, general procurement.

87 87 0 Review of divisional management arrangements & structure

Total Place & Sustainability Services 97 97 0

Place & Infrastructure Total 97 97 0

Policy - On Target

NOTHING TO REPORT

FACT FILE EFFICIENCY DESCRIPTION

page 3 of 3

T
udalen 125



M
ae'r dudalen hon yn w

ag yn fw
riadol



 

PWYLLGOR CRAFFU CYMUNEDAU, CARTREFI AC ADFYWIO 
 

28 MEDI 2023 
 

 
PEIDIO Â CHYFLWYNO ADRODDIAD CRAFFU 

 
 
Ystyried y canlynol a chyflwyno sylwadau arno: 
 
Yr eglurhad a roddwyd dros beidio â chyflwyno adroddiad craffu.      
  
 
 
Rheswm:  

 
Mae'n ofynnol yn ôl Cyfansoddiad y Cyngor i Bwyllgorau Craffu ddatblygu, cyhoeddi ac 
adolygu Blaengynllun Gwaith bob blwyddyn sy'n nodi'r materion a'r adroddiadau sydd i'w 
hystyried mewn cyfarfodydd yn ystod y flwyddyn.  Os nad yw adroddiad yn cael ei 
gyflwyno fel y trefnwyd, mae disgwyl i swyddogion baratoi adroddiad sy'n egluro'r 
rheswm/rhesymau dros beidio â'i gyflwyno. 

 
 
 

 
Yr Aelod Cabinet sy'n Gyfrifol am y Portffolio: Ddim yn berthnasol 
 
 
Awdur yr Adroddiad: 
 
Kevin Thomas 

 
Swydd: 
 
Swyddog Gwasanaethau 
Democrataidd 

 
Rhif Ffôn: / Cyfeiriad e-bost: 
 
01267 224027 
kjthomas@sirgar.gov.uk 
  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Tudalen 127

Eitem Rhif  10



 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
COMMUNITIES, HOMES AND REGENERATION SCRUTINY 

COMMITTEE 
 

28TH SEPTEMBER 2023 
 
 

NON-SUBMISSION OF SCRUTINY REPORT 
 

 

The Council’s Constitution requires Scrutiny Committees to develop, keep under review 
and publish an annual Forward Work Plan which identifies the issues and reports to be 
considered at meetings during the course of the year.   
 
If a report is not presented as scheduled in the Forward Work Plan, the responsible 
officer(s) are expected to prepare a non-submission report explaining the reason(s) why. 
 

 

 

 

 

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? 
 

YES 
 

 
 

Tudalen 128



 

IMPLICATIONS 
 
I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate 
Directors / Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications 
associated with this report.  
  
Signed:    Linda Rees-Jones 

 
                              Head of Administration & Law  

 
Policy, Crime 
& Disorder 
and Equalities 

Legal Finance ICT Risk 
Management 
Issues 

Staffing 
Implications 

Physical 
Assets  

 
NONE 
 

 
NONE 

 
NONE  

 
NONE 

 
NONE 

 
NONE 

 
NONE 

 
CONSULTATIONS 

 
I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed 
below: 
  
Signed:    Linda Rees-Jones 

 
Head of Administration & Law  

 
1. Local Member(s) – N/A 
 
2. Community / Town Council – N/A 
 
3. Relevant Partners – N/A 
 
4. Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations – N/A    
 
CABINET MEMBER PORTFOLIO HOLDER AWARE / 
CONSULTED  
 

YES 

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information 
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report: 
 
There are none. 
 
Title of Document 
 

Locations that the papers are available for 
public inspection  

 

Tudalen 129



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



 
 

EXPLANATION FOR NON-SUBMISSION OF SCRUTINY REPORTS 
 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE :   COMMUNITIES, HOMES & REGENERATION 
 
DATE OF MEETING :  28TH SEPTEMBER, 2023 

 
 

ITEM RESPONSIBLE 
OFFICER 

EXPLANATION REVISED 
SUBMISSION 

DATE 
 
Incentive 
Scheme for 
tenants 

 
Jonathan 
Morgan, 
Head of 
Housing & 
Public 
Protection 

 
Further general research is 
being undertaken on 
incentive schemes in order to 
provide Scrutiny Committee 
with a full picture for their 
consideration. 

 
15th 
November, 
2023 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Alternative 
Town 
Centre 
Usage 

 
Jason Jones, 
Head of 
Regeneration, 
Policy and 
Digital 

 
Further research and work is 
being undertaken by officers 
in order to provide Scrutiny 
Committee with purposeful 
options for their 
consideration. 

 
Next 
meeting 
 
 
 

 
 

Tudalen 131



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



October 2022   

PWYLLGOR CRAFFU CYMUNEDAU, 
CARTREFI AC ADFYWIO 

28AIN MEDI 2023 
 
 

 
EITEMAU AR GYFER Y DYFODOL 

 
 

 
GOFYNNIR I’R PWYLLGOR CRAFFU:- 
 
• Nodi’r eitemau ar gyfer y dyfodol i’w hystyried yng nghyfarfod nesaf y Pwyllgor Craffu 

Cymunedau ac Adfywio i’w gynnal ar 15 Tachwedd, 2023. 
 
 
Y Rhesymau:  
 
• Mae’n ofynnol yn ôl Cyfansoddiad y Cyngor bod Pwyllgorau Craffu, ar dechrau bob 

blwyddyn y cyngor, yn datblygu ac yn cyhoeddi Blaenraglen Gwaith sy’n nodi’r pynciau a’r 
adroddiadau sydd i’w hystyried yn ystod y blwyddyn.      
 

Yr Aelod Cabinet sy’n gyfrifol am y Portffolio:   Cyng. Linda Evans (Dirprwy Arweinydd a 
CartrefiTai), Cyng H.A.L. Evans (Adfywio, Hamdden, Diwylliant a Thwristiaeth) Cyng A. Lenny 
(Adnoddau), Cyng A. Davies (Faterion Gwledig a Pholisi Cynllunio)   
 

Directorate 
Name of Head of Service: 
Linda Rees Jones 
 
 
Report Author: 
Kevin Thomas 

 
Designations: 
Pennaeth Gweinyddiaeth a'r 
Gyfraith 
 
 
Swyddog Gwasanaethau 
Democrataidd 

 
Tel Nos. 
01267 224012 
LRJones@sirgar.gov.uk 
01267 224027 
kjthomas@sirgar.gov.uk 
 
 

 

Tudalen 133

Eitem Rhif  11

mailto:LRJones@sirgar.gov.uk
mailto:kjthomas@sirgar.gov.uk


October 2022   

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

COMMUNITIES, HOMES AND REGENERATION 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
28TH SEPTEMBER, 2023 

 
 

FORTHCOMING ITEMS 
 
 

 
The Council’s Constitution requires Scrutiny Committees, at the commencement of each 
municipal year, to develop and publish a Forward Work Programme which identifies the 
issues and reports to be considered at meetings during the course of the year.  When 
formulating the Forward Work Plan the Scrutiny Committee will take into consideration those 
items included on the Cabinet’s Forward Work Programme. 

The list of forthcoming items attached includes those items which are scheduled in the 
Community and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee’s Forward Work Plan to be considered at 
the next meeting, to be held on 15th November, 2023. 

Also attached for information are the 2022/23 Forward Work Plans in respect of the 
Communities, Homes and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee and the Cabinet. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED ? YES: 
(1) List of Forthcoming Items 
(2) C & R Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Plan 
(3) Cabinet Forward Work Plan 

 

 
 

Tudalen 134



October 2022   

 
IMPLICATIONS  

 

 
I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors / 
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this 
report : 
 
Signed:    Linda Rees-Jones                                                      Head of Administration and Law 
 

 
Policy, Crime 
& Disorder 
and 
Equalities 
 

Legal  Finance  ICT  Risk 
Management 
Issues  

Staffing 
Implications 

Physical 
Assets   

NONE 
 

NONE  
 

NONE  
 

NONE  
 

NONE  
 
 

NONE  
 
 

NONE  
 

 
 

CABINET MEMBER  PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER(S) AWARE/CONSULTED  
NO  

N/A 

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information 
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report: 
 
There are none. 
 

 
 

Tudalen 135



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



 

 
 

FORTHCOMING ITEMS – TO BE CONSIDERED AT THE NEXT MEETING OF THE 
COMMUNITIES, HOMES AND REGENERATION SCRUTINY COMMITTEE TO BE HELD 

ON  
15TH NOVEMBER, 2023 

 
 
Agenda Item Background Reason for report 
  What is Scrutiny being asked to do? e.g. undertake a full 

review of the subject? Investigate different policy options? Be 
consulted on final proposals before decision making? Monitor 
outcomes /implementation?  
 
If the item is for information or for noting, can the information 
be provided in an alternative format i.e, via email? 

Supplementary Planning 
Guidance – 
Carmarthenshire 
Revised Local 
Development Plan 
2018-2033 

The Council has developed a series of draft Supplementary 
Planning Guidance (SPG) to elaborate on and support the 
content of the Revised LDP for formal public consultation. 
Draft SPG to potentially include (subject to timing), but not 
limited to: Welsh Language, Landscape Character 
Assessments, Sites of Importance for nature Conservation 

To afford the Committee an opportunity to 
consider the Draft SPG’s and to submit any 
observations to the Cabinet/Council 

Levelling up/Shared 
Prosperity fund - Update 

The Committee in formulating its 2023-34 Forward Work 
Plan requested an update report be submitted to a future 
meeting on the Levelling up / Shared Prosperity Fund which 
falls within its remit 

To enable the Committee to monitor 
implementation of the Levelling Up / Shared 
Prosperity Fund 

Arfor 2 Programme - 
Update 

The Committee in formulating its 2023-34 Forward Work 
Plan requested an update report be submitted to a future 
meeting on the Arfor 2 Programme which falls within its 
remit 

To enable the Committee to monitor 
implementation of the Arfor 2 Programme 

Alternative outdoor 
Education Offer 

The Committee at its meeting held on the 19th December 
2022 was consulted on the options for the delivery of an 
Alternative Outdoor Education Offer to that currently 
provided by the Council. 

To enable the Committee to view the final 
report following public consultation in 
accordance with its Forward Work Plan 

T
udalen 137



 

As part of the formulation of its 2023-24 Forward Work 
Programme the Committee requested the final report be 
presented to the Committee prior to its consideration by the 
Cabinet 

Incentive Scheme for 
Tenants 

The use of incentive and reward schemes by social 
landlords underpins the wider approach to tenancy 
management. Incentives may be considered to encourage 
desired behaviour while rewards recognise such behaviour. 
The report sets out our approach to how we will reward 
tenants but also introduce an incentive scheme. 

To enable the Committee to consider the report 
and formulate any recommendations for 
Cabinet’s consideration 

Alternative Town Centre 
Uses 

This report will provide details relating to alternative uses 
within the primary town centres 

To enable the Committee to consider the report 
and formulate any recommendations for 
Cabinet’s consideration 

 
 

Items circulated to the Committee under separate cover since the last meeting  

 
 
N.B. Copies of these reports can be obtained by emailing Scrutiny@carmarthenshire.gov.uk 

 

Items attached for information 

1. The latest version of the Community and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme 2022/23 
2. The latest version of the Cabinet’s Forward Work Programme 2022/23  

 
 

T
udalen 138

mailto:Scrutiny@carmarthenshire.gov.uk


 

1 
 

Communities, Homes and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee – Forward Work 
Programme  
2023/ 2024 

 
 

 
29th June 23 

 
28th Sept 23   

 
15th Nov 2023 

 
 13 Dec 23 

 
 

 
24 Jan 24  

 
 

 
7 March 2024 

 
 
 

 
16 April 2024  

Communities, 
Homes, and 
Regeneration 
Scrutiny Committee 
Annual Report 
2022/23 

Emergency Social 
Allocations Policy – 
Monitoring 

Housing 
Revenue 
Account 
Business Plan 
2024-27  
(Moved to 
13/12/23) 

Emergency Social 
Allocations Policy – 
Monitoring Report 

Budget Consultation Scrutiny Actions update  

Emergency Social 
Allocations Policy – 
Monitoring 

Revenue Budget 
Monitoring Report 

Supplementary 
Planning 
Guidance – 
Carmarthenshir
e Revised Local 
Development 
Plan 2018-2033 

Scrutiny Actions 
Update 

 Emergency Social Allocations 
Policy – Monitoring Report 

 

 Incentive Scheme 
for tenants (Moved 
to 15/11/23) 

Levelling 
up/Shared 
Prosperity fund - 
Update 

Housing Revenue 
Account Business 
Plan 2024-27  
(Moved from 
15/11/23) 

   

 Service Charge 
Policy 

Arfor 2 
Programme - 
Update 

Housing Revenue 
Account Budget 
and Housing Rent 
Setting for 2024/25 

   T
udalen 139



 

2 
 

 Applying 
Intentionality to 
Priority Need 
(Homelessness 
Duty) 

Alternative 
outdoor 
Education Offer 

    

 Alternative Town 
Centre Uses 
(moved to 15/11/23 

Incentive 
Scheme for 
tenants (Moved 
from 28/09/23) 

    

 Leisure, Culture 
and Outdoor 
Recreation Strategy 
– Post Consultation 

Alternative 
Town Centre 
Uses (moved 
from 28/09/23 

    

       

       
 
 
OTHER REPORTS TO BE INCLUDED: 
 

•  
 
TASK AND FINISH REVIEW 
The Committee has yet to determine a Task and Finish Group for 2023-24 

 
 

T
udalen 140



 

1 
This is plan is updated monthly. 

CABINET/COUNCIL – FORWARD PLAN 

FOR THE PERIOD 18 SEPTEMBER 2023 TO 31 AUGUST 2024 
 

Subject  Report Summary Decision Making 
Body and Dates 

Is 
Exempt? 

Cabinet Member 
Portfolio Holder (if 
applicable) 

Responsible 
Director  
 
Report Author 

Cabinet 
18 Sep 2023 
 

ANNUAL 
TREASURY 
MANAGEMENT 
AND 
PRUDENTIAL 
INDICATOR 
REPORT 2022-
2023 
 
 

To provide members with an update on 
the treasury management activities for 
2022-2023 
 
  

 

No Cabinet Member for 
Resources 
 

Director of 
Corporate Services 
Anthony Parnell, 
Treasury & Pension 
Investments 
Manager  
aparnell@carmarth
enshire.gov.uk 
 

Cabinet 
18 Sep 2023 
 

DEVELOPMENT 
FUND 
APPLICATION 
 
 

To provide Cabinet with an update on the 
latest position of the Development Fund, 
and to seek Cabinet approval of a recent 
application to the Fund. 
  

 

No Cabinet Member for 
Resources 
 

Director of 
Corporate Services 
Randal 
Hemingway, Head 
of Financial 
Services  
RHemingway@car
marthenshire.gov.u
k 
 

REVENUE 
BUDGET 

To provide the Cabinet with an overview of 
the budget issues and outlook for the 

Cabinet 
18 Sep 2023 

No Cabinet Member for 
Resources 

Director of 
Corporate Services 

T
udalen 141



Subject  Report Summary Decision Making 
Body and Dates 

Is 
Exempt? 

Cabinet Member 
Portfolio Holder (if 
applicable) 

Responsible 
Director /  
 
Report Author 

 

2 

 OUTLOOK 
 
 

forthcoming year. 
  

 

 Randal 
Hemingway, Head 
of Financial 
Services  
RHemingway@car
marthenshire.gov.u
k 
 

Cabinet 
18 Sep 2023 
 

SECOND HOMES 
AND HOLIDAY 
ACCOMMODATIO
N IN 
CARMARTHENSH
IRE 
 
 

To present a report highlighting the 
background and legislative and policy 
changes on the second homes and 
holiday accommodation and to highlight 
the consideration, evidence requirements 
and next steps in identifying and 
addressing the challenges for 
Carmarthenshire’s communities. 
 
 

 
 

No Cabinet Member for 
Rural Affairs, Community 
Cohesion and Planning 
Policy 
 

Director of Place & 
Infrastructure 
Ian R Llewelyn, 
Forward Planning 
Manager  
IRLlewelyn@carma
rthenshire.gov.uk 
 

Cabinet 
18 Sep 2023 
 

TREASURY 
MANAGEMENT 
AND 
PRUDENTIAL 
INDICATOR 
REPORT 1ST 
APRIL 2023 TO 
30TH JUNE 2023 
 
 

To provide members with an update on 
the treasury management activities from 
1st April 2023 to 30th June 2023. 
  

 

No Cabinet Member for 
Resources 
 

Director of 
Corporate Services 
Anthony Parnell, 
Treasury & Pension 
Investments 
Manager  
aparnell@carmarth
enshire.gov.uk 
 

CAPITAL 
PROGRAMME 
2023/24 UPDATE 

To provide an update of the latest 
budgetary position for the 2023/24 capital 
programme as at 30th June 2023 

Cabinet 
2 Oct 2023 
 

No Cabinet Member for 
Resources 
 

Director of 
Corporate Services 
Randal 

T
udalen 142



Subject  Report Summary Decision Making 
Body and Dates 

Is 
Exempt? 

Cabinet Member 
Portfolio Holder (if 
applicable) 

Responsible 
Director /  
 
Report Author 

 

3 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Hemingway, Head 
of Financial 
Services  
RHemingway@car
marthenshire.gov.u
k 
 

Cabinet 
2 Oct 2023 
 

COUNCIL’S 
REVENUE 
BUDGET 
MONITORING 
REPORT 
 
 

To provide the Cabinet with an update on 
the latest budgetary position as at 30th 
June 2023, in respect of 2023/24 
  

 

No Cabinet Member for 
Resources 
 

Director of 
Corporate Services 
Randal 
Hemingway, Head 
of Financial 
Services  
RHemingway@car
marthenshire.gov.u
k 
 

Cabinet 
2 Oct 2023 
 

COVID 19 
IMPACT ON 
CONTRACTORS - 
MAJOR WORKS 
 
 

A report will been produced to explore the 
financial impact on Contractors as a 
consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic. 
The report will establish the current 
contract provisions being enforced by the 
Authority compared against various 
government advice and relief procedures. 
To further inform stakeholders, the report 
will capture the potential implications for 
adopting and seek a decision on 
implementing contractor support 
mechanisms to mitigate the financial 
impact of Covid-19. 
 
 

 
 

No Cabinet Member for 
Transport, Waste and 
Infrastructure Services 
 

Director of Place & 
Infrastructure 
Jason G. Jones, 
Property 
Maintenance 
Manager  
JGJones@carmart
henshire.gov.uk 
 

T
udalen 143



Subject  Report Summary Decision Making 
Body and Dates 

Is 
Exempt? 

Cabinet Member 
Portfolio Holder (if 
applicable) 

Responsible 
Director /  
 
Report Author 

 

4 

Cabinet 
16 Oct 2023 
 

ADOPTED LDP 
ANNUAL 
MONITORING 
REPORT 202/23 
 
 

To present the Annual Monitoring Report 
for the adopted Carmarthenshire LDP as 
part of the WG requirement to monitor and 
assess the ongoing implementation of the 
Plan. 
 

 
 

No Cabinet Member for 
Rural Affairs, Community 
Cohesion and Planning 
Policy 
 

Director of Place & 
Infrastructure 
Ian R Llewelyn, 
Forward Planning 
Manager  
IRLlewelyn@carma
rthenshire.gov.uk 
 

Cabinet 
16 Oct 2023 
 

APPLYING 
INTENTIONALITY 
TO PRIORITY 
NEED 
(HOMELESSNES
S ORDER) 
 
 

REPORT TO SEEK PERMISSION TO 
APPLY THE INTENTIONALITY TEST 
UNDER THE HOUSING (WALES) ACT 
2014 TO ALL CATEGORIES OF 
PRIORITY NEED. BY APPLYING THIS 
TEST THE AUTHORITY DOES NOT 
HAVE A STATUTORY DUTY TO 
SECURE PERMANENT 
ACCOMMODATION FOR THOSE 
INDIVIDUALS ASSESSED AS BEING 
INTENTIONALLY HOMELESS. 
 
 

 
 

No Deputy Leader and 
Cabinet Member for 
Homes 
 

Director of 
Communities 
Jonathan Morgan, 
Head of Housing 
and Public 
Protection  
JMorgan@carmarth
enshire.gov.uk 
 

Cabinet 
16 Oct 2023 
 

BUSINESS 
IMPROVEMENT 
DISTRICT 
REPRESENTATIO
N 
 
 

Consideration of Council representation at 
the Carmarthen and Llanelli Business 
Improvement District Board meetings 
 
  

 

No Cabinet Member for 
Regeneration, Leisure, 
Culture & Tourism 
 

Chief Executive 
Nicola Evans, 
Business Support 
Manager  
njevans@carmarth
enshire.gov.uk 
 

CONSERVATION 
AREA 
APPRAISALS 

This report sets out the work being 
undertaken to review ten designated 
Conservation Areas across the County. It 

Cabinet 
16 Oct 2023 
 

No Cabinet Member for 
Rural Affairs, Community 
Cohesion and Planning 

Director of Place & 
Infrastructure 
Rhodri Griffiths, 

T
udalen 144



Subject  Report Summary Decision Making 
Body and Dates 

Is 
Exempt? 

Cabinet Member 
Portfolio Holder (if 
applicable) 

Responsible 
Director /  
 
Report Author 

 

5 

 
 

identifies the outcome of the review and 
the subsequent consultation exercise 
including on the: 
•A character appraisal; 
•A boundary review and 
•A management plan. 
The report in setting out the above 
identifies the outcome of the public 
consultation exercise and the next steps 
including the processes required to amend 
any of the Conservation Area 
designations. 
 
 

 
 

Policy 
 

Head of Place and 
Sustainability  
RDGriffiths@carma
rthenshire.gov.uk 
 

Cabinet 
16 Oct 2023 
 

COUNCIL 
ANNUAL REPORT 
2022-23 
 
 

The Annual Report provides an overview 
of Council performance during 2022-23. 
Under the Well-being of Future 
Generations (Wales) Act 2015 we are 
required to publish an Annual Report on 
our Well-being Objectives. In addition, 
under the Local Government and 
Elections Act (Wales) 2021 we have a 
duty to report on performance, based, on 
a self-assessment approach. 
This report aims to meet both these 
requirements in one document. 
 
 

 
 

No Cabinet Member for 
Organisation & 
Workforce 
 

Chief Executive 
Gwyneth Ayers, 
Corporate Policy 
and Partnership 
Manager  
GAyers@carmarthe
nshire.gov.uk 
 

SHORELINE 
MANAGEMENT 
PLAN-2; AN 

As a member of the Swansea and 
Carmarthen Bay Coastal Engineering 
Group and a coastal risk management 

Cabinet 
16 Oct 2023 
 

No Deputy Leader and 
Cabinet Member for 
Homes, Cabinet Member 

Director of Place & 
Infrastructure 
Ben Kathrens, 

T
udalen 145



Subject  Report Summary Decision Making 
Body and Dates 

Is 
Exempt? 

Cabinet Member 
Portfolio Holder (if 
applicable) 

Responsible 
Director /  
 
Report Author 

 

6 

UPDATE ON ITS 
DELIVERY. 
 
 

authority, Carmarthenshire have a duty to 
deliver actions within the SMP2. This 
report highlights CCC actions, the action 
owners and our progress and approach 
being taken to manage our coastline. 
 
 

 
 

for Climate Change, 
Decarbonisation and 
Sustainability 
 

Flood Defence and 
Coastal Protection 
Manager  
BKathrens@carmar
thenshire.gov.uk 
 

Cabinet 
16 Oct 2023 
 

STATUTORY 
DIRECTOR OF 
SOCIAL CARE 
SERVICES’ 
ANNUAL REPORT 
2022/23 
 
 

The Report examines each Service area 
within Social Care and shows how service 
strategies, actions, targets and service 
risks will be addressed and delivered 
operationally. It comprises an overview on 
how we have performed in 2022/23 and 
an assessment on the future, together with 
our strategic priorities for 2023/24. 
 
 

 
 

No Cabinet Member for 
Health & Social Services 
 

Director of 
Communities 
Silvana Sauro, 
Performance, 
Analysis & Systems 
Manager  
ssauro@carmarthe
nshire.gov.uk 
 

Cabinet 
30 Oct 2023 
 

LEISURE, 
CULTURE AND 
OUTDOOR 
RECREATION 
STRATEGY – 
POST 
CONSULTATION 
 
 

The document provides a framework for 
the service to work with key stakeholders 
to deliver a strategically aligned Leisure, 
Culture and Outdoor Recreation Strategy 
for the next 10 years. 
 
 

 
 

No Cabinet Member for 
Regeneration, Leisure, 
Culture & Tourism 
 

Director of 
Communities 
Ian Jones, Head of 
Leisure  
IJones@carmarthe
nshire.gov.uk 
 

Cabinet 
30 Oct 2023 
 

PLOT 3 TROSTRE 
RETAIL PARK 
 
 

Report outlining a revised development 
proposal for plot 3 Trostre Retail Park and 
sale terms for consideration. 
 
  

 

No Cabinet Member for 
Regeneration, Leisure, 
Culture & Tourism 
 

Chief Executive 
Jason Jones (Head 
of Regeneration), 
Head of 
Regeneration  

T
udalen 146



Subject  Report Summary Decision Making 
Body and Dates 

Is 
Exempt? 

Cabinet Member 
Portfolio Holder (if 
applicable) 

Responsible 
Director /  
 
Report Author 

 

7 

JaJones@carmarth
enshire.gov.uk 
 

Cabinet 
30 Oct 2023 
 

PUBLIC SPACE 
PROTECTION 
ORDER (PSPO) 
 
 

The PSPO, which gives police powers to 
address alcohol-related anti-social 
behaviour and crime in Llanelli town 
centre, expires 30 September 2023. 
It is proposed to extend the Order. Its 
impact will be evaluated and consideration 
given to the current geographical 
boundary following consultation with key 
stakeholders between now and 
September 2023. 
 
 

 
 

No Cabinet Member for 
Organisation & 
Workforce 
 

Chief Executive 
Gwyneth Ayers, 
Corporate Policy 
and Partnership 
Manager  
GAyers@carmarthe
nshire.gov.uk 
 

Cabinet 
13 Nov 2023 
 

CAPITAL 
PROGRAMME 
2023/24 UPDATE 
 
 

To provide an update of the latest 
budgetary position for the 2023/24 capital 
programme, as at the 31st August 2023 
  

 

No Cabinet Member for 
Resources 
 

Director of 
Corporate Services 
Randal 
Hemingway, Head 
of Financial 
Services  
RHemingway@car
marthenshire.gov.u
k 
 

Cabinet 
13 Nov 2023 
 

COUNCIL’S 
REVENUE 
BUDGET 
MONITORING 
REPORT 
 

To provide the Cabinet with an update on 
the latest budgetary position as at 31st 
August 2023, in respect of 2023/24 
 
  

 

No Cabinet Member for 
Resources 
 

Director of 
Corporate Services 
Randal 
Hemingway, Head 
of Financial 
Services  

T
udalen 147



Subject  Report Summary Decision Making 
Body and Dates 

Is 
Exempt? 

Cabinet Member 
Portfolio Holder (if 
applicable) 

Responsible 
Director /  
 
Report Author 

 

8 

 RHemingway@car
marthenshire.gov.u
k 
 

Cabinet 
13 Nov 2023 
 

SERVICE 
CHARGE POLICY 
 
 

The purpose of this report is to introduce a 
new Service Charge Policy. This Policy 
sets out our approach to setting and 
collecting service charges. The aim is to 
make sure that Service Charges are clear 
and shown to be reasonable, accountable 
and reflect actual costs. 
 
 

 
 

No Deputy Leader and 
Cabinet Member for 
Homes 
 

Director of 
Communities 
Jonathan Morgan, 
Head of Housing 
and Public 
Protection  
JMorgan@carmarth
enshire.gov.uk 
 

Cabinet 
13 Nov 2023 
 

SUPPLEMENTAR
Y PLANNING 
GUIDANCE - 
CARMARTHENSH
IRE REVISED 
LOCAL 
DEVELOPMENT 
PLAN 2018 - 2033 
 
 

To present a series of draft 
Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) 
to elaborate on and support the content of 
the Revised LDP for formal public 
consultation. Draft SPG to potentially 
include (subject to timing), but not limited 
to: Welsh Language, Landscape 
Character Assessments, Sites of 
Importance for nature Conservation 

 

 
 

No Deputy Leader and 
Cabinet Member for 
Homes, Cabinet Member 
for Climate Change, 
Decarbonisation and 
Sustainability 
 

Director of Place & 
Infrastructure 
Ian R Llewelyn, 
Forward Planning 
Manager  
IRLlewelyn@carma
rthenshire.gov.uk 
 

Cabinet 
27 Nov 2023 
 

10-YEAR SOCIAL 
SERVICES 
STRATEGY (PRE-
CONSULTATION) 
 
 

To provide members with a vision on how 
we will provide the statutory social 
services functions over the next decade. 
The document will detail the following 
areas; 
Introduction, Vision Statement, The 
services people receive, Social Work 

 
 

No Cabinet Member for 
Health & Social Services 
 

Director of 
Communities 
Silvana Sauro, 
Performance, 
Analysis & Systems 
Manager  
ssauro@carmarthe

T
udalen 148



Subject  Report Summary Decision Making 
Body and Dates 

Is 
Exempt? 

Cabinet Member 
Portfolio Holder (if 
applicable) 

Responsible 
Director /  
 
Report Author 

 

9 

Models of care, Safeguarding, 
Integration and Partnerships , Workforce 
and an Action Plan 
 
 

nshire.gov.uk 
 

Cabinet 
27 Nov 2023 
 

ALTERNATIVE 
OUTDOOR 
EDUCATION 
OFFER 
 
 

The purpose of this report is to review 
Carmarthenshire County Council’s current 
Outdoor Education offer and to explore 
options for a re-modelled service within 
existing resources. 
 
 

 
 

No Cabinet Member for 
Regeneration, Leisure, 
Culture & Tourism 
 

Director of 
Communities 
Ian Jones, Head of 
Leisure  
IJones@carmarthe
nshire.gov.uk 
 

Cabinet 
27 Nov 2023 
 

ALTERNATIVE 
TOWN CENTRE 
USES 
 
 

Consideration of alternative uses within 
the primary town centres 
 
  

 

No Cabinet Member for 
Regeneration, Leisure, 
Culture & Tourism 
 

Chief Executive 
Jason Jones (Head 
of Regeneration), 
Head of 
Regeneration  
JaJones@carmarth
enshire.gov.uk 
 

Cabinet 
27 Nov 2023 
 

BULKY WASTE 
REVIEW 
 
 

This report will propose a cost effective, 
efficient bulky service for residents that will 
incorporate the waste hierarchy to ensure 
that more bulky waste can be reuse ahead 
of recycling and disposal. A review of the 
cost, number of bulks collected per item 
size, appointment management system 
and collection vehicle requirements for 
such a service. 
 
 

 
 

No Cabinet Member for 
Transport, Waste and 
Infrastructure Services 
 

Director of Place & 
Infrastructure 
Daniel John, Head 
of Environmental 
Infrastructure  
DWJohn@carmarth
enshire.gov.uk 
 

T
udalen 149



Subject  Report Summary Decision Making 
Body and Dates 

Is 
Exempt? 

Cabinet Member 
Portfolio Holder (if 
applicable) 

Responsible 
Director /  
 
Report Author 

 

10 

Cabinet 
27 Nov 2023 
 

CAPITAL 
PROGRAMME 
2022/23 UPDATE 
 
 

To provide an update of the latest 
budgetary position for the 2022/23 capital 
programme 
  

 

No Cabinet Member for 
Resources 
 

Director of 
Corporate Services 
Randal 
Hemingway, Head 
of Financial 
Services  
RHemingway@car
marthenshire.gov.u
k 
 

Cabinet 
27 Nov 2023 
 

INCENTIVE 
SCHEME FOR 
TENANTS 
 
 

The use of incentive and reward schemes 
by social landlords underpins the wider 
approach to tenancy management. 
Incentives may be considered to 
encourage desired behaviour while 
rewards recognise such behaviour. 
The report sets out our approach to how 
we will reward tenants but also introduce 
an incentive scheme. 
 
 

 
 

No Deputy Leader and 
Cabinet Member for 
Homes 
 

Director of 
Communities 
Les James, 
Contracts and 
Service 
Development 
Manager  
LesJames@carmar
thenshire.gov.uk 
 

Cabinet 
27 Nov 2023 
 

MID-YEAR 
TREASURY 
MANAGEMENT 
AND 
PRUDENTIAL 
INDICATOR 
REPORT 1ST 
APRIL 2023 TO 
30TH 
SEPTEMBER 
2023 

To provide members with an update on 
the treasury management activities from 
1st April 2023 to 30th September 2023 
  

 

No Cabinet Member for 
Resources 
 

Director of 
Corporate Services 
Randal 
Hemingway, Head 
of Financial 
Services  
RHemingway@car
marthenshire.gov.u
k 
 

T
udalen 150



Subject  Report Summary Decision Making 
Body and Dates 

Is 
Exempt? 

Cabinet Member 
Portfolio Holder (if 
applicable) 

Responsible 
Director /  
 
Report Author 

 

11 

 
 

Cabinet 
27 Nov 2023 
 

WASTE 
STRATEGY 
UPDATE 
 
 

The report provides an overview of the 
first phase implementation of 
Carmarthenshire’s Waste Strategy 
2021-2025, providing detail on the 
changes that have been implemented, 
recycling performance and strategy 
progress to date. 
 
 

 
 

No Cabinet Member for 
Transport, Waste and 
Infrastructure Services 
 

Director of Place & 
Infrastructure 
Daniel John, Head 
of Environmental 
Infrastructure  
DWJohn@carmarth
enshire.gov.uk 
 

Cabinet 
11 Dec 2023 
 

A STRATEGIC 
PLAN FOR 
MANAGING OUR 
LAND FOR 
POLLINATORS IN 
CARMARTHENSH
IRE 
 
 

To adopt pollinator-friendly land 
management practices on Council-
managed land where there is no conflict 
between these and the existing land use, 
and as agreed with clients (e.g. Housing) 
and the contractor (Grounds 
Maintenance). 
We will ensure the way we manage our 
grasslands is consistent with the climate 
and nature emergencies. 
 
 

 
 

No Cabinet Member for 
Transport, Waste and 
Infrastructure Services 
 

Director of Place & 
Infrastructure 
Rosie Carmichael, 
Rural Conservation 
Manager  
racarmichael@car
marthenshire.gov.u
k 
 

Cabinet 
11 Dec 2023 
 

EQUESTRIAN 
STRATEGY 
 
 

The Carmarthenshire Rights of Way 
Improvement Plan (ROWIP) 2019-2029 
has been produced and published in 
accordance with section 60 of the 
Countryside and Rights of Way (CROW) 
Act (2000). 
The ROWIP details Carmarthenshire’s 
plan for the strategic management, 

 
 

No Cabinet Member for 
Transport, Waste and 
Infrastructure Services 
 

Director of Place & 
Infrastructure 
Steve Pilliner, Head 
of Transportation & 
Highways  
SGPilliner@carmart
henshire.gov.uk 
 

T
udalen 151



Subject  Report Summary Decision Making 
Body and Dates 

Is 
Exempt? 

Cabinet Member 
Portfolio Holder (if 
applicable) 

Responsible 
Director /  
 
Report Author 

 

12 

development, and improvement of the 
County’s Public Rights of Way network up 
until 2029. 
During consultation with the Local Access 
Forum, The Forum identified a need for 
the local authority to commit to producing 
a Carmarthenshire Equestrian Strategy to 
recognise the access opportunities and 
challenges for horse riding and carriage 
driving across the County. 
An Equestrian Strategy to ‘promote and 
develop an accessible network for 
equestrian use’ has therefore been 
published in the Carmarthenshire Rights 
of Way Improvement Plan 2019-2029. 
The report sets out the proposal to adopt 
an Equestrian Strategy for 
Carmarthenshire. 
 
 

Cabinet 
11 Dec 2023 
 

HOUSING 
REVENUE 
ACCOUNT 
BUSINESS PLAN 
2024-2027 
 
 

THE HRA BUSINESS PLAN SETS OUT 
OUR PRIORITIES AND ACTIVITIES FOR 
NEW AND EXISTING COUNCIL HOMES 
FOR THE NEXT THREE YEARS. IT 
ALSO SETS OUR CAPITAL AND 
REVENUE BUDGETS AND CONFIRMS 
RENTAL LEVELS FOR TENANTS. 
 
 

 
 

No Deputy Leader and 
Cabinet Member for 
Homes 
 

Director of 
Communities 
Jonathan Morgan, 
Head of Housing 
and Public 
Protection  
JMorgan@carmarth
enshire.gov.uk 
 

LOCAL TOILET 
STRATEGY 
 

To consider the information contained 
within this report and to endorse 
Carmarthenshire County Council’s draft 

Cabinet 
11 Dec 2023 
 

No Cabinet Member for 
Transport, Waste and 
Infrastructure Services 

Director of Place & 
Infrastructure 
Daniel John, Head 

T
udalen 152



Subject  Report Summary Decision Making 
Body and Dates 

Is 
Exempt? 

Cabinet Member 
Portfolio Holder (if 
applicable) 

Responsible 
Director /  
 
Report Author 

 

13 

 Local Toilets Strategy. Approval is also 
sought to undertake a formal public 
consultation exercise with respect to the 
draft Local Toilets Strategy in line with 
statutory requirements. 
 
 

 
 

 of Environmental 
Infrastructure  
DWJohn@carmarth
enshire.gov.uk 
 

Cabinet 
11 Dec 2023 
 

WORKFORCE 
STRATEGY  2023-
2026 
 
 

This new Strategy is key to helping us 
transform and modernise the Council. Our 
Transformation Strategy recognises that 
our employees are our most important 
asset accounting for approximately 60% of 
the Council’s total expenditure. ‘The future 
recruitment, retention, development, and 
well-being of our workforce will be key to 
the delivery of a successful 
Transformation Programme and to the 
Council’s wider strategic objectives’. 
Our ambition is to be an ‘employer of 
choice’, with an employment offer that is 
attractive to current and potential 
candidates and employees. 
The draft strategy sets out 5 Workforce 
Strategy Objectives to help us achieve this 
ambition with an underpinning detailed 
delivery plan. 
 
 

 
 

No Cabinet Member for 
Organisation & 
Workforce 
 

Chief Executive 
Paul R Thomas, 
Assistant Chief 
Executive (People 
Management & 
Performance)  
prthomas@carmart
henshire.gov.uk 
 

10-YEAR SOCIAL 
SERVICES 
STRATEGY 

To provide members with a vision on how 
we will provide the statutory social 
services functions over the next decade. 

Cabinet 
18 Dec 2023 
 

No Cabinet Member for 
Health & Social Services 
 

Director of 
Communities 
Silvana Sauro, 

T
udalen 153



Subject  Report Summary Decision Making 
Body and Dates 

Is 
Exempt? 

Cabinet Member 
Portfolio Holder (if 
applicable) 

Responsible 
Director /  
 
Report Author 

 

14 

(POST-
CONSULTATION) 
 
 

The document will detail the following 
areas; 
Introduction, Vision Statement, The 
services people receive, Social Work 
Models of care, Safeguarding, 
Integration and Partnerships , Workforce 
and an Action Plan 
 
 

 
 

Performance, 
Analysis & Systems 
Manager  
ssauro@carmarthe
nshire.gov.uk 
 

Cabinet 
19 Feb 2024 
 

FLOOD RISK 
MANAGEMENT 
PLAN-2 
 
 

S10.7 of the Flood and Water 
Management Act 2010 requires all Local 
Authorities to publish their Local Flood risk 
management strategy and plan. 
The strategy and plan (referred to as the 
flood risk management plan, FRMP-2) will 
clarify where we are now in terms of flood 
and coastal erosion risk management 
(FCERM), where we want to be in 2030 
and how we will get there. 
 
 

 
 

No Cabinet Member for 
Climate Change, 
Decarbonisation and 
Sustainability 
 

Director of Place & 
Infrastructure 
Ben Kathrens, 
Flood Defence and 
Coastal Protection 
Manager  
BKathrens@carmar
thenshire.gov.uk 
 

Cabinet 
19 Feb 2024 
 

FIVE YEAR 
CAPITAL 
PROGRAMME 
2024/25 - 2028/29 
 
 

To undertake consultation with the Policy 
& Resources Scrutiny Committee on the 
five year Capital Programme. 
  

 

No Cllr. Alun Lenny, Cabinet 
Member 
 

Director of 
Corporate Services 
Chris Moore, 
Director of 
Corporate Services  
cmoore@carmarthe
nshire.gov.uk 
 

10 YEAR SOCIAL 
SERVICES 

 
To provide members with a vision on how 

Cabinet 
18 Mar 2024 

No Cllr. Jane Tremlett, 
Cabinet Member 

Director of 
Communities 

T
udalen 154



Subject  Report Summary Decision Making 
Body and Dates 

Is 
Exempt? 

Cabinet Member 
Portfolio Holder (if 
applicable) 

Responsible 
Director /  
 
Report Author 

 

15 

 STRATEGY 
 
 

the Council will provide the statutory social 
services functions over the next decade. 
The document will detail the following 
areas: Introduction, Vision Statement, The 
services people receive, Social Work 
Models of care, Safeguarding, Integration 
and Partnerships , Workforce and an 
Action Plan. 
 

 
 

 Jake Morgan, 
Director of 
Community 
Services  
jakemorgan@carm
arthenshire.gov.uk 
 

Cabinet 
15 Apr 2024 
 

TREASURY 
MANAGEMENT 
POLICY AND 
STRATEGY 
2024/25 
 
 

To comply with the Revised CIPFA 
Prudential Code and the Revised CIPFA 
Treasury Management Code of Practice 
2021. 
 
 

 
 

No Cllr. Alun Lenny, Cabinet 
Member 
 

Director of 
Corporate Services 
Anthony Parnell, 
Treasury & Pension 
Investments 
Manager  
aparnell@carmarth
enshire.gov.uk 
 

 

T
udalen 155



M
ae'r dudalen hon yn w

ag yn fw
riadol



 

Sylwer: Mae'r cofnodion hyn yn amodol ar gael eu cadarnhau yn y cyfarfod nesaf 

PWYLLGOR CRAFFU CYMUNEDAU, CARTREFI AC ADFYWIO 
 

DYDD IAU, 29 MEHEFIN 2023  
 
 

PRESENNOL Cynghorydd D.M. Cundy  (Cadeirydd) 
 
Cynghorwyr (Yn y Siambr): 
B. Davies L. Davies M. Palfreman H.B. Shepardson 

 
Cynghorwyr (Yn rhithwir): 
K.V. Broom B.W. Jones W.R.A. Davies T. Davies 
R.E. Evans H.L. Davies J.K. Howell  
 
Hefyd yn bresennol  (Yn y Siambr): 
Y Cynghorydd  L.D. Evans - Dirprwy Arweinydd ac Aelod Cabinet dros Gartrefi 
 
Hefyd yn bresennol (Yn y Siambr): 
I. Jones, Pennaeth Hamdden 
J. Morgan, Pennaeth Tai a Diogelu'r Cyhoedd 
H. Morgan, Rhelowr Datblygu Economaidd 
A. Eynon, Prif Gyfieithydd 
R. Morris, Swyddog Cefnogi Aelodau 
K. Thomas, Swyddog Gwasanaethau Democrataidd  
 
Hefyd yn bresennol  (Yn rhithwyr): 
A. Bowen, Arweinydd Buddsodi yn ein Tai 
R. Parkinson, Arweinydd Tim - Cyngor ynghylch Tai 
M. Runeckles, Swyddog Cefnogi Aeolodau 
 
Siam,br, Neuadd y Sir, Caerfyrddin, SA31 1JP ac o bell - 10.00  - 10.35 yb 
 
1. YMDDIHEURIADAU AM ABSENOLDEB. 

 
Derbyniwyd ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb gan y Cynghorwyr D. Owen, R. 
Sparks a M. Thomas.  
 

2. DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANNAU PERSONOL GAN GYNNWYS UNRHYW 
CHWIPIAU PLEIDIAU A RODDIR MEWN YMATEB I UNRHYW EITEM AR YR 
AGENDA 
 
Ni chafwyd dim datganiadau ynghylch buddiannau personol na chwip 
waharddedig. 
 

3. CWESTIYNAU GAN Y CYHOEDD (NID OEDD DIM WEDI DOD I LAW) 
 
Ni chafwyd dim datganiadau ynghylch buddiannau personol na chwip 
waharddedig. 
 

Tudalen 157

Eitem Rhif  12



 

Sylwer: Mae'r cofnodion hyn yn amodol ar gael eu cadarnhau yn y cyfarfod nesaf 

4. ADRODDIAD DIWEDDARU - DYRANNU TAI CYMDEITHASOL BRYS 
YNGHYLCH RHOI'R POLISI DYRANNU NEWYDD AR WAITH (MONITRO) 
 
Yn unol â'r penderfyniad a wnaed yn ei gyfarfod ar 26 Ionawr 2023, cafodd y 
Pwyllgor adroddiad monitro ar effeithiolrwydd y Polisi Dyrannu Tai Cymdeithasol 
Brys newydd a luniwyd gan ei Grŵp Gorchwyl a Gorffen. Nodwyd bod yr 
adroddiad yn cynnwys data ar gyfer y cyfnod blaenorol yn ymwneud â'r canlynol:- 
  

1.     Cyfran yr eiddo a barwyd yn uniongyrchol a'r rhai a hysbysebwyd, 
2.     Band os yw cleientiaid wedi'u paru yn uniongyrchol, 
3.     Nifer yr eiddo a barwyd yn uniongyrchol ac a hysbysebwyd gan bob ardal 

gymunedol, math o eiddo a landlord, 
4.     Cyfran yr achosion o baru uniongyrchol a oedd yn llwyddiannus, 
5.     Nifer yr achosion o baru uniongyrchol lle mae'r cleient yn gofyn am 

adolygiad o'r dyraniad, a chanlyniad yr adolygiadau hynny, 
6.     Nifer yr achosion o baru uniongyrchol lle mae'r cleientiaid yn gwrthod y 

dyraniad ond nid yw'n gofyn am adolygiad. 
  
Codwyd y cwestiynau/materion canlynol ar yr adroddiad:- 

       Mewn ymateb i gwestiwn ynghylch pryd y byddai'r cyfnod ymgynghori 
ffurfiol yn dechrau ynghylch cyflwyno Polisi Dyrannu Tai Cymdeithasol 
newydd, atgoffwyd y Pwyllgor bod y Cabinet wedi cytuno y byddai'r polisi 
brys presennol ar waith am gyfnod o 18 mis ac y gallai'r ymgynghoriad 
ddechrau ar unrhyw adeg yn ystod y cyfnod hwnnw. Dywedodd y 
Pennaeth Tai a Diogelu'r Cyhoedd y byddai'n cynnwys amserlen yn yr 
adroddiad monitro nesaf ynghylch cyflwyno'r polisi newydd a dechrau'r 
cyfnod ymgynghori. 

       Cyfeiriwyd at graff 2 yn yr adroddiad a oedd yn dangos nifer yr eiddo a 
barwyd yn uniongyrchol a'r rhai a hysbysebwyd ar Canfod Cartref. 
Cadarnhawyd bod nifer yr eiddo a hysbysebwyd wedi lleihau ers 
mabwysiadu'r polisi dyrannu brys ac y byddai hyn yn parhau i leihau wrth i 
nifer yr eiddo a barwyd yn uniongyrchol gynyddu, a bod y rhai a barwyd yn 
cael eu dyrannu i'r bobl sydd â'r angen mwyaf ac i'r rhai sydd â chysylltiad 
lleol. Dim ond os nad oedd modd ei baru'n uniongyrchol neu os nad oedd 
yn addas ar gyfer anghenion lleol y byddai eiddo yn cael ei hysbysebu 
bellach.  

       O ran cwestiwn ynghylch Graff 6, a'r cynnydd yn nifer yr achosion o baru 
anaddas, dywedwyd wrth y Pwyllgor y gellid priodoli hyn i nifer o ffactorau, 
yn bennaf i’r ffaith nad yw tenantiaid yn rhoi gwybod i'r Cyngor am newid 
yn eu hamgylchiadau personol. Fodd bynnag, o dan y polisi brys newydd, 
byddai'n rhaid i bobl ar y gofrestr tai ailgofrestru yn rheolaidd i ddiweddaru 
eu hanghenion/gofynion. 

  
PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL dderbyn yr adroddiad monitro. 
 

5. ARFARNIADAU O ARDALOEDD CADWRAETH - DIWEDDARIAD 
 
Atgoffwyd y Pwyllgor ei fod wedi ystyried adroddiad ar ehangu 10 Ardal 
Gadwraeth yn Sir Gaerfyrddin yn ei gyfarfod ar 5 Ebrill 2023 (gweler cofnod 4) a'i 
fod wedi penderfynu cysylltu â Llywodraeth Cymru ar fater cyfyngu ar osod paneli 

Tudalen 158



 

Sylwer: Mae'r cofnodion hyn yn amodol ar gael eu cadarnhau yn y cyfarfod nesaf 

haul ar flaen toeau mewn Ardaloedd Cadwraeth.  Yn dilyn hynny, cynhaliwyd 
cyfarfod ar 15 Mehefin rhwng Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Craffu Cymunedau, Cartrefi 
ac Adfywio â thîm Treftadaeth Adeiledig yr Awdurdod Lleol, Rhodri Griffiths, 
Pennaeth Lle a Chynaliadwyedd, y Cynghorydd Aled Vaughan Owen, Aelod 
Cabinet dros Newid Hinsawdd, Datgarboneiddio a Chynaliadwyedd, a'r 
Cynghorydd Russel Sparkes i drafod y materion uchod a sut y gellid sicrhau bod 
hen stoc dai yn cael ei haddasu'n well i helpu'r Cyngor i gyrraedd ei dargedau 
carbon sero net, a oedd yn cynnwys gosod paneli haul ar adeiladau 
gwarchodedig. 
  
Yn dilyn y drafodaeth honno, cynigiwyd nad yw'r Cyngor yn cysylltu â 
Llywodraeth Cymru ynghylch y mater hwn bellach, a hynny'n groes i 
argymhelliad cynharach y Pwyllgor, ond y gofynnir i'r Pwyllgor Craffu Lle, 
Cynaliadwyedd a Newid Hinsawdd edrych ar fater ehangach effeithlonrwydd ynni 
a chynhyrchu ynni mewn perthynas â stoc hanesyddol y sir.  
  
PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL nad yw'r Cyngor yn cysylltu â 
Llywodraeth Cymru hwn bellach (fel y penderfynwyd yng nghofnod 4 
cyfarfod y Pwyllgor a gynhaliwyd ar 5 Ebrill 2023) ond y gofynnir i'r 
Pwyllgor Craffu Lle, Cynaliadwyedd a Newid Hinsawdd edrych ar fater 
ehangach effeithlonrwydd ynni a chynhyrchu ynni mewn perthynas â stoc 
hanesyddol y sir.  
 

6. ADRODDIAD BLYNYDDOL Y PWYLLGOR CRAFFU CYMUNEDAU 2022/23 
 
Cafodd y Pwyllgor ei Adroddiad Blynyddol ar y gwaith a gyflawnwyd yn ystod 
blwyddyn y cyngor 2022/23. Nodwyd bod yr adroddiad wedi'i baratoi'n unol ag 
Erthygl 6.2 o Gyfansoddiad y Cyngor a'i fod yn rhoi trosolwg o'r rhaglen waith a 
materion allweddol dan sylw, gan gynnwys hefyd unrhyw faterion a gyfeiriwyd at 
neu gan y Cabinet, adolygiadau Gorchwyl a Gorffen a sesiynau datblygu. 
  
Codwyd y cwestiynau/materion canlynol ar yr adroddiad:- 

       Cyfeiriwyd at bwynt 2.14 yn yr adroddiad ynghylch darparu cynnig addysg 
awyr agored amgen ar gyfer Sir Gaerfyrddin a gofynnwyd am eglurhad 
ynghylch dyfodol y cyfleuster preswyl awyr agored presennol ym 
Mhentywyn. 
  
Atgoffodd Pennaeth y Gwasanaethau Hamdden y Pwyllgor, fel y nodwyd 
yn yr adroddiad, yr ymgynghorwyd â'r Pwyllgor ynghylch y cynigion yn ei 
gyfarfod ym mis Rhagfyr 2022 a oedd yn cynnwys cyfeiriad at gyflwr y 
cyfleuster presennol ym Mhentywyn ac at gost bosibl gwaith adnewyddu. 
Er bod yr angen am gyfleuster preswyl o'r fath yn cael ei gydnabod a'i 
werthfawrogi, byddai angen ystyried a oedd y cyfleuster yn y lle iawn. Yn 
unol â hynny, roedd adroddiad yn cael ei gwblhau ynghylch dyfodol y 
cynnig addysg awyr agored yn Sir Gaerfyrddin, gan gynnwys cyfleuster 
Pentywyn, i'r Cabinet ei ystyried ym mis Medi. 
  
O ystyried yr uchod, awgrymwyd y dylid cyflwyno'r adroddiad ynghylch y 
cynnig addysg awyr agored i'r Pwyllgor cyn iddo gael ei ystyried gan y 
Cabinet, a chymeradwywyd yr awgrym hwnnw. 

Tudalen 159



 

Sylwer: Mae'r cofnodion hyn yn amodol ar gael eu cadarnhau yn y cyfarfod nesaf 

  
PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL dderbyn yr adroddiad.  
 

7. EITEMAU AR GYFER Y DYFODOL 
 
Cafodd y Pwyllgor restr o'r eitemau a fyddai'n cael eu hystyried yn ei gyfarfod 
nesaf ar 28 Medi 2023. 
  
PENDERFYNWYD nodi'r rhestr o eitemau ar gyfer y dyfodol a oedd i'w 
hystyried yn y cyfarfod nesaf ar 28 Medi 2023. 
 

8. LLOFNODI YN GOFNOD CYWIR GOFNODION Y PWYLLGOR A 
GYNHALIWYD AR 15 MAI 2023 
 
PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL lofnodi cofnodion cyfarfod y Pwyllgor a 
gynhaliwyd ar 15 Mai 2023 yn gofnod cywir.   
 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________    __________________ 
CHAIR       DATE 
 

Tudalen 160


	Agenda
	4 ADOLYGIAD O'R POLISI YNGHYLCH TALIADAU AM WASANAETHAU TAI
	Adroddiad
	1.	Purpose
	2.	What is a Service Charge?
	3.	Why Review the Service Charge Policy
	4.	Current Profile of Service Charges
	5.	Considering the future options
	6.	Scrutiny Committee Recommendations


	5 CYMHWYSO BWRIADOLDEB I ANGEN BLAENORIAETHOL (GORCHYMYN DIGARTREFEDD)
	Adroddiad
	Addition of further description of person having a priority need for accommodation under Part 2 of the Housing (Wales) Act 2014
	Amendment of the Homelessness (Intentionality) (Specified Categories) (Wales) Regulations 2015


	6 ADRODDIAD DIWEDDARU - DYRANNU TAI CYMDEITHASOL BRYS YNGHYLCH RHOI'R POLISI DYRANNU NEWYDD AR WAITH (MONITRO)
	Adroddiad

	7 STRATEGAETH HAMDDEN, DIWYLLIANT, A HAMDDEN AWYR AGORED
	Cyflwyniad

	8 ADRODDIAD MONITRO CYLLIDEB CYFALAF A REFENIW 2023/24
	Appendix A-C
	Atodiad D
	Atodiad E
	Appendix F-I
	Appendix J

	9 ADRODDIAD ALLDRO CYLLIDEB REFENIW 2022/23
	Appendix A-C
	Atodiad D
	Atodiad E

	10 PEIDIO Â CHYFLWYNO ADRODDIAD CRAFFU
	Adroddiad

	11 EITEMAU AR GYFER Y DYFODOL
	Adroddiad
	Blaengynllun
	Cynllun Gwaith y Cabinet

	12 LLOFNODI YN GOFNOD CYWIR GOFNODION Y PWYLLGOR A GYNHALIWYD AR 29 MEHEFIN 2023

